BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION

QOF THE STATE OF HAWAT'I

In the Matter of the Petition of }  DOCKET NO. A10-789

) =R
A&B PROPERTIES, INC. )}  A&B PROPERTIES, INC. ;5 E;i:

) & g
To Amend the Agricultural Land ) == ?
Use District Boundary into the ) T = ;;
Urban District fpr approximately ) o = ;i
545.229 acres at Wailuku and ) - o
Waikapu, County -of Maui, State of ) -t =
Hawai'i, TMK: 3-8-05: portion of )
23 and 37, 3-8-07: 71, portion of )
101 and 104 )

)

PETITION FOR LAND USE DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT
VERIFICATION
EXHIBITS “1“ THROUGH “8“
AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OF PETITION
FOR LAND USE DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT
AFFIDAVIT OF NOTIFICATION OF PETITION FILING
AND
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

BENJAMIN M. MATSUBARA, #993-0
CURTIS T. TABATA, #5607-0
Matsubara — Kotake

888 Mililani Street, 8t Floor
Honolulu, Hawai'i 96813

Attorneys for Petitioner
A&B PROPERTIES, INC.



BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION
OFE THE STATE OF HAWAT']

In the Matter of the Petition of DOCKET NO. A10-789

)
)
A&B PROPERTIES, INC. ) A&B PROPERTIES, INC,
)
To Amend the Agricultural Land - )
Use District Boundary into the )
Urban District for approximately )
545.229 acres at Wailuku and )
Waikapu, County of Maui, State of )
Hawai'i, TMK: 3-8-05: portion of )
23 and 37, 3-8-07: 71, portion of )
101 and 104 )
)

PETITION FOR LAND USE DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT

TO THE HONORABLE LAND USE COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF HAWAT'L:
A&B PROPERTIES, INC,, (“Petitioner”) by and through its attorney, BENJAMIN
M. MATSUBARA, respectfully petition the Land Use Commission of the State of
Hawai'i (“Commission”} to amend the land use district boundary of approximately
'545.229 acres of land at Wailuku and Waikapu, Maui, Hawai'i, (“Property”) more
particularly described below, from the State Land Use Agricultural District to the State
Land Uée Urban District for the planned Wai'ale Community Project (“Project”). In

support of this Petition, Petitioner respectfully presents the following;: |
1. Standing. The fee simple ownership of the Property is vested in

Alexander & Baldwin, Inc., a Hawai'i corporation, whose principal place of business is



822 Bishop Street, Honolulu, Hawai'i 96813. Petitioner is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. Attached as Exhibit 1 is the written authorization of
Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. permitting Petitioner to file the subject Petition. Petitioner
possess the requisite standing to file this Petition pursuant to Hawai'i Revised Statutes
("HRS”) Section 205-4(a) and Hawai'i Administrative Rules ("HAR") Section 15-15-
46(3). |

2. Authorized Representatives. Mr. Benjamin M. Matsubara, Mr. Curtis T.
Tabata and the law firm of Matsubara - Kotake have been appointed to represent the
Petitioner pursuant to HAR Section 15-15-35(b).  All correspondence and
communications in regard to this Petition shall be addressed to, and served upon, Mr.
Benjamin M. Matsubara, Matsubara — Kotake, 888 Mililani Street, 8% Floor, Honoluly,
Hawa_i‘i 96813 and Mr. Da:niel_Yasui, A&B Properties, Inc., 822 Bishop Street, Honolulu,
Hawai'i 96813.

3.  Relief Sought. Petitioner desires to amend the land use district boundary
to reclassify approximately 545.229 acres of land at Wailuku and Waikaﬁu, Maut,
Hawai'i from the State Land Use Agricultural District to the State Land Use Urban
District.

4; Auihéri’_cy for Relief Sought. fetitioner A&B Properties, Inc. files this
Petition pursuant to Section 205-4, of the HRS and the Land Use Commission Rules of

the State of Hawai'i, Title 15, Subtitle 3, Chapter 15 of the HAR.



5. Description of the Property. The Property is situated in Wailuku and

Waikapu, Maui, Hawai'i and consists of approximately 545.229 acres and 1s identified
as Tax Map Key Nos. (2) 3-8-05: portion of 23 Vand 37; and Tax Map Key Nos. (2) 3-8-07:
71, portion of 101 and 104. Tax Maps are attached hereto as Exhibit 8. A map
identifying the location of the Property is attached as Exhibit 2, A survey map and
metes and bounds description of the Property is attached as Exhib.it 3. |

6. Petitioner’s Property Interest. The fee simple ownership of the Property is
vested in Alexander & Baldwin, Inc., a Hawai'i corporation, whose principal place of
business is 822 Bishop Street, Honolulu, Hawai'i 96813. At’éached to this Petition as
Exchibit 4 are documents evidencing Alexander & Baldwin, Inc.’s ownership of the
Property. Petitioner is a wholly owned subsidiary of Alexander & Baldwin, Inc.
Attached as Exhjbit 1 is the written authorization of Alexander_ _&: Bal_dwm, Inc.
permitting Petitioner to file the subject Petition.

7. Petitioner’s Financial Condition. Petitioner is a wholly owned subsidiary

of Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. Attached as Exhibit 5 are the financial statements of
Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. Development of the Project is intended to be financed
through internally generated funds.

8. Reclassification Sought, Proposed Use of Property. The Property is

presently classified within the State Land Use Agricultural District. Petitioner seeks to

reclassify the Property to the State Land Use Urban District to develop the Project. The



Project is a master planned residential community which would include the following
uses: Village Mixed Use, Commercial, Business/Light Industrial, Multi Family and
Single Family Residential, Community Center, Regional Park, Neighborhood Parks,
Greenways and Open Space, Cultural Preserve, Middle School, and zrelated
infrastructure. The conceptual master plan of the Project is attached as Exhibit 6. The
conceptual master plan is co_ns'isteﬁt with the guidelines and parameters specified in
“Chapter 8: Directed Growth Plan” of the Draft Maui Island Plan (December 2009) as it
relates to the Wai ale planned growth area. A total of approximatel;lir 2,550 residential
units are planned at the Project. A major regional park is planned within the Property,
just south of the Maui Lani project, along with a system of neighborhood parks,
greenways and open space. The regional park concept is described in the Draft Maui
Island Plan and to .include both active and passive park uses. Par'ls development will be
undertaken by the County of Maui. The Project will provide for a network of trails and
bike paths which will connect to parks and open space areas. The Project includes
approximately 50 acres near the Property’s northern border with Maui Lani that will be
conveyed to the County ;)f Maui for affordable housing (40 acres), park (3 acres) and
community center (7 acres). This land contribution is to satisfy Maui County zoning
COndiﬁéns for another project (Maui Business Park Phase II) in the Wailuku-Kahului

region.



9. Environmental Impact. Attached as Exhibit 7 is an Environmental Impact
Statement Preparation Notice (“EISPN”) prepared for the Project. As the proposed
Project will require an amendment to the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan and may
involve the use of State and/or County lands and the development of an onsite
wastewater treatment facility, the preparation of this EISPN is being undertaken to
address requirements under Chapter 343, HRS. Use of State and/or County lands could
include, but not be limited to roadway, traffic, water, sewer, utility and drainage
facilities affecting State and/or County roadways or other lands. While the specific
nature of each improvement is not known at this time, the EISPN isintended to address
all current and future instances involving the use of State and/or County lands relating
to the Project. The filing of this Petition is the earliest practicable time to determine
Whether an Environmental Impact Statement (“EIS”) shall be required to assess the
Project pursuant to Section 343-b(c), HRS. Accordingly, Petitioner requests that the
Commission determine: (a) that the Commission is the appropriate accepting authority

for the EIS and (b) that the EISPN is warranted.

10. Description of the Propertv, Surrounding Area and Use of TLand. The

Property is located at Wailuku and Waikapu, Maui, adjacent and south of the Maui
Lani project. The Property borders Kuihelani Highway on the east. Waiko Road
intersects Kuihelani Highway and divides the Property into two sections, one section

lies north of Waiko Road (Petition Area “A” comprising approximately 422.594 acres)



and the other south of Waiko Road (Petition Area “B” comprising approximately
122.635 acres). Kamehameha Avenue currently terminates within the Maui Lani project
along the northern border of the Property. Kamehameha Avenue will be extended
south through the Project as shown on the conceptual master plan. Current uses at the
Property include:- pasture (cattle and horses), cattle feed lot, orchid farm, base yard,
sand stockpile and fallowed sugar fields. The northwestern portion of the property was
previously used for sand mining. Surrounding land uses include the Maui Lani project
to the north, Kuihelani Highway and sugar fields to the east, Waikapu Stream and
sugar fields to the south, and Waikapu Village and light industrial uses to the west.
Cutrent access to the Property is off of Waiko Road, Kuihelani Highway and
Kamehameha Avenue.

11 Assessment of the Impacts of the Proposed Development on the

Environment. A preliminary discussion of the impacts of the proposed development on
the environment is contained herein and in Petitioner’s EISPN (Exhibit 7). Addiﬁoﬁal
details concerning the proposed development’s impacts on the environment will be
provided as such information becomes available through the various studies which will
be carried out in connection with the preparation of Petitioner’'s Draft Environmental

Impact Statement (“DEIS”).



Flora and Fauna

A Botanical and Fauna Survey of the Property was conducted by Robert Hobdy,
Environmental Consultant. The vegetation observed throughout the Property was
dominated by a variety of non-native plants, including buffelgrass, kiawe, koa haole
and Guinea grass. Four (4) native plant species: ilima, “uhaloa, kou and popolo and
three (3) of Polynesian origin: kukui, niu and ko or sugar cane, were found on the
Property, but all are common species found tﬁroughout Hawai'i. No federally-listed
endangered or threatened native species were found on the Property. Due to the
dominance of non-native plants and the absence of any rare or protected native plant
species, the proposed Project is not expected to have a significant negative impact on
botanical resources. Mammals, including cattle, horses, axis deer and mongoose were
observed on the Property,. Other mammals likely to bg found on the P_rop_erty include,
rats, mice, and feral cats. Severﬁeen (17) bird species were observed, including fifteen
(15) non-native species, one indigenous water bird (black-crowned night 'heronj and
one migrant bird (Pacific golden plover). No féderally—lisfed endangered or threatened
mammal, bird or insect species were found on the property.

The proposed development is not anticipated to have a significant negative
impact on botanical and fauna resources. The Botanical and Fauna Survey will be

included in the DEIS.



Streams, Wetlands and Reservoirs

Waikapu Stream is situated to the south of the Property. While the stream is not
included within the subject Property, a park/open space greenway will be provided
along the northern border of the stream, within the Property. The natural drainage
characteristics of Waikapu Streaﬁl are not intended to be altered. The DEIS will include
a preliminary drainage report to describe the proposed drainage system for the Project.
Mitigation measures such as Best Management Practices (“BMPs”) will be addressed by
the preliminary drainage report.

Archaeological and Historical Resources

An archaeological inventory survey of the Property has been conducted and will
be included in the DEIS. This includes archaeological work undertaken in conjunction
with Hawaiian Cement’s sand mining activities within the northwestern portion of the
Property. Burials have been identified within this area and mitigation measures,
including a plan for long term preservation are being formulated in consultation with
the State Department of Land and Natural Resources Historic Preservation Division
(“SHPD”) and the Maui/Lanai Islands Burial Council. Several cultural preserves are
planned within the Project to safeguard these burial sites.

Cultural Resources

A cultural impact assessment of the Property will be conducted to identify

existing cultural resources and practices associated with the Property and the Project’s



potential impact on such resources and practices. The cultural impact assessment
report will be included in the DEIS.

Agriculture

In 1977, the State Department of Agriculture developed a classification system to
identify Agricultural Lands of Importance to the State of Hawai'i (“ALISH"). The
classification systemm is based primarily, though 'I‘IOJ;Z exclusively, upon the soil
characteristics of the lands. The three (3) classes of ALISH lands are: “Prime”,
“Unique”, and “Other”, with all remaining lands termed “Unclassified”. When utilized
with modern farming methods, “Prime” agricultural lands have a soil quality, growing
season, and moisture supply necessary to produce sustained crop yields economically.
“Unique” agricultural lands possess a combination of soil qualitj, growing season, and
moisture supply to produce sustained high _yie_ldsl of a specific crop. ”dther”
agricultural lands include those that have not been rated as “Prime” or “Unique”. The
Property has been classified as “Other” by the ALISH classification system.

The University of Hawai'i, Land Study Bureau ("LSB”) developed the Overall
Productivity Rating, which classified soils according to five (5) levels, with “A”
representing the class of highest productivity soils and “E” representing the lowest.
These letters are followed by numbérs which further classify the soil typés by
conveying such information as texture, drainage and stoniness. The vast majority of

subject Property is located on lands designated “E” or very poor by the LSB. These



lands have the lowest productivity rating under the LSB classification system. Machine
till ability is very poorly suited, thus grazing is the typical use for this type of soil. A
small portion of the Property along its northeast bom_mdary with Maui Lani is
designated “C” by the LSB.

The proposed Project will involve the Vuse of approximately 545 acres of land,
which represents approximately 0.2 percent of the roughly 246,000 acres of State
Agricultural district lands on the isiand of Maui. A more detailed assessment of the
agricultural impact of the proposed Project will be included in the DEIS.

Air and Noise Quality

Air quality in the vicinity of the Property is considered good with existing
airborne emissions attributed primarily to nearby agricultural and industrial activities.
ther potential sources of airborne emissions include construction activities at Maui
Lani, vehicular traffic along nearby roadways andl vog. However, these sources are
typically intermittent, with prevailing trade winds quickly dispersing any particulates
WECh are generated. Air quality data available for the area from the State Department
of Health (“DOH") indicates that ambient air concentrations are well within State and
national air quality standards. Noise generators in the vicinity of the Property are those
associated with the nearby agricultural, industrial and construction activities. Another
noise source in the area can be attributed to vehicular traffic along Kuihelani Highway

and Waiko Road.

10



Anticipated air quality impacts attributed to the Project include dust generated
by short-term construction-related activities. Dust control measures, such as regular
watering and sprinkling, will be implemented to minimize wind-blown emissions.
Graded and grubbed areas will be vegetated to mitigate dust-generated impacts. In the
long term, the Project is not expected to adversely impact local and regional ambient air
quality.

Ambient noise conditions will be temporarily impacted by construction
activities. Heavy construction equipment, such as bulldozers, front-end loaders, and
material-transport vehicles, will likely be the dominant source of noise during the
construction period. The overall long-term impact of the Project on ambient noise levels

is not anticipated to be significant.

Scenic and Open Space Resources

The subject froperty is situated within the central valley of Maui, just south of
Maui Lani. The slopes of Haleakala and the West Maui Mountains are visible from the
Property. However, the subject Property is not a scenic resource nor locatéd within a
scenic view corridor.

The proposed Project will be developed as an architecturally integrated master
planned community with extensive landscaping. Landscaping will be installed as part
of the development improvements to ensure visual buffering and softening of the built

landscape. The master plan includes regional and neighborhood parks, greenways and

1l



open space. No adverse impacts to scenic or open space resources resulting from the
Project are anticipated.

12.  Assessment of the Impacts of the Proposed Development on the
Availability of Public Services and Facilities

Roadways

The Property is situated adjacent to Kﬁihelarﬁ Highway, a primary vehicular
arterial serving Central Maui. Kuihelani Highway is a median separated four-lane,
two-way State Highway that runs in a north-south direction between Kahului and
Ma'alaea. In addition to paved shoulders, Kuihelani Highway has traffic s’ignais and
turning lanes at major intersections, including at Waiko Road. The Property is also
served by Waiko Road, which intersects Kuihelani Highway and divides the Property
into two sections. Waiko Road is a two-lane collector roadway connecting Kuihe‘larﬁ
Highway, Waiale Drive, and Honoapi ilani Highway. Honoapi'ilani Highway is a two-
lane State highway running in a north-south direction between Wailuku and Ma’alaea.
Kamehameha Avenue is a two-lane County collector roadway within the adjacent Maui
Lani project that currently terminates just north of the Property, Kamehameha Avenue
will be extended south through the Property and connect with Waiko Road. As shown
on the master plan,I accesses to the Prdject are planned off of Waiko Road, Kuihelani
Highway and Kamehameha Avenue.

A Traffic Impact Analysis Report (“TIAR”) for the proposed project will be

prepared and included in the DEIS. The TIAR will address the impacts of traffic

12



generated from the proposed Project and identify measures requjred. to mitigate the
impacts. Coordination with the State Department of Transportation (“DOT”) and
County Department of Public Works (“DPW”) will be undertaken in the preparation of
the TIAR.

Water System

Water service for the region is provided by the County Department of Water
Supply (“DWS”). Domestic water and fire flow for the Waikapu area is-prov'ided by the
Mokuhau Wells in Happy Valley and the 300,000 gallon Waikapu Tank. A series of 8-
inch and 12-inch waterlines traverse Waiko Road providing service to existing users.
‘An existing 12-inch main is also situated within Kamehameha Avenue in Maui Lani.

To address the potable water needs of the Project, Petitioner is pursuing several
alternatives. Petitioner, in cooperation with the County of I_\/J_Iaui, is planning the
development of a new water treatment facility on lands adjacent to the Waiale
Reservoir, just north of the Project. The Waiale WTF (“WTE”) is planned as a joint effort
with the County of Maui to address a pbrtion of the future potable water needs of both
the County and the Petitioner.

The development of new potable well sources in Central Maui is another potable
water alternative. As example, the Petitioner has drilled two (2} wells in the Kahului

aquifer. These wells are situated within the northeastern portion of the Property near

13



Kuihelani Highway. Each of these wells has a sustainable capacity of approximately
0.648 mgd and demonstrates the potential for potable well sources to serve the Project.

A preliminary engineering report will be included in the DEIS which will
analyze the existing and proposed water system for the Project based upon calculated
‘water demands.

Wastewater System

The County’s existing Wailuku-Kahului Wastewater Reclamation Facility serving the
greater Wailuku-Kahului region has a plant capacity of 7.9 mgd and currently treats an
estimated 5.5 mgd. The facility is located on Amala Place in Kahului. The facility’s total
allocation, including projects already permitted, is estimated at 6.9 mgd. Within Maui
Lani, an existing 12-inch sewer line is situated within Kamehameha Avenue, just north
of the Property.

A preliminary engineering report will be included in the DEIS which will
estimate demand generated by the Project and analyze wastewater collection and
treatment fequirements, as weil as alternatives to accommodate the needs of the
proposed Project.

Drainage

The property is generally flat along the eastern boundary along Kuihelani
Highway, with a gentle slope rising from the northeastern to the northwestern corner.

At its lowest point (at the northeastern corner), the property is approximately 150 feet

14



above mean sea level (msl). Higher elevations occur along the western edge of Waiko
Road at approximately 310 above msl. Slopes generally increase from the north to the
south, and the topography of the property at the southern tip is approximately 200 feet
abovemsl. With genfle overall terrain, the average slope is about 3 percent or less. The
majority of the Property- is designated Zone “C”, areas of minimal flooding, according
to Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (“FEMA") Flood Insurance Rate Map
("FIRM”). A small portion of the Property near Waikapu Stream is designated Zone
“A”, areas subject to flooding,

Onsite surface drainage currently sheet flows across the Property from the
southwest to the northeast. Along Kuihelani Highway, existing drainage improvements
include three (3) drainage crossings, which intercept and divert flows. A 42-inch
culvert located near the intersection of Waiko Road and Kuihelani Highway, intercepts
runoff from a swale parallel to Kuihelani Highway.

Waikapu Stream is situated to the south of the Property. The natural drainage
characteristics of the stream will not be altered. The master plan includes a park/green
way buffer along the stream to allow uninterrupted natural flows to occur and for
recreational use.

The DEIS will include a preliminary drainage report covering the drainage

characteristics of the Property, potential impacts resulting from the proposed Project,
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and proposed mitigation measures. The findings and recommendations for drainage
will be based on drainage studies prepared by a licensed civil eng’iileer..

Electrical, Telephone, and Cable Television Services |

Electrical power, telephone, and CATV services to the region are provided by
Maui Electric Company, Hawaiian Telcom, and Oceanic Time Warner Cable of Hawaii,
respectively.

Although it is anticipated that electrical, telephone, and CATV service capacity
will be available for the proposed development and will not have an adverse impact on
service providers, the respective providers will be consulted regarding potential
impacts as well as measures to mitigate said impacts. The results will be included in the

DEIS.

Police and Fire Protection

The proposed Project is situated within the Maui Police Department’s (“MPD”)
Wailuku Patrol District, which covers the Kahului area. The Maui County Department
of Fire and Public Safety (“MFD") provides firé prevention, suppression, ‘protect‘iron and
emergency services to the area. The MFD’s Kahului Fire Station is situated on Dairy
Road in Kahului.

An assessment of the impacts to police and fire protection services will be
undertaken during the DEIS process. The EISPN will be circulated to the MPD and

MED to solicit comments on the proposed Project.

16



Educational Facilities

The State Department of Education ("DOE”) operates two (2) high schools, two
(2) intermediate schools and four (4) elementary schools in the Wailuku-Kahului region,
these include: Maui High School, Henry P. Baldwin High School, Iao Intermediate
School, Maui Wagna Intermediate School, Kahului Elementary School, Lihikai
Elementary School, Wailuku Elemeﬁtar.y School and Pomaikai Elementary School.
Pomaikai Elementary School recently opened (2007) and is sitmated just north of the
Property along Kamehameha Avenue in Maui Lani. Maui Community College, a
branch of the University of Hawai'i system, is the primary higher education institution
serving the County.

An assessment of the Project’s impact to educational facilities in the region will
be undertaken. Preliminary discussions have been held with the DOE Facilities Branch
concerning the proposed Project. Based on its assessment of existing and planned DOE
facilities in the region, the DOE has concurred with the need to plan for a future middle
school site within the Project. The EISPN will be circulated to the DOE to solicit
comments on the proposed Project.

Recreational Facilities

Diverse recreational opportunities are available in the Wailuku-Kahului region.
Numerous park facilities are within a relatively short distance of the Project site,

including: Honolii Park, Kahului Community Center & Pool, Lihikai Park, Mokuhau
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Park, Pomaikai Park, Wai'ale Neighborhood Park, War Memorial Complex &
Keopuolani Regional Park and Wells Community Complex. However, there are
regional recreational needs that the County would like to plan for within the Project.

The Project’s master plan includes lands reserved for active regional and
neighborhood parks, greenways and open space. The provision of lands for park
purposes will be undertaken in consultation with the County Department of Parks and
Recreation (“DPR”) to ensure that park and playground .asséssment requirements are
appropriately addressed. Lands planned for park purposes are expected to far exceed
County ‘pérk dedication requirements for the Project and will be discussed with the
DPR. The EISPN will be circulated to the DPR to solicit comments on the proposed
Project.

- Solid Waste Disposal

Single family residential solid waste collection service is provided by the County
of Maui. Residential solid waste collected by County crews is disposed of at the
County’s Ceniral Maui Landfill facility, located 4.0 Vmiles 7southeas.t of the Kahului
Airport. The Central Maui Landfill is operated by the County Department of
Environmental Management (“DEM”). In addition to County-collected refuse, the
Central Maui Landfill also accepts commercial waste from private collection companies.
A new expansion to the Central Maui solid waste landfill facility was recently opened.

According to the County’s Draft Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan (February

18



2008), there is adequate capacity at the Central Maui Landfill with planned
improvements to the year 2026. Privately owned facilities, such as the Maui Demolition
and Construction Landfill and the Pohakulepo Concrete Recycling Facility, accept solid
waste and concrete from demolition and construction activities. These facilities are
located at Ma'alaea, near Honoapi'ilani Highway's junctions with North Kihei Road
and the Kuihelani Highway. A County supported green waste recycling facility is
located at the Central Maui Landfill.

At the appropriate fime and in consultation with the DEM, a solid waste
management plan, incorporating measures for recycling during and after construction,
will be prepared. The planmed single family residential units within the proposed
Project will be served by the County of Maui’s solid waste disposal facilities. Other
pfoject components, including commercial and multi family residential units will likely‘
be served by private waste collection companies. Further coordination will be carried
out with the DEM during the DEIS process to identify Project implications to solid
v(r.aste facilities. The findings will be incorporated into the DEIS document,

Medical Facilities

The only major medical facility on the island is Maui Memorial Medical Center,
which is located in Kahului less than two (2) miles in distance from the proposed

Project. The 196-bed facility provides general, acute, and emergency care services.
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Non-emergency health care is provided by medical clinics and offices
throughout Wailuku-Kahului,‘including Kaiser Permanente, which operates clinics in
Maui Lani and Wailuku.

An assessment of the impacts to medical treatment and care services will be
undertaken in the DEIS process. The EISPN will be circulated to the Maui Memorial

Medical Center for review and comment.

13. Location of the Proposed Development to Adjacent Land Use Districts

and Centers of Trading and Employment. The Pfopert_y is contiguous with the existing
Urban District and the greater Wailuku-Kahului L;r_ban area. The Property is located
adjacent and south of the Maui Lani master planned community. The Waikapu Urban
District is situated to the west of the Property at Waiko Road and Honoapi'ilani
Highway. A light industrial area is also situated within the Urban District aiong Waiko
Road. The site abuts the existing Kuihelani Highway, a major north/south roadway
serving the Wailuku-Kahului region. The Property is proximate to existing
infrastructure, has good access to existing roadways and topography suitabie for urban
development. The Property is located in an area of existing, urbanized lands.

14,  Economic Impacts of the Proposed Development. The Project is intended
to provide housing and employment opportunities in close proximity to the existing
urban core and employment center at Wailuku-Kahului. On a short-term basis, the

project will support construction and construction-related employment. Accordingly,
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the project will have a beneficial impact on the local economy during the period of
construction. Long term employment opportunities will also arise from the commercial
components of the Project. An analysis to address tax, income and property valuation

parameters will be undertaken during the DEIS process.

15.  Housing Needs. The proposed Project woulci add approx’imately. 2,550
residential units, including affordable units, to the supply of housing on the island of
Maui. The proposed Project would assist in providing relief to the current overall
shortage of housing. Moreover, the subject Property's central location in Wailuku-
Kahului suggests that its impact will be very beneficial fo Maui's residential and
commercial sectors. No significant adverse impacts on hoqsing conditions are
anticipated. The DEIS will include a more thorough assessment of the proposed

project's anticipated impacts on housing.

16.  Need for the Reclassification. As previously noted, the conceptual master
plan is consistent with the guidelines and parameters specified in “Chapter 8: Directed
Growth Plan” of the Draft Maui Island Plan (December 2009) as it relates to the Wai'ale
planned growth area. As noted in the Directed Growth Plan, Wai'ale is the largest
planned growth area in the Wailuku-Kahului community plan region and will provide
roughly 50% of the additional residential units needed in the Central Maui region to
address the housing needs of Maui residents. The Project will also meet the

requirements of the Maui Residential Workforce ITousing Policy (“MRWHP”).
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Additionally, and to the extent feasible, housing credits (through the development of
affordable housing units in excess of that required by the MRWHTP) may be sought
through the development of the Project. These housing credits could be applied to
Petitioner’s other projects. The Project also includes 50 acres that will be conveyed to
ﬂ1e County of Maui for affordable housing (40 acres), park (3 acres) and community
center (7 acres). This land contribution is to satisfy Maui County zoning conditions for
another project (Maui Business Par'k Phase II) in the Wailuku-Kahului -region. The
proposed Project will provide needed housing in close proximity to existing urban
development, infrastructure, and employment centers. The Project’s location is central
to employment centers on the island of Maui. The reclassification of the Property as
proposed herein will not result in scattered, spot urban development. A detailed

analysis of the need for the Project will be included in the DEIS.

17. Conformance with the Hawai'i State Plan. Chapter 226, HRS, also known
as the Hlawai'i State Plan, is a long-range comprehensive plan which serves és a guide
for the future long-term development of the State by identifying goals, objectives,
policies, and priorities, as well as implementation mechanisms. Examples of State
objectives and policies relevant to the proposed Project are as follows:

1. Section 226-05, Objectives and volicies for population. To achieve this
objective, it shall be the State policy to:

a. Promote increased opportunities for Hawai'i's people to pursue
their socio-economic aspirations throughout the islands.

22



b. Plan the development and availability of land and water resources
in a coordinated manner so as to provide for the desired levels of
growth in each geographic ared.

2. Section 226-19, Objectives and policies for socio-cultural advancement-
housing. To achieve the housing objectives, it shall be the policy of the State to:

a. Effectively accommodate the housing needs of Hawai*i’s people.

b. Stimulate and promote feasible approaches that increase housing
choices for low-income, moderate-income, and gap-group
households.

C. Increase homeownership and rental opportunities and choices in

terms of quality, location, cost, densities, style, and size of housing.

The DEIS will include a full review of applicable State Plan objectives and

policies, as well as priority guidelines. In addition, the DEIS will examine the proposed
Project’s relationship to applicable State Functional Plans.

18.  Conformance with the Coastal Zone Management Program. Hawai'i’s

Coastal Zone Management Program (“CZM”), Chapter 205 A, HRS establishes
numerous objectives, policies and standards to guide and regulate public and private
uses within the designated cdéstal management area, Although the Property is not
located within the County’s Special Management Area (“SMA”), the proposed
development’s relationship to the following applicable CZM objectives and policies
have been reviewed. A more detailed discussion of the Project’s conformance to the

CZM will be included in the DEIS.
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Recreational Resources Section 205A-2(b)(1)(A) provides that the CZM objective
is to “provide coastal recreational opportunities accessible to the public.” Applicable
policies to achieve this objective include:

Provide adequate, accessible and diverse recreational opportunities in the coastal zone

management areq by:

Providing an adequate supply of shoreline parks and other recreational facilities suitable

for public recreation.

The proposed Project will not adversely affect coastal zone recreational
opportunities. Accessibility to the shoreline will not be impacted by this Project.
Additional recreational opporturﬁﬁeé will be provided by additional park and open
space that will be part of the proposed development.

Historic Résoqrces Section 205A-2(b)(2)(A) provides that the CZM objective is to
“protect, preserve and, where desirable, restore those natural and manmade historic
and prehistoric Tesourees in the coastal zone management area that are significant in
Hawaiian and American history and culture.” Applicable policies to .a&ﬁeve this
objective include:

Identify and analyze significant archaeological resources.

Support state goals for protection, restoration, interpretation and display of historic
resources. '

An archaeological inventory survey of the Property has been conducted and will
be included in the DEIS. This includes archaeological work undertaken in conjunction
with Hawaiian Cement’s sand mining activities within the northwestern portion of the

Property. Burials have been identified within this area and mitigation measures,
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including a plan for long term preservation are being formulated in consultation with
the State Department of Land and Natural Resources Historic Preservation Division
(“SHPD”) and the Maui/Lanai Islands Burial Council. Several cultural preserves are
planned within the Project to safeguard these burial sites. With appropriate mitigation
measures, the proposed Project is not anticipated to adversely impact historic or
archaeological resources.

Scenic and Open Space Resources Section 205A-2(b}(3)(A) provides that the CZM
objective is to “protect, preserve and, where desirable restore or improve the quality of
coastal scenic and open space resources.” Applicable policies to achieve this objective

include:

Ensure that new developments are compatible with their visual environment by

designing and locating such developments to minimize the alteration of natural

landforms and existing public views to and along the shoreline.

Encourage those developments which are not constal dependent to locate in inland areas.

The proposed Project will not adversely impact scenic or open space resources.
The Project is located inland of the shoreline and will not affect public views to and
along the shoreline.

Coastal Ecosystems Section 205A-2(b)(4)(A) provides that the CZM objective is to
“protect valuable coastal ecosystems, including reefs, from disruption and minimize

adverse impacts on all coastal ecosystems.” Applicable policies to achieve this objective

include:
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Minimize disruption or degradation of coastal water ecosystems by effective regulation of
stream diversions, channelization, and similar land and water uses, recognizing
competing water needs.

Petitioner will ensure that appropriate erosion control measures are
implemented during construction of the proposed development to prevent significant
impacts upon coastal water Vecosystems. The natural drainage characteristics of
Waikapu Stream will not be altered. The master plan for the Project provides a
greenway and open space buffer along the stream to enable uninterrupted natural flows
to occur. All drainage improvements within the Project will be designed in accordance
with applicable County standards to ensure no adverse impacts to downstream
properties. The DEIS will include a preliminary drainage report covering the drainage
characteristics of the Property, potential impacts resulting from the proposed Project,
and proposed mitigation measures.

Coastal Hazards Section 205A-2(b)(6}(A) provides that the CZM objective is to
“reduce hazard to life and property frém tsunami, storm waves, stream flooding,
erosion, subsidence and pollution.” Applicable policies to achieve this objective
include:

Control development in areas subject to storm wave, tsuném'i, flood, erosion, hurricane,

wind, subsidence, and point and nonpoint pollution hazards. ,

Ensure that developments comply with reguirements of the Federal Flood Insurance

Program.

As previously noted, the natural drainage characteristics of Waikapu Stream will

not be altered. The master plan for the Project provides a greenway and open space
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buffer along the stream to enable uninterrupted natural flows to occur. Development of
the Project will be done in compliance with Federal Flood Insurance Program
standards. All drainage improvements wﬁl be designed in accordance with applicable
County standards to ensure no adverse impacts to downstream properties. The DEfS
will include a preliminary draiﬁage report covering the drainage characteristics of the
Property, potential impacts resulting from thé proposed Project, and proposed
mitigation measures.

Managing Development Section 205A-2(b)(7)(A) provides that the CZM objective
is to “improve the development review process, communication, and public
participation in the management of coastal resources and hazards”. Applicable policies
to achieve this objective include:

Facilitate timely processing of applications for development permits and resolve
overlapping of conflicting permit requirements. .

Communicate the potential short and long term impacts of proposed significant coastal
developments early in their life cycle and in terms understandable to the public fo
facilitate public participation in the planning and review process.

The land use district boundary amendment process initiated by this Petition, as
well as the associated environmental review process being undertaken pursuant to
Chapter 343 HRS, will involve a comprehensive review of the proposed Project by
various governmental agencies and community organizations, Public participation

concerning the proposed Project will be afforded via public hearings and written

comments concerning the DEIS.
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Based on the foregoing, the proposed development is not anticipated to have an
adverse impact on the SMA and is consistent with the objectives and policies of the

CZM.

19. Conformance with the County General Plan, Community Plan, and

Zoning. The Maui County General Plan (1990 Update) sets forth broad objectives and
policies to help guide the long-range development of the County. As stated in the Maui
County Charter, the General Plan shall:

”...indicate desired population and physical development patterns for each
island and region within the County; shall address the unique problems
and needs of each island and region; shall explain the opportunities and
the social, economic, and environmental consequences related o potential
developments; and shall set forth the desired sequence, patterns, and
characteristics of future developments. The General Plan shall identify
objectives to be achicved, and priorities, policies, and implementing actions
to be pursued with respect to population density, land use maps, land use
regulations, transportation systems, public and community facility
locations, water and sewage systems, visitor destinations, urban design,
and other matters related to development.”

The Maui County General Plan advances five (5) major themes that focus on the
overall goals of the plan. The proposed project responds to the following General Plan
themes:

Theme Number 2 Prepare a Directed and Managed Growth Plan

Amendments to the General Plan will preserve a desired quality of life where
areas of urban settlement must be managed and directed within g framework that
consistently and concurrently balances growth demands against human service
needs and physical infrastructure supply.
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Theme Number 5 Provide for Needed Resident Housing

Amendments to the General Plan address the development of resident housing as
a major social need in our community.

The proposed action is in keeping with the following-General Plan objectives and
policies:

POPULATION

Objective

To plan the growth of resident and visitor population through a directed
and managed growth plan so as to avoid social, economic and

environmental disruptions.

Policy

Balance population growth by achieving concurrency between the resident
emﬁloyee work force, the job inventory created by new industries,
affordable resident/employee housing, constraints on the environment and
its natural vesources, public and private infrastructure, and essential
social services such as schools, hospitals, etc. '

LAND USE

Objectives

1. To preserve for present and future generations existing geographic,
cultural and traditional community lifestyles by limiting and
managing growth through environmentally sensitive and effective
use of land in accordance with the individual character of the
various communities and regions of the County.
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2. To use the land within the County for the social and economic
benefit of all the County's residents.

Policies

1 Provide and maintain a range of land use districls sufficient to
meet the social, physical, environmental and economic needs of the
community.

2. Encourage land use methods that will provide a continuous

balanced inventory of housing types in all price ranges.

3. Encourage programs to stabilize affordable land and housing
prices.

HOUSING
Objective

To provide a choice of attractive, sanitary and affordable homes for all our
residents.

Policies

1. Encourage the construction of housing in a variety of price ranges
and geographic locations.

2, Ensure that each community plan region contains its fair share of
affordable housing.

URBAN DESIGN

Objective

To encourage developments which reflect the character and the culture of
Maui County's people.
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Policy
Encourage community design which establishes a cohesive identity.

RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE

Objective

To provide high-quality recreational facilities to meet the present and
future needs of our residents of all ages and physical ability.

Policy

Deuvelop facilities that will meet the different recreational needs of the
various communities.

Draft Maui Island Plan (December 2009)

The Draft Maui Island Plan (December 2009) is a part of the County's on-going
effort to prepare the General Plan 2030 of the County of Maui. Intended fo provide a
long-term comprehensive strategic planning doqument for the physical, economic,
environmental development and cultural identity of the County, it encompasses goals,
polices, programs and actions that are recommended based on an assessment of current
and future needs and available resources. As noted in Chapter 8, “Directed Growth
Plan” of the Draft Maui Island Plan (December 2009), Wai'ale is the largest planned
growth area in the Wailuku-Kahului community plan region. Wai'ale is expected to
provide roughly 50% of the additional residential units needed in the Central Maui
region to address the future housing needs of Maui residents within the 2030 planning

horizon. The Project’s conceptual master plan has been prepared consistent with the
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guidelines and parameters specified in Directed Growth Plan. As discussed in the Draft
Maui Island Plan, the rationale for planned growth at Wai'ale includes its proximity to
existing employment centers and infrastructure, good highway access and buildable
topography. The Directed Growth Map within the Draft Maui Island Plan, includes the
Property within the proposed Utban Growth Boundary.

Within Maui County, there are nine (9) community plan regions. From a General
Plan implementation standpoint, each region is governed by a community plan which
sets forth desired land use ;éatterns, as well as goals, objectives, policies, and
implementing actions for a number of functional areas including infrastructure-related
parameters. The proposed Project is located within the Wailuku-Kahului Community
Plan region. The existing Community Plan land use designations for the Property are
set forth in the Wailuku—KahuIﬁi Community Plan Land Use Map. The subject Property
is designated ”Agriculturé” on the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan Map. To modify
the Community Plan to be consistent with the draft Maui Island Plan (2009), the
applicant will file a commurﬁty. plan amendment application to change the designation
from “Agricuiture” to “Project District”. The intent of the Project District desigﬁation is
to allow for flexibility and creativity in the master planning and development of the
Project. Project Districts are governed under Section 19.45.010 of the Maui County

Code.
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The proposed Project is also in conformance with the following, more general,
goals, objectives, and policies of the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan.

LAND LISE
Goal

An attractive, well-planned community with a mixture of compatible land
uses in appropriate areas to accommodate the future needs of residents and
visitors in a manner that provides for the social and economic well-being
of residents and the preservation and enhancement of the region’s
environmental resources and traditional towns and villages.

Objectives and Policies

1. Establish an adequate supply of urban land use designations to
meet the needs of the community over the next 20 years.

2. Maintain a project district approach for the major residential

' growth areas adjacent to Wailuku, Kahului and Waichu to allow
flexibility in master planning. These project districts may contain
a variety of residential unit types as well as supporting community
services, including business, public, recreational and educational
facilities.

HOUSING
Goal

A sufficient supply and choice of attractive, sanitary and affordable
 housing accommodations for the broad cross section of residents, including
the elderly.

QObjectives and Policies

1 Utilize a project district planning approach for major housing
expansion areas which will allow flexibility in project planning.
This will provide for flexible development standards and a mix of
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housing types which can result in more efficient site utilization
and potential reductions in housing development costs.

2. Provide sufficient land areas for new residential growth which
relax constraints on the housing market and afford variety in type,
price, and location of units. Opportunities for the preservation of
housing are presently constrained by a lack of expansion aress.
This condition should be relieved by a choice of housing in a
variety of locations, both rural and urban in character.

3. Seek alternative residential growth areas within the planning
region, with high priority given to the Wailuku and Kahului areas.
This action should recognize that crucial issues of maintaining
important agricultural lands, achieving efficient patterns of
growth, and providing adequate housing supply and choice of price
and location must be addressed and resolved.

4. Coordinate the planning, design and construction of public
infrastructure improvements with major residential projects that
have an affordable housing component.

SOCIAL INFRASTRUCTURE

Goal

Develop and maintain an efficient and responsive system of public services
which promotes a safe, healthy and enjoyable lifestyle, accommodates the
needs of young, elderly, disabled, and disadvantaged persons, and offers
opportunities for self-improvement and community well-being.

Objectives and Policies

1. Provide park and recreation areas as an integral part of project
district specifications which will accommodate the needs of

- population growth.
2. Ensure that adequate regional/community park facilities are

provided to service new residential developments.
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The subject Property is currently zoned "Agricultural" by the County of Maui. A
change in zoning application will be filed as part of the entitlement applications to
implement the proposed Project. The zoning application will seek Project District
designation pursuant to Section 19.45.010 of the Maui County Code.

20.  Development of fhe Property. Substantial development of the Property is
anticipated to be accomplished within ten (10) years after the date of the Commission’s
approval.

21.  Hawaiian Customary. and Traditional Rights. Petitioner is aware of and
sensitive to the existence and practice of native Hawaiian customary and traditional
rights that are protected by Article XII, Section 7 of the Hawai'i State Constitution. A
cultural impact assessment for the Property will be prepared and included in the
Project’'s DEIS. As previously noted, burials have been identified within this area and
mitigation measures, including a pian for long term preservation are being formulated
in consultation with the State Department of Land and Natural Resources Historic
Preservation Division (“SHPD”) and the Maui/Lanai Islands Burial Council.

22,  Written Comments From Ag—encies and Organizations. Assuming the
Commission determines that it is the appropriate accepting authority for the EISPN, the
EISPN will be circulated for agency and public comment. Written comments to the
EISPN from various agencies and organizations, including responses, will be included

in the Project’s DEIS.,
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Based on the foregoing, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Commission
finds that the Pefition meets the standards for detérmim’ng Urban District boundaries
pursuant to HAR Sections 15-15-18 and 15-15-21, and amends the land use district

boundary of the Property from the State Land Use Agricultural District to the State

Land Use Urban District.
DATED: Honolulu, Hawai'i, August 25, 2010
Of Counsel: / o '
MATSUBARA —KOTAKE BEN]. N M. MATSUBARA
A Law Corporation CURTIST. TABATA
Attorneys for Petitioner
A&B PROPERTIES, INC.
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BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION

OF THE STATE OF HAWAT'T
In the Matter of the Petition of ) DOCKET NO. A10-789
)
A&B PROPERTIES, INC. ) A&BPROPERTIES, INC.
. ) '
To Amend the Agricultural Land )
* Use District Boundary into the )
Urban District for approximately p]
545.229 acres at Wailuku and )
Waikapu, County of Maui, State of )
Hawai'i, TMK: 3-8-05: portion of )
23 and 37, 3-8-07: 71, portion of )
101 and 104 )
)
VERIFICATION

Grant Y. M. Chun, being first duly sworn, on oath, deposes and says that he is
Vice President of A&B Properties, Inc,, a Hawai'i corporation, and as such is authorized
to make this verification on behalf of said corporation; that he has read the foregoing
pet’iﬁoﬁ and knows the contents thereof; and that the same are true to the best of his
‘ knowledge, information and belief.

Dated: Kahului, Maui, Hawai'i, August 23, 2010

A rawnrc fm/\«/w

GRANT Y. M."CHUN
A&B Properties, Inc.
Tts Vice President
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Notary Public, State of Hawaj i gy

My Commission expires: Volsord

NOTARY CERTIFICATE (Hawai'i Administrative Rules §5-11-8)

Document Tdentification or Description: Petition For Land Use District Boundary Amendment;
Verification; Exhibits “1” Through “8”*; Affidavit Of Service Of petitioner For Land Use District
Boundary Amendment; Affidavit Of Notification Of Petition Filing And Certificate Of Service
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822 Bishop Street

Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
P.0O. Box 3440

Honclulu, HI 96801-3440
www.alexanderbaldwin.com
Tel (808) 525-6611

Fax {B08) 525-6052

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.

July 1, 2010

Land Use Commission
State of Hawaii

P. O. Box 2359

Honolulu, HI 96804-2359

Re: State Land Use District Boundary Amendment
Waiale Community Project

Ladies and Gentlemen;

Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. is the owner in fee simple of those certain properties
located at Wailuku and Waikapu, Maui, Hawaii, identified by Tax Map Key 3-8-05: 23
and 37 and 3-8-07: 71, 101 and 104. A&B Properties, Inc. intends to develop

approximately 545 acres of said parcels for a master planned residential community
known as the Waiale Community Project.

Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. hereby authorizes A&B Properties, Inc. and its agents
to prepare, file, process and obtain all necessary permits and approvals relating to the

development of the Waiale Community Project, including but not limited to, a State Land
Use District Boundary Amendment.

Sincerely,

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC,

W/%/

Tts SENIOR WICE RESIDENT

“Tts ASST. SRETARY
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DESCRIPTION
PETITION AREA “A”

TAX MAP KEY: (2) 3-8-007:071, 104
AND 101 (PORTION]

All of that certain parcel of land, being all of Lot 1-B of the Kopaa Subdivision, a
portion of Lot 12-A of the Maui Lani Subdivision and portions of Grant 3152 to Henry
Cornwell and Grant 3343 to Claus Spreckels situated at Wailuku and Waikapu,
Waikapu, Island and County of Maui, State of Hawaii

Begmning at the northeasterly corner of this parcel of land, on the westerly side of
Kuihelani Highway [F. A. S. P. No. S-0380 (4)], said point being also the southeasterly
corner of Lot 11-C of the Maui Lani Development, the coordinates of said point of
beginning referred to Government Survey Triangulation Station “LUKE” 8,081.64 feet
South and 5,711.01 feet East and running by azimuths measured clockwise True
South:

1. Along the westerly side of Kuihelani Highway [F.A.S.P. No. 3-0380 (4)] on a
curve to the left with a radius of
11,562.16 feet, the chord -
azimuth and distance being:
33° 53’ 39.8” 576.30 feet;

2. 122¢ 27 58.8” 12.00 feet along the westerly side of
Kuihelani Highway [F.A.S.P. No.
3-0380(4)],

3. Thence aleng same on a curve to the left with a radius of 11,574.16 feet, the
chord azimuth and distance
being:
30° 08" 14.4” 940.69 feet;

4, 27° 48 307 367.40 feet along the westerly side of
Kuihelani Highway [F.A.S.P. No.
3-0380 (4)];

5. 117° 48 30" 20.00 feet along same;

6. 27 48  30” 200.00 feet along same;

7. 297° 48" 30" 5.00 feet along same;

8. 27° 48 30”7 800.00 feet along same;

9. 117° 48 307 35.00 feet along same;
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10.
11.
12.

13.

14,
15.

16.

17.

18.

19,

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

26,

27°

297°

27°

107°

191°

101°

322°

o7°

327°

28°

118°

147°

281°

178°

48’
48’
48’

45’

45
45’

o7

14°

14’

00’

00’

14’

45’

00’

30" 400.00 feet

30 15.00 feet
30”7 33.22 feet
722.49 feet
462 .02 feet

2,615.78 feet

271.76 feet

41” 4 .58 feet

41% 465.24 feet

346.45 feet

199.99 feet

417 1,104.41 feet

131.86 feet

974.79 feet

along same;
along same;
along same;

along Lot 1-C of the Kopaa
Subdivision;

along same:;
along same;

along Lot 1-B of the Kopaa

. Subdivision;

along same;

along the remainder of Grant
3152 to Henry Cornwell (T.M.K:
(2)3-8-007:071);

along same;

along the northerly side of Waiko
Road;

along same and along Lot 1-B of
the Kopaa Subdivision;

along Lot 1-B of the Kopaa
Subdivision;

along the remainder of Lot 12-C
of the Maui Lani Subdivision;

Thence along same on a curve to the right with a radius of 1,784.00 feet, the

183°

09’

450.00 feet

chord azimuth and distance
being:

171° 04° 30"  746.40 feet;
along the remainder of Lot 12-C
of the Maui Lani Subdivision;

Thence along same on a curve to the left with a radius of 1,210.00 feet, the
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chord azimuth and distance
being:

167° 18’ 32.5”  660.58 feet;



27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

237°

184°

152°

161°

185°

284°

304°

20

50’
20’
33’
45’

48’

o0’

71.90 feet

250.00 feet
309.00 feet
704.00 feet
445.47 feet

20”7 2,739.12 feet

3,264.73 feet

Prepared by: A&B Properties, Inc.

LIGENSED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND

SURVEYOR
Ho. L8-7833

Kahului, Maui, Hawaii

along Lot 12-B of the Maui Lani
Subdivision;

along same;

along same;

along samec;

along same;

along Lot 11-D-1-A-1-F, Lot 11-
D-1-A-1-A-1 and Lot 11-D-1-A-2
of the Maui Lani Development;
along Lot 11-D-1-A-2, Lot 11-D-
1-A-4-B, Lot 11-D-1-A-4-A and
Lot 11-C of the Maui lani
Development to the point of

beginning and containing an
Area of 422.594 Acres.

July 10, 2009

This work was prepared by me or under my supervision.
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LicensedProfessional Land Surveyor
Certificate No. L8-7633
Expiration Date: 4/30/2010
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DESCRIFTION
PETITION AREA “B”

TAX MAP KEY: (2)3-8-005:037 AND 023 (PORTION)

All of that certain parcel of land, being all of Lot 3 and a portion of Lot 4 of the Walter
K. Shenk Subdivision, being also a portion of Grant 3152 to Henry Cornwell situated
at Waikapu, Wailuku, Island and County of Maui, State of Hawaii

Beginning at the northwesterly corner of this parcel of land, on the southerly side of
Waiko Road, the coordinates of said point of beginning referred to Government
Survey Triangulation Station “LUKE” being 10,411.85 feet South and 136.75 feet
East and running by azimuths measured clockwise from True South:

1. 276° 30’ 340.00 feet along the southerly side of
Waiko Road;

2. Thence along same on a curve to the right with a radius of 1,020.00 feet, the
chord azimuth and distance
being:
287° 15° 380.51 feet;

3. 298° 00’ 498.99 feet - along the southerly side of
Waiko Road;
4, Thence along same on a curve to the left with a radius of 730.00 feet, the chord

azimuth and distance being;
285° 45° 309.78 feet to a point
of reverse curvature;

5. Thence along same on a curve to the right with a radius of 2,720.00 feet, the
chord azimuth and distance
being:
276° 00’ 237.29 feet;

6. 278 30° | 469.65 fect along the southerly side of
Waiko Road:

7. Thence along same on a curve to the right with a radius of 1,350.00 feet, the
chord azimuth and distance
being:
285° 07’ 30" 311.50 feet;

8. 291° 45’ 253.29 feet along the southerly side of
Waiko Road;

9. 287° 45’ 966.90 feet along same;
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10.

11.

12.

13.
14,
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

21.

22,
23.
24,
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.

30.

Thence along same on a curve to the left with a radius of 950.00 feet, the chord
azimuth and distance being:
17.54 feet;

287° 13’ 16"

Thence along same on a curve to the right with a radius of 30.00 feet, the chord
azimuth and distance being;

27°

117°
27°
297°
27°
117°
27°
297°
27°

107°

118°
142°
185°
189°
163°
190°
173°
176°

167°

48’

48’
48’
48’
48’
48’
48’
48’
48’

07’

45’
21’
32
02’
25’
55
16’
36’

13’

307

307
30"
30”
307
307
30”
30”

30!)

1,355.35 feet

5.00 feet
200.00 feet
5.00 feet
1,100.00 feet
10.00 feet
300.00 feet
5.00 feet
412 .45 feet

77.52 feet

55.17 feet
42.56 feet
67.95 feet
200.44 feet
89.55 feet
148.50 feet
183,73 feet
223.95 feet

199 .83 feet
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337° 15’017

along the

46.34 feet;

westerly

side

of

Kuihelani Highway [F.A.S.P. No.

5-0380{4);

along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;

along same;

along the remainder of Lot 4 of
the Walter K. Shenk Subdivision
(being the remainder of Grant
3152 to Henry Cornwell);

along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;

along same;



31.
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39,
40,
41.
42,
43.
44,
45.
46,
47.
48.
49.
50.
ol.
o2,
53.
54.

55.

157°
124°
154°
173°
142°
113°
i16°
174°
163°
148°
153¢
141°
129°
150°
140°
152°
162°
149°
137°
125°
133°
163°
133°
104°

102¢

1
26’
107
20’
44’
52’
58’
38’
17’
50°
15’
10°
37’
48’
37
01’
10°
24’
48’
46°
58’
28’
29’
06’

35’

146.91 feet
112.05 feet

85.83 feet
197.01 feet

23.99 feet

71.52 feet
112.02 feet
198.93 feet
251.92 feet
185.28 feet
119.97 feet
140.68 fect
127.19 feet
144 .58 feet
141.05 feet

63.16 feet
135.88 feet

78.67 feet

52.02 feet
119.73 feet
105.22 feet
108.03 feet
114.74 feet

83.47 feet

145.60 feet
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along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;

along same;



56, 122° 34 88.55 feet along same;

57. 128° 25 50.07 feet along same;
58. 145° 08’ 50.48 feet along same;
59. 155° 18 38.31 feet along same;
60. 171° 30 32.31 feet along same;
61. 175° 51’ 235.74 feet along same;
62. 140° 17’ 105.18 feet along same to the point of

beginning and containing an
Area of 122.635 Acres.

Prepared by: A&B Properties, Inc. July 10, 2009
Kahului, Maui, Hawaii

This work was prepared by me or under ny supervision,

7%174/%%& 4‘/ %b/ 20m

Ken T) Ncmura

Lxcen d Professional Land Surveyo
Certificate No. LS-7633

Expiration Date: 4/30/2010
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. PETITION AREA "B"

WALTER K. SHENK SUBDIVISION
(L.U.C. A. FILE NO. 3.1348)

Boing a portion of Grant 3152 1o Heary Comwall

SCALE: 1 Inch = 300 fool
rad by: A i
Pesgarad by: AL Prgarton ac.
Karukd g8z
DWNER: Alexandar & Baldwin, n.

ROTES:
1. Azimuthe and ceordinetes shwwn rsferred 1o Govemnment Burvey Trisngulation . Station "LUKE".

2. Owmers of adjacent propeties laken from records of the Real Properly Happing Branch.

WAIKARL, WAILUKU, MAUI, HAWAL
DATE: July 6, 2009

STATE LAND USE DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT

BEING LOT 3 AND PORTION OF LOT 4 OF THE

—
e

-_‘_:“'

" —,

Tax Map Key: (2) 3-8-005: 037 and 023 (Portlon)




STATUS REPORT

Maximum liability limited to
$3,500.00

This report {and any revisions thereto} is issued solely for the
convenience of the titleholder, the titleholder's agent, counsel,
purchaser or mortgagee, or the person ordering it.

SCHEDULE A

Title Guaranty of Hawail, Incorporated, hereby reports that, subject
to those matters set forth in Schedule "B" hereof, the title to the

estate or interest to the land described in Schedule "C" hereof is
vested in:

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, IWC.,
a Hawaii corporation,
as Fee Owner

This report is dated as of March 19, 2010 at 8:00 a.m.

Inquiries concerning this report
should be directed to

MONIQUE AGARPAO.

Email magarpac@tghawaii.com

Fax (808} 521-0210

Telephone (808) 533-5610.

Refer to Order No. 201012558.

EXHIBIT "4"

201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. , Page 1

235 QUEEN ST., HONOLULU, HAWALI 98813, PH: (B08) 533-6261



SCHEDULE B

EXCEPTIONS
1. Real Property Taxes, if any, that may be due and owing.
Tax Key: (2) 3-8-005-023 Area Assessed: 342.400 acres
-Note:- Attention is invited fo the fact that the premises -

covered herein may be subject to possible rollback or
retroactive property taxes.

2. Reservation in favor of the State of Hawaii of all mineral and
metallic mines.

3. Free flowage of Waikapu Stream as shown on Tax Map.
4. The terms and provisions contained in the following:
INSTRUMENT : ROYAL PATENT GRANT NUMBER 3152
DATED :  HNovember 18, 1945

The foregeing includes, but is not limited to, matters relating
to reservation of native rights.

5. LICENSE
TO : MAUI ELECTRIC COMPANY, LIMITED
DATED : December 1, 1921
RECORDED t TLiber 621 Page 428
GRANTING t rights of way over, across and aleng any and all of
the permanent railway lines and/or roads for
utility purposes
201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inec. Page 2

235 QUEEN ST., HONOLULY, HAWAL 9581 3, PH: (808) 533-6261



SCHEDULE B CCONTINUED

6. LEASE
TO :  MAUT ELECTRIC COMPANY, LIMITED and HAWAILIAN
TELEPHONE COMPANY, now known as HAWAIIAN TELCOM,
INC.
DATED : August 5, 1960
RECORDED : Liber 3906  Page 64
LEASING + rights-of-way for utility purposes for a term of 35
years from the date hereof, and thereafter from year
to year until terminated
7. GRANT
TO :  COUNTY OF MAUT
DATED 1 September 19, 1961
RECORDED s Liber 4159 Page 172
GRANTING : a non-exclusive easement for water pipeline
purposes over Easement "G" (15 feet wide), more
particulary described therein
8. Vehicle access into and from Kahului Airport-Maalae Highway,

Federal Aid Secondary Project No. 5-0380 (4), shall bhe permitted
for agricultural purposes only, as contained in Deed dated August
16, 1971, recorded in Liber 7762 at Page 50 and as shown on Tax
Map.

9. Field L Pasture as shown on Tax Map.

10. 50 feet wvehicle access premitted as shown on Subdivison Map dated
September 9, 1987.

11. BAny unrecorded leases and matters arising from or affecting the
same.

201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 3
235 QUEEN §T., HONOLULU, HAWAII 6813, PH: {808) 533-6261



SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

12. Claims arising out of customary and traditional rights and
practices, including without limitation those exercised for
subsistence, cultural, religious, access or gathering purposes,

as provided for in the Hawail Constitution or the Hawaii Revised
Statutes.

13. Matters arising out of, including any access and utility rights

in favor of the parcel (unlocated kuleana) excluded in Schedule
C.

14. Discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area,
encroachments or any other matters which a correct survey or
archaeological study would disclose.

—-Note:- A current survey, with metes and bounds description,
should be made of said premises.

END OF SCHEDULE B

201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 4

245 QUEEN 5T., RONOLULU, HAWAIl 86813, PH: (808) 533-6251



SCHEDULE C

All of that certain parcel of land {(being portion{s) of the land(s)
described in and covered by Royal Patent Grant Number 3152 to H.
Cornwell and Royal Patent Number 4122, Land Commission Award Number
3397, Apana 3 to Puhi) situate, lying and being at Waikapu, Wailuku,
County of Maui, State of Hawaii, bearing Tax Key designation (2) 3-8-
005-023, and containing an area of 342.400 acres, more or less.

EXCEPTING AND EXCLUDING that portion of the above described parcel of
land, being an unlocated kuleana, affected by Royal Patent Number
4122, Land Commission Award Number 3397, Apana 3 to Puhi,

containing
an area of 1.65 acres, more or less.
~ BEING THE PREMISES ACQUIRED BY DERED
GRANTOR : ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation
GRANTEE 1 A&B-HAWAII, INC., a Hawaii corporation
DATED : March 30, 1989, but effective as of April 1, 1989
RECORDED * Liber 23006 Page 583
END OF SCHEDULE C
201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 5
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GENERARL NOTES

1. There is hereby omitted from any covenants, conditions and
reservations contained herein any covenant or restriction based
on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, familial
status, marital status, disability, handicap, national origin,
ancestry, or source of income, as set forth in applicable state
or federal laws, except to the extent that said covenant or
restriction is permitted by applicable law. Lawful restrictions
under state or federal law on the age of occupants in senior
housing or housing for older persons shall not be construed as
restrictions based on familial status.

2. Filed with the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs of the
State of Hawaii (Business Registration), 1s the merger of A&B-
HAWATII, INC., a Hawall corperation with and into ALEXANDER &
BALDWIN, INC. on December 31, 1998, by CERTIFICATE OF MERGER
dated January 3, 2000, recorded as Document No. 2000-003694.

201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 6

235 QUEEN ST, HONOLULU, HAWAII 96813, PH: (808) 533-6261



GUIDELINES FOR THE ISSUANCE OF INSURANCE

A. Taxes shown in Schedule B are as of the date such information is
available from the taxing authority. Evidence of payment of all
taxes and assessments subsequent to such date must be provided
prior to recordation.

B. Evidence of authority regarding the execution of all documents
pertaining to the transacticon is required prior to recordation.
This includes corporate resclutions, copies of partnership
agreements, powers of attorney and trust instruments.

C. If an entity (corporation, partnership, limited liability company,
etc.} is not registered in Hawaii, evidence of its formation and
existence under the laws where such entity is formed must be
presented prior to recordation.

D. If the transachtion involves a construction loan, the following is
required:

{1) a letter confirming that there is no construction prior to
recordation; or

{2) if there is such construction, appropriate indemnity
agreements, financial statements and other relevant information
from the owner, developer, general contractor and major sub-
contractors must be submitted to the Title Company for approval
at least one week prior to the anticipated date of recordation.

Forms are available upon reguest from Title Guaranty of Hawaii.

E. Chapter 66%, Hawaii Revised Statutes, sets forth acceptable
tolerances for discrepancies 1n structures or improvements relative
to private property boundaries for various classes of real
property. If your survey map shows a position discrepancy that
falls within the tolerances of Chapter 662, call your title officer
as affirmative coverage may be available to insured lenders.

F. The right is reserved to make additional exceptiens and/or

requirements upon examination of all documents submitted in
connection with this transaction.

G. If a policy of title insurance is issued, it will exclude from
coverage all matters set forth in Schedule B of this report and in
the printed Exclusions from Coverage contained in an ALTA policy or
in the Hawaii Standard Owner's Policy, as applicable. Different
forms may have different exclusions and should be reviewed. Copies
of the policy forms are available upon reguest from Title Guaranty
of Hawaii or on our website at www.tghawaiil.com.

201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 7
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DATE PRINTED: 3/25/2010

STATEMENT OF ASSESSED VALUES AND REAL PROPERTY TAXES DUE

NAME OF OWNER: A & B - HAWAII INC

LEASED TO
TAX MAP KEY
DIVISION ZONE SECTICN PLAT PARCEL HPR NO.
{2) 3 8 005 023 0000
CLASS: 5 AREA ASSESSED: 342.400 AC

ASSESSED VALUES FOR CURRENT YEAR TAXES: 2008

The records of this division show the assessed values and taxes on

the property designated by Tax Key shown above are as follows:

BUILDING 5 0
BEXEMPTION 5 0
NET VALUE 5 0
LAND S 143,400 AGRICULTURAL USE VALUERE
EXEMPTION s 0
NET VALUE S 143,400
TOTAL NET VALUE § 143,400
Installment (1 - due 8/20:; 2 ~ due 2/20) Tax Info &As Of - 8/30/2005
Tax Installment Tax Penalty Interest Other Total
Year Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
2009 2 322.65 322.65 PENDING
2009 1 322.65 322.65 PAID
2008 2 322.65 322.65 PATID
2008 1 322.65 322.65 PAID
Total Amount Due: 322.65

Penalty and Interest Computed to: 9/30/2009

201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc.
235 QUEEN ST., HONCLULU, HAWAI $6813, PH: (B0B) 533-6261
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STATUS REPORT

Maximum liability limited to
53,500.00

This report {and any revisions thereteo) is issued solely for the
convenience of the titleholder, the titleholder's agent, counsel,
purchaser or mortgagee, or the person ordering it.

SCHEDULE A

Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Incorporated, hereby reports that, subject
to those matters set forth in Schedule "B" hereof, the title to the
estate or interest to the land described in Schedule "C" hereof is
vested in:

ATLEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.,
a Hawail corporation,
as Fee Qwner

This report is dated as of March 18, 2010 at 8:00 a.m.

Inguiries concerning this report
should be directed to

MONIQUE AGARPAO.

Email magarpac@tghawaii.com

Fax (808} 521-0210

Telephone (808) 533-5610.

Refer to Order No. 201012563.

201012563 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 1
235 QUEEN ST., HONOLULU, HAWAII 96B13, PH: (808) 533-6261



SCHEDULE B

EXCEPTIONS
1. Real Property Taxes, if any, that may be due and owing.
Tax Key: (2) 3-8-005-037 Area Assessed: 10.000 acres
-Note:— Attention is invited to the fact that the premises

covered herein may be subject to possible rollback or
retroactive property taxes.

2. Reservation in favor of the State of Hawaii of all mineral and
metallic mines.

3. The terms and provisions contained in the following:
TINSTRUMENT : ROYAL PATENT GRANT NUMBER 3152
DATED t  November 18, 1945

The foregoing iancludes, but is not limited to, matters relating
to reservation of native rights.

4, Any unrecorded leases and matters arising from or affecting the
same.
5. Claims arising out of customary and traditional rights and

practices, including without limitation those exercised for
subsistence, cultural, religious, access or gathering purposes,
as provided for in the Hawaii Constitution or the Hawaii Revised

Statutes.
6. Matters arising out of, including any access and utility rights
in favor of the parcel {unlocated kuleana) excluded in Schedule
C.
201012563 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. : Page 2
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SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

7. Discrepancies, conflicts in beoundary lines, shortage in area,
encroachments or any other matters which a correct survey or
archaeclogical study would disclose.

~-Note:- A current survey, with metes and bounds description,
should be made of said premises.

END OF SCHEDULE B

201012563 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc.

Page 3
235 QUEEN ST., HONOLULU, HAWAIl 96813, PH: (B08) 5336261



SCHEDULE C

All of that certain parcel of land (being portion{s) of the land(s)
described in and covered by Royal Patent Grant Number 3152 to H.
Cornwell and Royal Patent Number 4122, Land Commission Award Number
3397, Apana 3 to Puhi) situate, lving and being at Waikapu, Wailuku,
County of Maui, State of Hawaii, bearing Tax Key designation (2) 3-8-
005-037, and containing an area of 10.000 acres, more or less.

EXCEPTING AND EXCLUDING that portion of the above described parcel of
land, being an unlocated kulesana, affected by Royal Patent Number

4122, Land Commissilon Award Number 3397, Apana 3 to Puhi, containing

an area of 1.65 acres, more 0or less.
BEING THE PREMISES ACQUIRED BY DEED
GRANTOR + ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawail corporation
GRANTER :  A&B-HAWATI, INC., a Hawaii corporation
DATED 1 March 30, 1988, but effective as of April 1, 1889
RECORDED : Liber 23006 Page 583

END OF SCHEDULE C
201012563 © Title Gunaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 4
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GENERAL NOTES

1. There is hereby omitted from any covenants, conditions and
reservations contained herein any covenant or restriction based
on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, familial
status, marital status, disability, handicap, national origin,
ancestry, or source of income, as set forth in applicable state
or federal laws, except to the extent that said covenant or
restriction is permitted by applicable law. Lawful restrictions
under state or federal law on the age of occupants in senior
housing or housing for older persons shall not be construed as
restrictions based on familial status.

2. Filed with the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs of the
State of Hawali (Business Registration), is the merger of A&B-
HAWAFI, INC., a Hawaii corporation with and into ALEXANDER &
BALDWIN, INC. on December 31, 1999, by CERTIFICATE OF MERGER
dated January 3, 2000, recorded as Document No. 2000-003694.

201012563 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 5
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GUIDELINES FOR THE ISSUANCE OF INSURANCE

A. Taxes shown in Schedule B are as of the date such information is
available from the taxing authority. Evidence of payment of all
taxes and assessments subsequent to such date must be provided
prior to recordation.

B. Evidence of authority regarding the execution of all documents
pertaining to the transaction is required pricr to recordation.
This includes corporate resolutions, coplies of partnership
agreements, powers of attorney and trust instruments.

C. If an entity {(corporation, partnership, limited liability company,
etc.) is not registered in Hawaii, evidence of its formation and
existence under the laws where such entity is formed must be
presented prior to recordation.

D. If the transaction involves a construction loan, the following is
required:

(1) a letter confirming that there is no construction pricr to
recordation; or

{2) if there is such construction, appropriate indemnity _
agreements, financial statements and other relevant informaticn
from the owner, developer, general contractor and major sub-
contractors must be submitted to the Title Company for approval
at least one week prior to the anticipated date of recordation.

Forms are available upon request from Title Guaranty of Hawaii.

E. Chapter 669, Hawali Revised Statutes, sets forth acceptable
tolerances for discrepancies in structures or improvements relative
to private property boundaries for various classes of real
property. If your survey map shows a position discrepancy that
falls within the tolerances of Chapter 669, call your title cifficer
as affirmative coverage may be available to insured lenders.

F. The right is reserved to make additiconal exceptions and/or
reguirements upon examination of all documents submitted in
connection with this transaction.

G. If a policy of title insurance is issued, it will exclude from
coverage all matters set forth in Schedule B of this report and in
the printed Exclusions from Coverage contained in an ALTA policy or
in the Hawaii Standard Owner's Policy, as applicable. Different
forms may have different exclusions and should be reviewed. Copiles
of the policy forms are available upon reguest from Title Guaranty
of Hawail or on our website at www.tghawaii.com,

201012563 © Title Guaranty of Hawait, Inc. Page 6
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DATE PRINTED: 3/25/2010

STATEMENT OF ASSESSED VALUES AND REAL PRCPERTY TAXES DUE

NAME OF OWNER: A & B - HAWAII INC

LEASED TO H
TAX MAP EREY
DIVISION ZONE SECTICON PLAT PARCEL HPR NO.
{2) 3 8 005 037 0000
CLASS: 5 AREA ASSESSED:

ASSESSED VALUES FOR CURRENT YEAR TAXES: 2009

10,000 AC

The records of thils division show the assessed values and taxes on

the property designated by Tax Key shown above are as follows:

BUILDING 5 0
EXEMETION 5 0
NET VALUE 3 0
LAND $ 5,000 AGRICULTURAL USE VALUE
EXEMPTION $ ' 0
NET VALUE 5 5,000
TOTAL NET VALUE S 5,000
Installment (1 — due 8/20; 2 - due 2/20) Tax Info As Of - 9/30/2009
Tax Installment Tax Penalty Interest Other Total
Year Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
2008 2 75.00 75.00 PENDING
2009 1 75.00 75.00 PAID
2008 2 30.00 30.00 PAID
2008 1 30.00 30.00 PAID
Total Amount Due: 75.00
Penalty and Interest Computed to: 9/30/2009
201012563 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 7
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STATUS REPORT

Maximum liability limited to
$3,500.00

This report (and any revisions thereto) is issued solely for the
convenience of the titleholder, the titleholder's agent, counsel,
purchaser or mortgagee, or the person ordering it.

SCHEDULE A

Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Incorporated, hereby reports that, subiect
to those matters set forth in Schedule "B"™ hereof, the title to the
estate or interest to the land described in Schedule "C" hereof is
vested in:

ATLEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.,
a Hawali corporation,
as Fee Owner

This report is dated as of March 22, 2010 at B8:00 a.m.

Inquiries concerning this report
should be directed to

MONIQUE AGARPAQ.

Email magarpao@tghawaii.com

Fax {(808) 521-0210

Telephone (808) 533-5610.

Refer to Order No. 201012570.

201012570 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Pags 1
235 QUEEN 8T., HONOLULU, HAWAII 86813, PH; (BOB) 533-6261



SCHEDULE B
EXCEPTIONS

1. Real Property Taxes, if any, that may be due and owing.

Tax Key: (2) 3-8-007-071 Area Assessed: 5.043 acres

-Note:- BAttention is invited to the fact that the premises
covered herein may be subject to possible rollback or
retroactive property taxes.

2. Reservation in favor of the State of Hawaii of all mineral and
metallic mines.

3. The terms and provisions contained in the following:
INSTRUMENT : ROYAL PATENT GRANT NUMBER 3152
DATED v November 18, 1945

The foregoing includes, but is not limited to, matters relating
to reservation of native rights.

4, Any unrecorded leases and matters arising from or affecting the
same.
5. Claims arising out of customary and traditional rights and

practices, incliuding without limitation those exercised for
subsistence, cultural, religious, access or gathering purposes,
as provided for in the Hawaii Constitution or the Hawaii Revised
Statutes.

6. Discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area,
encroachments or any other matters which a correct survey or
archaeological study would disclose.

END OF SCHEDULE B

201012570 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 2
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SCHEDULE C

All of that certain parcel of land (being portion(s) of the land{s)
described in and covered by Royal Patent Grant Number 3152 to H.

Cornwell)

State of Hawaii,

situate, lying and being Waikapu, Wailuku, County of Maui,
and thus bounded and described:

Beginning at a pipe at the southeasterly corner of this parcel of

land, on the northerly side
point of beginning referred
"LUKE"™ being 10,652.35 feet
thence by azimuths measured

1. 118° 00"
2. 147° 14"
3. 237° 14"
4. 327° 14r
D. 28° 00
BEING THE
GRANTOR
GRANTEE
DATED
RECORDED
201012570

200.00
14" 460.00
41" 400.00
41" 465.24
346.45

of Walkapu Road, the coordinates of said
te Government Survey Triangulation Station
south and 1,133.48 feet east and running
clockwise from true South:

feet along the northerly side of
Waikapu Road to a pipe:

feet along the remaining portion of
Grant 3152 to H. Cornwell land owned
by Alexander and Baldwin, In. to a
pipe;

feet along same to a pipe;
feet along same to a pipe;
feet along same to the point of

beginning and containing an area of
5.043 acres, more or less.

PREMISES ACQUIRED BY DEED

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation

A&B-HAWATI,

INC., a Hawail corporation

March 30, 1989, but effective as of April 1, 1989

Liber 23006

Page 583

END OF SCHEDULE C

© Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 3
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GENERAL NOTES

1. There 1is hereby omitted from any covenants, conditions and
reservations contained herein any covenant or restriction based
on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, familial
status, marital status, disability, handicap, mnational origin,
ancestry, or source of income, as set forth in applicable state
or federal laws, except to the extent that said covenant or
restriction is permitted by applicable law. TLawful restrictions
under state or federal law on the age of occupants in senior
housing or housing for older persons shall not be construed as
restrictions based on familial status.

2. Filed with the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs of the
State of Hawailil (Business Registration), is the merger of A&B-
HAWAII, INC., a Hawaii corporation with and into ALEXANDER &
BALDWIN, INC. on December 31, 1999, by CERTIFICATE OF MERGER
dated January 3, 2000, recorded as Document No. 2000-003694.

201012570 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 4
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GUIDELINES FOR THE ISSUANCE OF INSURANCE

A. Taxes shown in Schedule B are as of the date such information is
available from the taxing authority. Evidence of payment of all
taxes and assessments subsequent to such date must be provided
prior to recordation.

B. Evidence of authority regarding the execution of all deocuments
pertaining to the transaction is required prior to recordation.
This includes corporate resolutions, copies of partnership
agreements, powers of attorney and trust instruments.:

C. If an entity (corporation, partnership, limited liability company,
etc.) is not registered in Hawaii, evidence of its formation and
existence under the laws where such entity is formed must be
presented prior to recordation.

D. If the tramnsaction involves a construction loan, the following is
required:

(1) a letter confirming that there is no construction prior to
recordation; or

{2) if there is such construction, appropriate indemnity _
agreements, financial statements and other relevant informatiocom
from the owner, developer, general centractor and major sub-
contractors must be submitted to the Title Company for approval
at least one week prior to the anticipated date of recordation.

Forms are available upon request from Title Guaranty of Hawaii.

E. Chapter 669%, Hawaili Revised Statutes, sets forth acceptable
tolerances for discrepancies in structures or improvements relative
to private property boundaries for various classes of real
property. If your survey map shows a position discrepancy that
falls within the tolerances of Chapter 668, call your title officer
as affirmative coverage may be available to insured lenders.

F. The right is reserved to make additional exceptions and/or
requirements upon examination of all documents submitted in
connection with this transaction.

G. If a policy of title insurance is issued, it will exclude from
coverage all matters set forth in Schedule B of this report and in
the printed Exclusions from Coverage contained in an ALTA policy or
in the Hawaii Standard Owner's Policy, as applicable. Different
forms may have different exclusions and should be reviewed. Copies
of the policy forms are available upon reguest from Title Guaranty
of Hawaii or on our website at www.tghawaii.com.

201012570 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 5
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DATE PRINTED:

STATEMENT OF ASSESSED VALUES AND REAL PROPERTY TAXES DUE

3/25/2010

NAME OF OWNER: A & B - HAWAIT INC

LEASED TO

CLASS: 5

TAX MAP KEY

DIVISION ZONE SECTION PLAT PARCEL HPR NO.

(2) 3

8

Qo7 071 0000

AREA ASSESSED:

ASSESSED VALUES FOR CURRENT YEAR TAXES: 2009

5.043 AC

The records of this division show the assessed values and taxes on

the property designated by Tax Key shown above are as follows:

Installment

Tax Installment Tax
Year Amount
2009 2 75.00
2009 1 75.00
2008 2 30.00
2008 1 320.00

Penalty and Interest

2010612570

(1 - due 8/20;

BUILDING
EXEMPTION
NET VALUE
LAND

EXEMPTION
NET VALUE

TOTAL NET VALUE

Penalty
Amount

Computed to:

$
$
5
$
S
S
$

2 - due 2/20)

Interest
Amount:

0
0
0

100 AGRICULTURAL USE VALUE

0
100
100

Tax Infoc As Of -

Other
Amount

Total Amount Due:

© Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc.

235 QUEEN ST,, HONOLULY, HAWAI 95813, PH: (B0B) 533-6261

9/30/2009

Total

Amount
75,00 PENDING
75.00 PAID
30.00 PAID
30.00 PAID
75.00
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REVISED -~ 7/14/2010
report date unchanged

STATUS REPORT

Maximum liability limited to
$3,500.00

This report (and any revisions thereto) is issued solely for the
convenience of the titlehclder, the titleholder's agent, counsel,
purchaser or mortgagee, or the person ordering it.

SCHEDULE A

Title Guaranty of Hawail, Incorporated, hereby reports that, subject
to those matters set forth in Schedule "B" hereof, the title to the
estate or interest to the land described in Schedule "C" hereof is
vested in:

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.,
a Hawaii corporation,
as Fee Owner

This report is dated as of March 31, 2010 at 8:00 a.m.

Inquiries concerning this report
should be directed to

LESLIE BALMILERO.

Email lbalmileroftghawaii.com
Fax (808) 521-0287

Telephone (B08) 533-5869.

Refer to Order No. 201012565.

201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 1
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SCHEDULE B

EXCEPTIONS
1. Real Property Taxes, 1f any, that may be due and owing.
Tax Key: {2) 3-8-007-101 Area Assessed: 434.402 acres

Land Classification: AGRICULTURAL

—Note:~ Attention is invited to the fact that the premises

covered herein may be subject to possible rollback or
retroactive property taxes.

2. Reservation in favor of the State of Hawaii of all mineral and
metallic mines.

3. Lease of right-cf-way, in fawvor of MAUI ELECTRIC COMPANY, LIMITED
and GTE HAWATIIAN TELEPHONE COMPANY, INCORPORATED, now known as
HAWATIIAN TELCOM, INC., dated August 5, 1960, recorded in Liber
3906 at Page 64; granting rights-of-way, each twenty-five (25)
feet in width, over, across and under over the land described
herein, for a term of thirty-five (35} vyears from the date
hereof, and thereafter form year to year until terminated.

4. GRANT
TO :  COUNTY OF MAUI
DATED : September 18, 196l
RECORDED : Liber 4159 Page 172
GRANTING : an easement over Easement "B" being more
particularly described therein
201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 2
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SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

5. GRANT
TC COUNTY OF MAUI
DATED December 11, 1979
RECORDED + Liber 14533 Page 192
GRANTING : an easement over Easement "17" being more
particularly described therein
6. CERTIFICATE dated June 2, 1983, recorded in Liber i7086 at Page

382 by A&B PROPERTIES, INC., a Hawail corporation, re:
reclassification of approximately 680 acres.

7. The terms and

INSTRUMENT

DATED :

RECORDED :
PARTIES

8. The terms and
INSTRUMENT
DATED

RECORDED
PARTIES :

201012565

provisions contained in the following:

SECOND 14.04.010(¥) AGREEMENT RELATING TO FIRE
PROTECTION :

August 25, 1987

Liber 21387 Page 752

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation,
CERIZO BROTHERS, INC., a Hawaii corporatiocn, and

the COUNTY OF MAUI and its DEPARTMENT OF WATER
SUPPLY

provisions contained in the following:
AGREEMENT TO DEFER SUBDIVISION REQUIREMENTS

September 27, 1989
Liber 23854 Page 9

- ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawail corporation,

and the DEPARTMENT OF WATER SUPPLY of the County
Maui

© Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc.
235 QUEEN ST., HONOLULU, HAWAIl 96813, PH: (808) 533-6261
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SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

9. Unrecorded Purchase and Exchange Agreement dated February 20,
1982, made by and between ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii
corporation and BILL MILLS, which agreement is now held by MAUI
LANI PARTNERS, a Hawail general partnership.

10. The terms and provisions contained in the following:

INSTROMENT : SUBDIVISTON AGREEMENT (AGRICULTURAL USE}

DATED :  August 29, 1989
RECORDED : Liber 23899 Page 679
PARTIES : ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation,

and the COUNTY OF MAUI, through its Department of
Public Works

11. The terms and provisions contained in the following:
INSTRUMENT : SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT (LARGE LOTS)
DATED :  August 29, 15989
RECORDED : Liber 23899 Page 689
PARTIES : ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation,

and the COUNTY OF MAUI

12. The terms and provisions contained in the following:

INSTRUMENT : AGREEMENT RELATING TC FIRE PROTECTION

DATED : July 18, 199%0
RECORDED : Document No. 20-139708
PARTIES : FRANK WEATHERFORD, doing business as MAUI SOD FARM,
and the DEPARTMENT OF WATER SUPPLY of the County of
Maui
201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 4
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SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

13. The terms and provisions contained in the folliowing:

INSTRUMENT : SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT (LARGE LOTS)

DATED : March 22, 1991
RECORDED :  Document No. 91-051286
PARTIES + ALEXANWNDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawail corporation and

MAUI LAND PARTNERS, a Hawail general partnership
and the COUNTY OF MAUI

14, GRANT
TO : COUNTY OF MAUT, a political subdivision of the
State of Hawaii
DATED : April 30, 1881
RECORDED :  Document No. 92-134141
GRANTING : a perpetual nonexclusive easement from Waikapu

Road, alsc known as Waiko Road to property owned by
the County of Maui known as the Waikapu Landfill
side, over and across "Easement Area" (being
Easement "D"}, for ingress and egress purposes,
said Easement Area being more particularly
described therein

15. RESTRICTION OF VEHICLE ACCESS RIGHTS

ALONG : Kuihelani Highway

SHOWN : on Subdivision Map by Allen K. Watanabe, Land
Surveyor, dated March 2, 1992, revised May 15, 1982
and approved by the County of Maui, Department of
Public Works on May 22, 19952 (LUCA File No. 3.1539)

16. DESIGNATION OF EASEMENT "D"

PURPOSE : for access purposes

SHOWN : on Subdivision Map by Allen K. Watanabe, Land
Surveyor, dated March 2, 1992, revised May 15, 1992
and approved by the County of Maui, Department of
Public Works on May 22, 19922 (LUCA File No. 3.1539)

201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 5
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SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

17. DESIGNATIOCN OF EASEMENT "B"

PURPOSE
SHOWN

for water line purposes

on Subdivision Map by Allen K. Watanabe, Land
Surveyor, dated March 2, 1992, revised May 15, 1982
and approved by the County of Maui, Department of
Public Works on May 22, 1992 (LUCA File No. 3.1539)

18, DESIGNATION OF EASEMENT ™"17"

PURPOSE
SHOWN

for water line purposes

on Subdivision Map by Allen K. Watanabe, Land
Surveyor, dated March 2, 18932, revised May 15, 19852
and approved by the County of Maui, Department of
Public Works on May 22, 1992 (LUCA File No. 3.1539)

19. DESIGNATION OF EASEMENT "ig8"

PURPOSE
SHOWN

20. GRANT

TO

DATED

RECORDED
GRANTING

21. Discrepancies,

for water line purposes

on Subdivision Map by Allen K. Watanabe, Land
Surveyor, dated March 2, 1992, revised May 15, 1992
and approved by the County of Maui, Department of
Public Works on May 22, 1992 {(LUCA File No. 3.1539)

MAUI ELECTRIC COMPANY, LIMITED and HAWAIIAN TELCOM,
INC.

December 15, 2003
Decument No. 2006--147438
a perpetual right and easement for utility purposes

coenflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area,

encroachments or any other matters which a correct survey or
archaeological study would disclose.

201012565

© Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 6
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SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

22. Any unrecorded leases and matters arising from or affecting the

sanme.

23. Any lien -{or claim of lien) for services, labor or material

arising from an improvement or work related to the land described
in Schedule C herein.

END OF SCHEDULE B

201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc.
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SCHEDULE C

211 of that certain parcel of land (being portion(s) of the land(s)
described in and covered by Royal Patent Grant Number 3152 to Henry
Cornwell and Reoyal Patent Grant Number 3343 to Claus Spreckels)
situate, lying and being at Wailuku Commons, District of Wailuku,
Island and County of Maui, State of Hawaii, being TOT 12-A of the
"MAUI ILANI SUBDIVISION" bearing Tax Key designation (2) 3-8-007-101,
and containing an area of 434.402 acres, more or less.

Said above described parcel of land having been acquired by ALEXANDER
& BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation by the following Deeds:

1. By DEED of BEAWAIIAN COMMERCIAL AND SUGAR COMPANY, a California
corporation, dated December 31, 1826, recorded in Liber 865 Page
8; and

2. By DEED cof ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation, dated

March 30, 1989, recorded in Liber 23006 at Page 583.

END OF SCHEDULE C

201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc.
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GENERAL NOTES

1. The name of HAWAITAN COMMERCIAL AND SUGAR COMPANY, LTD. was
changed to ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LTD. by instrument dated January
3, 1962, recorded in Liber 4199 at Page 105.

2. The name of ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LTD. was changed to ALEXANDER &
BALDWIN, INC. by instrument dated January 2, 1962, recorded in
Liber 4191 at Page 481.

3. The name of A&B HAWATII, INC. merged with and in to ALEXANDER &
BALDWIN, INC., by instrument dated December 31, 19%99, recorded as
Document No. 2000-0036%4.

201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 9
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GUIDELINES FOR THE TISSUANCE OF INSURANCE

A, Taxes shown in Schedule B are as of the date such information is
available from the taxing authority. Evidence of payment of all
taxes and assessments subsequent to such date must be provided
prior to recordatiomn.

B. Evidence of authority regarding the execution of all documents
pertaining to the transactilon is required prior to recordation.
This includes corporate resclutions, cepies of partnership
agreements, powers of attorney and trust instruments.

C. If an entity (corporation, partnership, limited liability company,
etc.) is not reglistered in Hawaii, evidence of its formation and
existence under the laws where such entity is formed must be
presented prior to recordation.

D. If the transaction involves a construction loan, the following is
required:

(1) a letter confirming that there is no construction prior to
recordation; or

{2) if there is such construction, appropriate indemnity
agreements, financial statements and other relevant information
from the owner, developer, general contractor and major sub-
contractors must be submitted to the Title Company for approval
at least one week prior to the anticipated date of recordation.

Forms are available upon request from Title Guaranty of Hawaii.

¥. Chapter 669, Hawaii Revised Statutes, sets forth acceptable
tolerances for discrepancies in structures or improvements relative
to private property boundaries for various classes of real
property. If your survey map shows a position discrepancy that
falls within the tolerances of Chapter 662, call your title officer
as affirmative coverage may be available to insured lenders.

F. The right is reserved Lo make additional exceptions and/or
requirements upon examination of all documents submitited in
connection with this transaction.

G. If a policy.of title insurance is issued, it will exclude from
coverage all matters set forth in Schedule B of this report and in
the printed Exclusions from Coverage contained in an ALTA policy or
in the Hawaii Standard Owner's Policy, as applicable. DIifferent
forms may have different exclusions and should be reviewed. Copies
of the policy forms are available upon reguest from Title Guaranty
of Hawaliil or on our website at www.tghawaii.com.

201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 10
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DATE PRINTED: 7/14/2010
STATEMENT OF ASSESSED VALUES AND REAL PROPERTY TAXES DUE

NAME OF OWNER: A & B - HAWAII INC

LEASED TO
TAX MAP KEY
DIVISION ZONE SECTION PLAT PARCEL HPR NO.
{(2) 3 8 007 101 0000
CLASS: AGRICULTURAL AREA ASSESSED: 434.402 AC

ASSESSED VALUES FOR CURRENT YEAR TAXES5: 2010

The records of this division show the assessed values and taxes on
the property designated by Tax Key shown above are as follows:

BUILDING S 59,500
EXEMPTICN [ 0
NET VALUE 3 59,500
LAND $ 1,684,900 AGRICULTURAL USE VALUE
EXEMPTION S 0
NET VALUE 5 1,684,900
TOTAL NET VALUE $ 1,744,400
Installment (1 — due 8/20; 2 - due 2/20) Tax Info As Of - 3/31/2010
Tax Installment Tax Penalty Interest Other Total
Year Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
2009 2 4,299.30 4,299,30 PAID
2009 1 4,299.30 4,299_ 30 PAID
2008 2 3,912.30 3,912.30 PAID
2008 1 3,912.30 3,512.30 PAID
201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 11
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REVISED 08/16/2010
report date unchanged

STATUS REPORT

Maximum liability limited to
$3,500.00

This report (and any revisions thereto) is issued solely for the
convenience of the titleholder, the titleholder's agent, counsel,
purchaser or mortgagee, or the person ordering it.

SCHEDULE A

Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inccrporated, hereby reports that, subject
to those matters set forth in Schedule "B" herecf, the title to the
estate or interest to the land described in Schedule "C" hereof is
vested in:

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.,
a Hawali corporation,
as Fee Qwner

This report is dated as of August 11, 2010 at 8:00 a.m.

Inguiries concerning this report
should be directed to

MONIQUE AGARPAO.

Email magarpao@tghawali.com

Fax (808) 521-0210

Telephone (808) 533-5610.

Refer to Oxdexr No. 201012566.

201012566 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 1
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SCHEDULE B
EXCEPTIONS

Real Property Taxes, 1f any, that may be due and owing.

Tax Key: (2) 3-8-007-104 Area Assessed: 4.070 acres

~-Note:- Attention is invited to the fact that the premises
covered herein may be subject to possible rollback or
retroactive property taxes.

Resgervation in favor of the State of Hawall of all mineral and
metallic mines.

The terms and provisions contained in the following:
INSTRUMENT : ROYAL PATENT GRANT NUMBER 3152

DATED : November 18, 1945

The foregoing includes, but is not limited to, matters relating
to reservation of native rights.

Any unrecorded leases and matters arising from or affecting the
same .

Claims arising out of customary and traditional rights and
practices, including without limitation those exercised for
subsistence, cultural, religiocus, accesgs or gathering purposes,

as provided for in the Hawaii Constitution or the Hawaii Revised
Statutes.

201012566 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 2
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SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

6. Discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area,

encroachments or any other wmatters which a correct survey or
archaeological study would disgclosge.

-Note:- A current survey, with metes and bounds description,
should be made of said premises.

7. Claims arising cut of the failure to convey the land described
herein together with an easement or right of access.
-Note:- This will be deleted from the policy if such conveyance
occurs prior to the policy date.
END OF SCHEDULE B
201012566 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 3
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SCHEDULE C

All of that certain parcel of land (being porticon(s) of the land(s)
described in and covered by Royal Patent Grant 3152 to Henry Cornwell)
gituate, lying and being at Wailkapu, Wailuku, County of Maul, State of
Hawail, being LOT 1-B of the "KOPAA SUBDIVISION NO. 2", bearing Tax

Key designation (2) 3-8-007-104 and containing an area cof 4.070 acres,
more or less.

BEING THE PREMISES ACQUIRED BY DEED

GRANTOR : ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawail corporation
GRANTEE : A&B-HAWAII, INC., a Hawali corporation

DATED : March 30, 1989, but effective as of April 1, 1989
RECORDED : Liber 23006 Page 583

END OF SCHEDULE C

201012566 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. _ Page 4
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GENERAL NOTES

1. There is hereby omitted from any covenants, conditions and
reservations contained herein any covenant or restriction based
on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, familial
status, marital status, disability, handicap, national origin,
ancestry, or source of income, as set forth in applicable state
or federal laws, except tc the extent that sald covenant or
regtriction is permitted by applicable law. Lawful restrictions
under state or federal law on the age of occupants in senior
housing or housing for older persons shall not be construed as
restrictions based on familial status.

2. Filed with the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs of the
State of Hawaii (Business Registration), is the merger of A&B-
HAWATI, INC., a Hawall corporation with and into ALEXANDER &
BALDWIN, INC. on December 31, 1999, by CERTIFICATE OF MERGER
dated January 3, 2000, recorded as Document No. 2000-003694.

201012566 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 5
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GUIDELINES FOR THE ISSUANCE OF INSURANCE

A. Taxes shown in Schedule B are as of the date such information is
available from the taxing authority. Evidence of payment of all
taxes and asggegsments subsequent to such date must be provided
prior to recordation.

B. Evidence of authority regarding the execution of all documents
pertaining to the transaction is required prior to recordation.
This includes corporate resolutions, copies of partnership
agreements, powers of attorney and trust instruments.

C. If an entity {(corporation, partnership, limited liability company,
etc.) 1s not registered in Hawaii, evidence of its formation and
existence under the laws where such entity is formed must be
presented prior to recordation.

D. If the transaction involves a construction loan, the following is
required:

(1) a letter confirming that there is no construction prior to
recordation; or

(2) if there is such comstruction, appropriate indemnity
agreements, financial statements and other relevant information
from the owner, developer, general contractor and major sub-
contractors must be submitted to the Title Company for approval
at least one week prior to the anticipated date of recordation.

Forms are available upon request from Title Guaranty of Hawaii.

E. Chapter 669, Hawall Revised Statutes, sets forth acceptable
tolerances for discrepancies in structures or improvements relative
to private property boundaries for various clagses of real
property. If your survey map shows a position discrepancy that
falls within the tolerances of Chapter 669, call your title officer
as affirmative coverage may be available to insured lenders.

F. The right is reserved to make additiomal exceptions and/or

requirements upon examination of all documents submitted in
commection with this transaction.

G. If a policy of title insurance is issued, it will exclude from
coverage all matters set forth in Schedule B of thig report and in
the printed Exclusions from Coverage contained in an ALTA policy or
in the Hawali Standard Owner's Policy, as applicable. Different
forms may have different exclusions and should be reviewed. Copies
of the policy forms are available upon request from Title Guaranty
of Hawaili or on our website at www.tghawaii.com.

201012566 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 6
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DATE PRINTED: 8/16/2010

STATEMENT OF ASSESSED VALUES AND REAL PRCOPERTY TAXES DUE

NAME OF OWNER: A & B - HAWATII INC
LEASED TO : SCHENK, GREG

TAX MAP KEY

DIVISION ZONE SECTION PLAT PARCEL HPR NO.

{(2) 3 8 007 104 0000

CLASS: AGRICULTURAL AREA ASSESSED:

ASSESSED VALUES FOR CURRENT YEAR TAXES: 2010

4.070 AC

The records of this division show the assessed values and taxes on
the property designated by Tax Key shown above are as follows:

BUILDING 3 0
EXEMPTION L] o
NET VALUE $ 0
LAND 8
EXEMPTION s 0
NET VALUE s 100
TOTAL NET VALUE & 100
Installment (1 - due 8/20; 2 - due 2/20) Tax Info As Of
Tax Installment Tax Penalty Interest Other
Year Amount Amount Amount Amount
2010 2 75.00
2010 1 75.00
2009 2 75.00
2009 1 75.00
2008 2 30.00
2008 1 30.00
Total Amount Due:
201012566 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc.
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100 AGRICULTURAL USE VALUE

- 7/01/2010
Total

Amount

75.00 PENDING
75.00 PENDING
75.00 PAID
75.00 PAID
30.00 PAID
30.00 PATID
150.00
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& Sugay
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This Incenture, dated and to become effeative the Jlst day of
bacember, 1326, made by mpd batwean the Hawaiian Gummerciel end Sugar
Cozpany, & Gorporktion duly organized emd existing under snd by virtus
of the lmws of the 3tule of Celifornin, party of the first pert, herein
souetimen culilad the "Grantor™, whose principal pleos of business and
post office sdoress is Puunene, Islsnd of Maui, Territory of Hawail, snd
the Hawal{an Cozuerecizl end Sugsr Company, Iimlted, @ corporation duly
orsanlzed and exlating under and by virtue of the lews of the Tarritory

of Dawall, party of the second part, herein somstimes called the

"Grantee®, whoss principel office and poat office address is im th:3

Stangenwald Building on derchant Street in Nomelulu, City and County of
Honolalu, in meid Territory;

Witneasath: WRhereas, the Grantor, as & aorporation fTorsign to the

Territory of Hawaii, has for amny years been sngaged in cerrrying om its
SUERT nhnuntfou and business on esid Ieland of Meui, and for economie

vnd pdminlstrative reasona ite atockholders have determined to trenafer
1tz corporute Situs to seld Territory of Hawali: and to thet end have
caugac gaid Hawaliian Commerciel end Sugor Company, Limited, the Orantes
hereunder, to be incorporated in Hewaii to ftmke over emd garry om the
aeid business and property end assums, parfors ana discherge all dedts,
liebilities, coniradis end other obligations in conmneation therawith;
ond

Yherenn, peid Grantor mow hes & caplitel atock of ten milliom
dollars represantsd by four hundrad thoussnd peid up sheres of stook of
the ptr value of twenty-five dollers par shure; snd geid Grantes was
incorporated with en Initial eapital aetosk ¢f one thousond dollare,
fuily paid up with funds furmished for the purpose by the Crasntor,
repreasented by forty shares of ompitsl stoock of the par value of twenty-
five dollers per chare, end which forty sherss will be transferred to
the Grentor by the holders tharecf oconcurrently with the sxecution of
this inatrument; and the Grantes, being tharsunto muthoriged for the
pn;-pann horein exprassui, has inorsaced itm cmpitsl stook, on the date
hereof, to ten mtllion dolirrs in order to iasue to the Grantor tl'u-n
w pinety-sine thoussnd nine hundred sixty additionsnl sherss of
wiock of said per walue, fully pald and xmon-sssesssble, by way of payment
or exohangs for the conveyance to it herein msde by the Graptor of satd
btusiness nn'd property: 1t belng intended that the Grantor, ir hereefter
effecting 1t own disincorporatian in the State of California, will

L)



dlabribute serid four hundred thousand sheras of the capital stoek of
the Gjnntne among it.a own stoakholders, shars for shars, acoording to
their respactive holdings of stook of seid California corporstion:
Now tharefaors: The Grantor, acting pursuent to and in exeoution
of the tamme of the resolution in this behalf paesed and ndopted by ite
stockholdera on Decenmber 6, 1986, st 8 speolsn]l meeting regulerly called
end noticed to be held for the purpoes on November 17, U926, and on that
day regulerly adjourned to seid 8th day of Deoember, 1986, and in oonei-
daration of the trensfer to it now mede of Bald Torty paid up sharas of
tha ezpital stock of the Grantee, the rTeoceipt thereof belng by 1t herebdy
aoknowledged, and the issue end delivery to it now mads dy the Grantses
of pnid three hundred ninety~nine thousend nine hundred sixty additional
paild up and non-assesesble shares of the capital stoock of the Grantes,
the =eceipt thereof bdeing by the Grantor slmo hershy esoknowledged, and
2150 in consideration of the covenante hereinafter constained on the part
of the Orantes with respect to the Iliabilities and cbhiigmtions of the
" gGrentsr, doea heraby gront, convey, aasign, tronafer, sat over and
deliver unto the Graniee, its suocessors and .asigna.."a'll of the business
properties, apsete and {nterssts of svery kind end charroter of eald
Srantor, wherever saltuate, as the ssme stand on the dats hereof, a8 &
going concern, (other than seid forty shures of mtock of said Hewaiian
Commeroial and Sugar Company, limited, concurrently assigned by the
holders thereof to saild Srantor us sforeseid), &nd including, without
prejudice to the generality of the foregolng terme, all of the lapda
end propaerties mentioned in the schedules therecf hereunder written, snd
all other properties whether mentioned in seid schedules or not, includ-
ing, in generel terme; all lends, tenements, hereditemente, ewtates,
revarcsions, remainders, eusements, righte, privileszes snd sppurtencmwen,
chattele rewl uno persouel, options, lekssholds, llcenses, and frsn-
ohiea;J s8ll suger cane end growing orops, &1l auger &nd other producte
of any of st frotorise or works; all reilways and their aquipn;nt
ineluding engines, cers, tracke, &nd othsr rolling stook and eguipment;
211 wnter end water righte, licenses, egreamente, privileges and otha;'
interestn relating to water or the use thercof, snd all pumps and pump-
ing plente end irrigation works releting to the development, oconsarva-
tion, ocarriage or atilizetion of wmter, including walls, shaftm, tunnelme,.
dicches, plpe-lines, flumes, getse, dams, reservoirs, tanks ;:nd other

worke and feallities; ell builaingm and other improvamenis inoluding
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mills, fmotorles, warehousese, shops, stores, hospitels, berns, guroges,
houges, laborers' &R OLher guarters and cueaps, fenoces, bridges apa
other improvements and fixtures of every kind; all agrioultursl, manu-
facturicg and other machinsry, tools, implements, applisncaes end eguip-
aent or micessories, plows, harrows, trectors, trucks, autos, wagone,
eoris, snd other vehicles and thaelr sccesmories: all horsas, mules,
settle unl other anlmmls, mnd paultey, &nd all herrasses, Seddles, pacoks,
and ather parvphernelin {roldsat to the nae of enntaele; all hydre-
tiectric nnd other plunts and light ard povrer lines and electricel
sectinery, apparectus and supplies; sll ssore, house, office, hospltal
pud other furniture, furnighings snd eoulpment; all goods, weres, mer-
chnnaiser. meterisls snd supplies; ell property in the nature of or
represanting tpvestments, inc¢luding sheres of steek in other ocorpora-
t{iore {excesnt ‘szvic‘. forty shkeresg of stock of the Grentea corporation},
Ycnds, debentures, notes, certificetes of indebtedness or deposit, and
oather forms of mecirlties or ovidences of property mnd incebtedness;
1l cush or henc wnc in bopks, reserves. surplus, rents, oredits,
aepuunts, aebts, wuas, cleime and demends wshatogever: and all contrreés,
agreamants, dhoses In wetlon tnc other forms or kiuda of praperty or
icterests In avny munnar appuriemsnt to or connected with any of the seid
proparty or the business of the Grantor; and Including alga the good
will of sald businsss; and whather any of tha gmid property, ristis or
interesty spe now vagted or contingent, tangible or iatangible, in
possusslion or in actions

To hove and to hold £ll and singular the propertias, business ang
intarasts -.tnx;asn.i.n. with the rents, igsues and profits thereof, unte
the Grauntee, ite succegsers end aselzns, cbrolutely, moecording to the
szme t1tles, temure rod interest thereln as oxmed or claimable by the
Grsntor;

But subject, neverthealess, to all outstanding leases, contracta,
iloensen, sgerncy and other mgresments, and all other obligations of the
Grontor affecting or in any manner connected with any of the eaid
propeyty Jor tusiness, and subject mlsc to ail Just olaims for unpeid
taxss, renta, or othap debtis, olaime, demends or lisbilities of every
kind now osxisting &nd shich mey in sny manner herewftsr erise 0r pocrue
or begens chargssble respectiing or affecting any of the said property

oy seid Yaislness; mpnd provided that all righte of oreditors of the
Grautor »nd all llena upon sny of the property hereby conveysd shall be



prassrved uninpaired.

Ani the Grantor agrees thet if st eny time or times herenfter the
Grantee ghell deem or be sdviasd that spy other ar further dasds,
sgatgnmente, transfers or assurences iz the law ere neeuaar& ox desira-
hle to vast or parfect title in the Grantes za toc any of the property
heraby intended to be conveyed or mueigned, then upon The written demanmd
of the Grantor (while existirg as & legal entity) or its trustees in
dtssclution while axsreising thelr officae shall and will, without sny
other or further coneideration, make, execute and deliver to the Grentes
£11 such other or further Jdesds, &sslgnments or other instrunments and
agsrenoanin the law, or do such other things, as may be necesugary or
appraprints to vest title to mch property completely in the Grentee ae
hersin aontemplated end intended.

And $his Indsnture further witnesaeth; That the Grantes, in don-
psideration of the premises, Tor iteslf and ite successcors snd seslgme,
does hersby assume, and oovermnt with the Grantor and its legsl roDre-
santativas end stockholders thet 1t will pay, setisfy and dimoharges all
taxes, debts, axd other liebilities arpd chligations of every oheracter
for which the Greator iz now or may become lisbla in connestion with oy
reiating to ssid busineas or proparty, and also all expenses in conneo-
tion with the disincorperation of the Grantor. snd also thet 1t will
fulfill, in the place snd stepd of the Grantor, all contreats, 1lsases,
Zuavantys, sgency and other sgreements, wnd other updertakings, shliga.
tions and responeibilities, of every charecter and In whatever form
which the Grantor has sentersd into or undertaken or with respest to which
+the Crantor has or may become abligated, in any manner insidental te or
copnected with smid business or property taken over by the Gracise as
aforeseid; end, £lso, that it will and its successors or ceslgne shall
at a1l times hold harmless snd indemnify the Grantor end ite directors,
officers, trustees or other legel reprasentstives iu dissolution, apnd
its stockholuaers, from any and all liebility or oblightion with reaipest
to eny of the matters sforeseid; enid that for any esueh purposs and as
often as say be necessary it will make and enter into eany seperate and
specifio sgreemant, contract, bomd, gusranty or sgresment of indemnity,
witk respeot to any partiouler obligation or lisbility; provided that
the GCrantes may in 1ts own disersticn put in issue, defend againet,
compromise, liguidste and settle eny such olaim, demand or matter o2
lisbility.
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The gohedules of property hereintefore mentioned are the follow-
ing:

Schedules '
k. Meilzn Plentatlon Troperties. {One Page)
B. West Mail Water System. (™wo Pagas) )
1. Rights urder Nelluku Exchanse Dead.
I1. DYarpatusl Rights of Way {other than as in 1).
111. Water Rights (other them a&s in I). l
. . C. & 5. Co. rizhts of way scroes UM, A. Co.,Itd's Plantation

(One Pege)
D. Nisecellmueouns Iands ead Rights. {™wo Pagam)

1. Centrel Maul.

1l. !*'.au:"mni-

11I. Ilaheins sad Kesnepelt.
E. Properiies not insluded in A, B, €, or L {genersl}. {Ona Page)
F. Mizcellansous deeds glven by H. €. & $. Co. at al {Twoc Pages)
G. lemsos glven by X. 0. & S. Co. {lassor}. {One Pnga)
H. licenses anc rights of way grentaed by H. C, & 5. Co. to others.

{One Pege)

1. Agraeaents under which Z. T. & S, Co. hes cartein rights and obligs- ,.
tiona.

_{One Page)
Sehedule A.

Main Plantation Properties
1. The Atmpuas of ¥ailuio: ag granted by the Hawelian Gavernment to
Claus Soreckels by Gt. 3343,
2. The Aliupuss of Waikapu (Gt.3152 to Henry Corzwell}, m& oonveyed, in
pert, to Clsus Sprackels hy deads recorced in 56/68 wnd 68/497, and, ax
to the ramaining part, to Hawelilan Commercisl end Sugar Co. by desd !
152/90.
3. 'The Portion of the phupuss of Tulehunul, (1.C.A.5830, L.P.6140 to
Feawshzahl )}, ad conveyed, in part, to Claus Spreokels by deeds raccorded
in BG/G8 mnd 68/437, end, 8s to the remeining part, to Haweifmn Commer. l
¢ial and Suger Co. by deed 1582/90.

&, T™e Portions of the Iiis of Owe and kaluk, {L.C.A.4R20:R.P.1996 to

Fuileleni and L.C.A.7T713:23 to ¥V.Kemamalu), es conveyed to %.C.& $.Co, !
by 194/198 and 310/200. and being comprised in part of the lends
desorided In Poundary Certifiosts famued covering the Il1 of Keiua, .

5. The Portians of the Ahupuans of Falialinui and Pulshurumi, {(L.C.A.



T124:1L.7.0167 t0 Kauaikaslon and L.C.A.5E30:L.P,6140 to Feaweamahi), am
conveyed to H.G. & S. Co. by 620/398.

6. The following lents as conveyed to H.0. & 5. Co. by Exchange Deed
with Maui Agriculturel Company Limited by 730/95 and by deed filed in
land Court;-

{a} 7.83 smores of Gt. 3565 to Faleekeia Rench Company mat Hokuule,
Fula (10% "B" in saic deed).

{b} 170.4S acres of meid Gt. 3565 (Lot "L" in seid veed).

{el' 0.96 sore of Gt.5167 to H.P.Baldwin at OmBopio (Iot "J" in
geid deeal-

{d) Isnd ss described in OQwner's Transfey Certificzte of Pitle
2927 to H.C.& S.C0., which said land is to be conveyed to H.G.& 5.Co.
1ltd., by deed intended to be recorded concurrently herewith.

Exnepting from the lands &5 above deseribed the portions tharsof
conveyed to:

(1} wWailuwiu Suger Company by Exchange Deed 740/1234 (A1l such por-
tions of lands as described under "1" to "&" sbhove ne ave HWest of a
aeseribed line wunning from Kehului Bay to Maglaen Bay).

(2) Mmul Agricultural Compeny, 1imited, by deed 730/100 (Iote A,C,
F,K.I1,K,I and K a6 shown on M.A.Co.Ltd.-E.C.&2 83.Cc. Soundary Map of
1923).

13) Various perties by deeds ns listed in Schedule F.

Certain portions of the above lands are subject to the leases as
listed 1n Schadule @ apd to the rights of way end licznses as listed in
Schaduls E.

{4} 0id rosdway st Kahulul from U.5.Custom House Lot to Wharf St.
as canveyed by Territory of Hawall to Xahulul Pailroed Co. Cotober 14,
1910. 342/1%0. 0.49 acre.

{6) Oustom Fouse lot-Kshuluni. DProperty of V.5.A. Apmroximetely
0,17 aore.

{6) Falemnas not owned by H.C.& 5. €o. {if any).

Schedule B.

West Maul Water System (and rights inciuental thereto).
I. Rights under "Wailuku Eschange Deed"”.

All rights of every neturs of Haweiian Commersial and Sugar fo.
unier the terme and provisions of thet certain Txchange Doed and Agree-
ment betwsen H.C.& 5. Co. and Walluku Bugar Company of Jume 23, 1924
{740/124), inoluding particularly:
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1. 5/12 of woters of Walhee Stresm {up to capacity of Kew Waihee Ditch)
2. 1/2 of the reialniny waters of Wathea Stream.

3. ALl watera of South Walshu Streas &bove a certain point.

4. C T aln surplus watars.

3. Carteln power rights in Izo Wallay end easements therefor.

6. Parpeutusl rights of way for sll sgqueducts end works of H.C.& 5. Bo's.
West JManl Water System.

7. Certain waters developed by the ¥milukn River Tunnels and perpetual
rights of way for s&id tnnnels.

8. Certain house lots At Tailuiu snd Laiebu.

9. Other rightas of H.C.& S. C0. &8 net forth in the general agresmsnt
regarding maictensnce, operation and control of ditches, water develgp-
ment projects, acquisitian of sdditiona] weter rights and r»ighta of way,
water pawar rights and suudry maettars.

({This dead alq.d agreenent is effective t¢ the full extent of the
inteyasts of H.C.k 5. Co. ang W.5.Co. in all preperties and »ighte
referrad to in the above list]).

1I. Parpetnml Righis of Way {other themn s in I}.

A. HRights of way, originelly fee simple &tripe, tut now psrpetual
Tiehte of way by the terms of "Weiluku Exchenge Deed™ 740/134.

(1) From A.N.Xepoikai and fourtesn others, 81/393, ms %o Strips of
land in Eailuku and %alehu, %tetalling 8.03 mores as gecuplied hy Sprac-
kel's ¥alhea Diteh. _

[{2) PFProm Mary Xnilishe and three others, 191/349, ss to strips of
land in Wailuku totelling J.51 acre as occupnied by matd ditch.

(3} From Fesuwal and twe others, 191/350, a8 %o & s8trip of land in
¥elluku, 1/8 sere in arse, as accupisd by ssid ditoh.

B. Pepetual Rights of Way sorcue or under,

{1} L.C.A.436:R.P.4588 <o Empau, at Wailukn, froan Akaoe Akoloke,
193/343 {"Wsiluku Ditoh™).

~

{2} 1.C.A.40? to Faneksole, at Weiluku, from J.K.Kelua, 210/3855,
{"Wailuku Ditch”).

{3) 1.C.A.3220:R.P.4167 to Ahmlmu, et Wailuku, from Aulis Ah lechg,
217/64, end J.Paikake, Z10/369, and s to the 2.06 sores of 1.C.A.3280
from 4.B.Kepolikal 223/101, the fee of which is now vested in ¥.3.0o.
{"™Mailuiu Diteh®).

{4) L.C.A.26289:R.P.398 to Heleipuisho, gt Weiluku, from Hosew
Taeaili1111, et wl. 225/483,
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{Wailuku River Tunnels - No surface privilegea). g::‘.:afﬁ » :

(5) L.C.A.457:R.P.4149 to Kawn{liilif, st Weiluku, from M.H.Recho- ' "

xalolq 229/135. .
{¥ailluku River Tunnels - Ho surface privilegesa).

{6) 1ot at ¥alehu ae dasoribed in dead of Wailuku Sugur Company to B
Fapobuli, April 8, 1897, From Kapohull 292/165. From Eapohull 298/1é5. ’
(For Diteh). i

(7) land at Ohismui snd Ohleiki, Welshu. i

From P. Goodness 291/377. (For Ditech). -

(8} level Iapd at Wailuku. From M.S.level 521/289, 5

(Sureckel's Wethes Tunnel under 0.2¢ sore in ¥Wailulu Townl.
IXI. Water Rights {other then as in I sbovel. 53

{1} &/12 of the water rights of L.C.A.26056:R.P.6721 at Waiher aw B
reeervad from 350/28 {H.C.& S. Co. to £. Brewer & Co. 1ltd.). ra

¥

{2) 5/12 of the water rights of 0.23 aore at Waihes, from W.Neehu.
746/46% .

{3) The water rights of ceriain lands in Scuth Walehu and 8/12 of
the watsr »ights of certaln iands et Veihae, from Walluku Suger Co.
785/12.

{4} B8/12 of the water righta of ocertain lends &t Weihes, from
Wailuku Suger Company 760/49.

Schedule €.

E.C.& S.Co. Rights of Way mcroas JI.A.Co's Flentation
1, Iowrie, New Heiku and Kahaka Ditches.

Parpotual rights of way for the H.C.& §. Co's lowrie, New Haiku and
Eaheke Dltches, or squeducts, scross lends of Maui Agriculturel Co.ltd.,

2

.4
end perpetusl assements over rosds mnd trails in ocnnection therewith.
From M.A.Co. Ltd. Dec. 21, 1986,
2. ¥aheks Tsnstook.

Porpetusl Tight of wey from K. A. Go. Ltd. by 729/5D and BE9/173.
3. Faheke Toil-Exoe Ditoh. Schedule £,

Parpetual right of way from M. A. Co. Lta. by 728/80. Pere 1.

Schedules .
Miscelisneous Iends end Rights

f 3

1. Central Meul
1. L.C.A.8268:R.P. 6148 to Kalum in I1i Mekeska, Waihee, area l.04
BOTEN.

From J. H. Traek and Paushi Trask, 97/68.



enedule L.

2. Ints 2%, 30, 31, and 32 of Cemetory of Falluku Cemetery Assvclation,
By deed of April 86, 1884.

3. Saheka Power Houas Lot. 2.37 acres at Kaheks {(portion of Ahupuss uf
Hsmakuapoka}. By dead 729/50.

4. Kaheka Power House Superintentent's lot. 0.92 acre ot Kehoka (por-
tion of fhupuss of Fellimsile. By deed 829/173.

5. 0l¢ Xahulul School lot. 0.75 sore. 3y desd 285/214.

6. "Alexander & Reldwia, lot". 0.73 sere in Eshulni (portion of Ili of

Felue s conveyed by Semiel Perker to Alsxander and Baldwin 176/73).
By desd 201/43.

T. All izterest of H.C.& S.C0. in such lends West of the diviaslon line

deseribed in "Wailuim Exchange Deesd™ {740/124) as wers pocupisd by the
railway of Eahului Railrovad Compeny on June 23, 1984. (a5 reserved by
E.C.& S. Co. 1n said deed.)

8. All sem fijheries of which H.C.A 5. Co. wae declared to be the
osner by Judguent dated May 24, 1309, in the case of R.C.& 5.Co. va.
Parritory of I!.nnn:

1. The ses figheries descrited in 1.0.A.420 %o Fuihelanl {Ili of
Omal nnd covering 73 meras and 1 square chain in mrem,.

2. ALl sn ﬂ:.uheriet adjolping the Ahupuss of Walluiu and extend-
ing along the sntire northerly boundary thereof from low water mpark to
& line ono geogruphleel mile seaward tharsfrom.

9. Permizslon to asintain electric powsr tranemission Iines acrome car-
toin highways (by rasolution of Boerd of Supervisors, Juns 7, 1917.)
1I. st Usul. _

1. Qption to purshege rallway rlghu of way across landle owned by
A.5.Sentos within the Almipusa of Kemsuls. By grant from R-Sgﬁmtu
Hapch 21, 1926.

2. Ta following interests in the Tlumelu Hai lands (Ot. BS%4 to
.9 411en, 1.C.4.311 to F.Crawelil and L.C.A.10474 to Famauu) as oconvey-
ed by Hosas Eehispa ta J. .Enhoa. et al, Bec. 3, 1683.

(s} The akare of Xupsle (by GB3/248),

{8] 10 acres of shere of Papoko (by 623/248}.

{a} 15 mcres of share of S. Kapaki (by 6823/848).

{4} The share of K. Kalia {by 194/143).

{s} "The abare of Fanshuns {by 200/113}.

(£} 1/6 share of J. Mahos (by 216/323).
{g) 'The share of B. Kahopuoku {by E10/361}.



Total 4-1/% shares and 85 acres, or approximataly 130 sores.

3, Aldl interest of H.C.& S.Co. in the Alhupuas of Feszt Kmupakulus
{(Gt. 771 to Bikisu), sald interest oonsisting of:

Reversionary intersst in lot 40 (aras 56.53 aores) of the lznds
sonveyed to Territory of Haweii for homestsading purposes only by Mmul
Railread and Steamship Company, beo. 20, 1912 [mmid Lot 40 not having
baan hemesteaded.

The right to grant to Kehului Railrond Company within & cerisin
torm Tights of way soross any portisns of the lands conveyed by seld
dead.

IXT. lsheine pnd Xsanspeli.

1/6 undivided interest and 1/48 undivided interest in:

1. 1/3 undivided interest in 1.C.61451 to Femakahikuy at Fonokohau, 7
Xeanapeli. Sonedule DN

£. 11/100 sore of 1.0.4.025 to Fahiamoe at lahaira. Tage B

The said interests having been ‘mcquived hy desdsfrom Mery Pulehu
Smythe and Jamas K. Smythe, respectively, of Oet. 27, 1924,

Schedule E.
Prapertiea not lneluded in A,B,C or D. (Genersl)

All other praoperties of svery neture a;med by H.C.& §,.Co.or that
may heresfter accrue Lo the benefit of .. §. fo. and particuliarly
the properties acguired by or under the following deeds:

Prom Claus Spreckels, 76/206, 93/£36, 168/250, 196/834 and BQ1/18S.

From Waikepu Sugar Company 152/90.

Prom E.A.Beldwin, et &l, Trustees 620/395 (Properties of Kihei
Plantetion Company, Limited).

From Maui Railroad end Steamship Company 623/348.

Excepting from the satd progertiss mich portions therscf as have
bean convayed by deeds listed or noted herein.

And excepting particularly all portions of the zaid propertiss ns
comvayed by N.C.& S. Co. to Esst Maul Irrigation Compeny, Iimited, by  Fage 1.
desd dnted December 31, 1986 and recorded just prior to this instrument.

Schaeduls P.
Miscellanecus Deeds Oiven by H. €. & 5. Co.

{In certain of thess doeds, H.C.& 5. Co. heg roversiomary interestn
or options to purchesal.

Grantes Instrument of Iand oonveyed Area
T. of H. June 21, 1905 269/431 Puunene Sohool Lot 1.98

v
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Srantae

Tmstess, lodge
Haut §984.

Lept.of Public
Inetruatlon
Lounty of Hau!

T. of B,

T. of H,

T84

Catholle Mission
fetalie Masige
J.4e Andrade
S.J.Hobrige
P.Fernandoz

. Mendoss

T. of H.

Trusteos,

Insirument of
July 11,1906 288/408
Sept.17,1908 gaa/ﬂa’u

1,
July 2, 1309

land sonveyed

Masonie Iot-Fahulul

Fahului Secheol lot

Puunons Avenue

{Reserving righta of way seress Duunene Avenus. )

Be:-14,1310 342/190

Whar! Streat

Area

0.28

1.36

14.10

1.10

(Feserving richts of wey Tor Kahului Beilrosd Campany)

Oct.14,1310 322/203
Oet.14,1910 3a7/332
Dec.l14,1910 327/403
Dev.14,1910 337/405
July 1,1910 350/31a
July 1,1910 350/320
Lee. 1,1910 2577207
Dec. 1.1910 352/217
M=y 31, 1912

¥ahulu! Union Churah

T, of H.

. of =,
County of lant
i-¥.Bseelbay

7. of H.

War. 12, 1213

Tec. 24, 1915 4495/107
ILee, 10, 1916 462284
Fab. 13, 1919 508,246
Sept.20, 1214 508/249
July 4, 1919 523/237

I.2.Fleming, ot &l Sept.8, 1920 576/331

F.F.Delawin
S.A.Beldwirn

E. . Rice
C.LC.Camphall
County of iaui
T. of H.
T.5.h-

D.T.Fleming
C. Savage
T.5.A.

Trustens, Haul
Fanersl Paricre

T. of H.
. 5. Xunems

April 14,1920
Aoril 14,1920 593/451
April 14,1920 59a/562
April 14,1980
June 16, 1921 605/361
ey 17, 1922 640/145
June 20,1322

Yaln Sireet

At East Preakeater
Tuunene Cemetery
Puunens Church
Tortuguese Camp lot
Portuguape Cazp Iot
Partuguase Cemp Lot
Portugnese Ceop Lok
Kihel Wheys Lot

{church lot {ze changed by
{771/423).

{Chureh Perish Lot
Flhei-Kamole Romd

Tonk Site-Kelus
Spreckelaville School lot
Tortuguens Camp Lot
Frir Bullding Lot

lend in “"zand Hillas®
Beaoh lot-Spreckelsville
Beach lat-Spreckeleville
Beach Jot-Spreckelaville
Fazah lat-Spreckelaville
1ot at Piihana-¥ailuim
Taw Punnens School Lot

Seaplana Brso-Eahului

{Reserving certain rights of way)

R

Fov. %, l9g2
Eary. 14, 1923
Juns 15, 19323

Kov. 6, 1924
Fab. 1%, 1923
April 13, 1380

Iand in "Sand Hills"
Beach lot-Spreckelavilie
Rangs light lot-Eehului

Funersl Pariot lot
iand for HarboreFKahului
On Fahului-Waliluku Road

B.1%8

. 1.50

0.58
0.28
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.3
0.0
g.84
0.09
0.57
G.67
0.48
28.74
E.2D0
4.80
5.80
E.91
0.82
10.00
1.89

17,10
1.60
.18

0.26
0.06
0.066




Grantoe Instrument of land oonveyed Arex
Parific Trust
Co., 1td. May 13, 1926 Kahulul lot 0.22
J. H. Fous Feb.19, 1986 Beach Lot-Spreckelavillis 2,58
. K. Foms Merch 1,1926 Beach Lot-Spreckelaville 0.50 g:hﬂﬂ?lﬂ L
ge 1.
S. A. Baldwin Maxroh 22,1926 Beach lot-Spreckelsvilie 1.12
T. of H. Dec. 21, 1925 Kahulni Sehaol lot 4.60
. of ®H. Leo. B2, 1926 "Standard School™ lot,
Spreckelsville 4.00
California Packing
Carporstion April 22, 192é Iand at Fehulul a7 .40
=, of H. April B2, 1926 ¥ain Street Extension 0.27
G. R. Bnﬂ. H. 3-
Carter Aug. 11, 1926 Headh Lot-Spreckeleville 2.50

Migvellansous Desds Givan hy'cermin Predecessors of K. C. & §. Co.
Cleus Spreckels to Estate of J. Boardman. October 13, 1883. B&/éd.
0.43 acrs lot at Kshului {(now owned by Kaluiui Railroad Co.].

S. Parker to Kshului Ré&llromd Co. July 27, 1897. 172/160.
10,00 aoras of Ili of Felua &t Xshului (now owned by Kahului Aailroed
Go. ).
8. Parker to Minister of Interior. Deocember 30, 1885, 19/474.
£.00 sores of 111 of Owa {near Catholic Cemeteryl.
Schedule G.
Iesswa glven by H.C.& 5. Co. {lesmoy)

1. ¥amlui Townsite lease.

%0 Xedului Railrond Company, August 10, 1907. 293/139.
¥abhului Townsite {Cross ares, E19.4 aores) excepiing therefrom all
lands owned bs-th;lri pertien, lapds raserved by H.C.4& S5.Co. and lands
surrenisrsd from the leass, the net ares under this lease now being
170.86 acros. (See Title Report Dec. 17, 1984]).
Term: To July 15, 1337,
11. Yahului "Besch Property" lease.

) To K&!ml;ﬂ %ailroad Company. April 30, 1918.
28.00 sores west of Yahului Townalts.
Taym: To July 15, 1937. '
III. Sundry lasssas.

1snses Iand To Expire Anmal Rental

1. Bureau of Agri- _
rulture & Forsstry 2.70 sores st Xahulul Deo.21,1928 $10

2. Trustess, Alexan-
der Settlement 3.00 acres at 3preck-

slavillie Bsach Deo.31,1928 §30 & taxes

Sthedule
Page 2.
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Trhecule G, it

e 1.

e

Y

'3'

Tosnse
3. 2.0 ufkin

Iand

0.92 acres wt Spreok-
elaoville Beach

4. Trantesn, launa-

olu Seminary &.36 acres Et Spreck-

elaville Beach

5. D. H. Case 0.20 aores vt Spreck-

slsville Beach

6. %. A. Clark £.50 mares nt Spreck-

alsville Reach
7. . 8, ¥Yeller
8. R. B. Ealler

Swrackalsvrille "henter
Puunene Theater
9. Mre. R. Lelnert 1.00 scre at Hanlasa Bay

10. Standard Dil

Co. of Celifornia 3J.43 acras at Kehulul

11. H.J.Grmant,

Truetee 7 0.18 aere at Eshului
1Z. Man! Electric
€a., Ltd. 3,75 atras on Beschk Roand

13. Manl County Z2.57 acres near
Fair & Recing Ass'n. Fahuinl

i¢. Maui Country Club

121.9 ecres near
Spreckelavills

15. S.E.Taylor 2.00 nores Sprackals-

ville Beach
Schedule H.

To Explire

Dec.31,1920

Dec.3l,1928
Dec.31,198h

Det.21,10988

Juns 30,1929
June 30,1929
Feb. ED,1980

How. BB, 19456

Hay 31,1940.

dnnual Rental

$10 & taxes

320 & taxes
$10 & taxes

$20 & taxes
$840

§360

36 & taxen

$1 & taxas

§l & taxes

Hov.20,1936 175 & taxes

‘Deo.51,1970

Juna 30,1950

$1

$1 & taxey

$20 & taxon

1icansen and Kights of Say granted by H.C.& S.Co. t0 othars.

1. Fahului-Smiluka Paterworks snd Territory of Hawaii.

Rishts of way for sater main roross sand hills (Dee. 11, 1900) and
for 4™ pipe line from tepk in Owa to Kehului, Qov. 10, 1916, 468/284.

2. IKalmlui Reilrosd Company.

Porpatunl right of way for rellwny purposes fram SPraukahilnt to
H.A:Co. lta's boundary, July 31, 1915, 482/381.

Hauil Tolephons Company Licanae.

license covering telephone lines on H.0.& 8. Go. property, April 11,

13318,

,', 4. ¥aui Elsotric Company, Ltd, ncanu.i

license covaring electric powsr linea on H.C.6 5. Co. proparty,

Tme. 1, 1921.
Sthedula I.

Agrecments under shish H.C.4& $.Co. has certain Rights and Cbligations.

1. Esst Naui Wnter Syetem Agrestent betwsen H.C.& 8. Co., M.A.Co. ltd.,

ant E.K.I.Co.ltd., datec Deg. 31, 1926.

{Appertaining to =ll sattera in



conneotion with the water system of the East Mwui Irrigeation €o. 1T%d.)
.l . West Maul Watcr System Agreewant batween H.C.2 5. Co. and Wsiluku

Sugar Co. of June E3, 198¢, 740/13¢ (Apnertsining te ell metters in

connection with the water mystem of the X.0.& §. Co. and of the V.C.4

$.00. anfi K.5.Co. 1n cozmon).

( 3. Agroomont Tognrding stlee of water by H.C.& S.Co. to County of Maul.
Aug. ;.1. 1986. Term: To Aug. 31, 19481.

v 4. Genersl Agoncy Agreement with Alexauder & Beldwin, 1td. April B,
1903. (As revised Sept. 29, 1920, mnd Aug. 21, 1923). Term: Until cne

&
year after notice of termination. L}
f. Stoak Panling Agresment between H.C.& 5. Co., et sl, and E.F.Bishop,
et al, Trusteas, March 15, 1921, (Posling of stook in C. & H. . R. F":
Corp.} Term: To March 15, 1941, but terminable at any time under cor-
tain conditions. E
v §. Agrssment batween E.0.& 5. Co. et 8l, sand The Bank of California, -
1. &., Fob. 1, 19EE. i
7. Sugar Marketing Agrecment and Contreot between H.C. & 5. U0, and s
Sugsr Faotore Co. Ltd., Sept. 30, 1925. Term: 7o date of termination -
of Oot. 5, J°22, sgroement between S.X.Co.,Itd. and C. & H.5.R.Corp., ¥
or of the atoek pooling agresment as atova noted.
8. Molaeses Marketing Agreemsnt and Contrect botween ¥.C.& 5. €0, and Z
Sugnr Factors Co.. litd., Aug. 16, 1923. Tarm; 'To Deoc. 31, 19E8.
9. Fuel 01l Handling Agreemont between Alexnader & Baldwin I4d., and E
H.C.& 8. o., 8t 4l, Oot. 20, 19E1.. =
10. Surplus Powar Agreements with ¥ahulul Rallroad Co. (Jan. 1, 1983} ) E
and Maui Eleotrio Co..1td. (May 17, 1926), respeotively. Tagerding mele jage " L
of power by H.C.2 S.Co, (Each of -nid!'-;ngrunmsa heing mubject to yesr 3
to year renewal by letter). L;
1n witpess whereof said parties hereto have duly exacuted this "
instrument in duplioste ms of the day snd yesr first sbove written. §
{Corporate Seal) Hawaiian Commercial and Sugnr Company
- 7 By ¥.F.Esldwin, Prenident Lj
By C.R.Hemenway, Assistent Sporetsry
(Corporate Seal) . fawaiian Commeroial and Suger Company, :
Limsted i
By J.Waterhoyue, Vice Prasident 2
By J1.P.0coke, Treasurer *
Territory of Hewaii, County of Maul, ; e8. On this 23r day of Deomaber
L3




il T,

1
et ot

A.5.1%26, befora me appsareu F.F .Bnhﬁ:u;sta me porsonhlly kuown, who

being by me auly sworn aid eay that fRgF/yy¢ the President respociively

af Hawsilan Comnercisl snod Suger CompeEny End that the sasl afﬂnd to |
the fToregoing instrument i& the corporute seal of s&id corporation and

thet suld tnatryment wes sizned apd sealed in behalf of seid gorpora-

tion by suthority of {te Board of Direotors, and the eeid F.F.Baldwin

neknawledged snid instrument to be the free sct and deed of geid cor- |
poration. .

{Eotarial Sexl) R. 3. Braue, liotary Tublic,

Secong Jud!lcisl Cireuit, TPerriiory of Xawsil.

merritory of laweil |

1 ®B.
city snc County of Honolulu ) On this 3let dey of lecember, 1926, ba-

fore ma appeared C. B. Yemenwsy, to me personally known, who, belng by

me duly sworn, di¢ sey that he 1s the Assietant Seoretary of the Hawaii.
rn Commercial & Suger Company. rnd that the seal affized to seid
fngtrument is the corporate aesl of sgid sorporstion, snd thet seld
instrument was signed and sealed 1n behelf of sald corporation by auvhor-
1ty of 1:r Boerd of Blreetors, and seid C.R.Memenwsy acknowledged sald

instrument to be the free ot and deed of said corporsation.

Z:turinl Seal) Jemag F. Morgan, Notary Publlo,

First Juilein]l Circult, Territory of Hewmll.

Territory of Hawsll
B«
On thia Zlat dsy of Deocember 1986, ba-

fors me appeared J. Watarhouse mnd J.P.Cooke both to me parsomally

et ¥

gity and County ¢f Honolulu

xnown, who, being by me duly aworn, 4id sy that they ere respectively
the Vioe President ant Treasurer of the Hewslisn Commereial & Sugar Co.
Id., and that the sesl affixed to sald instrunent 1s the corporata seal
of said eorporation, end that safid instrument wes signed snd sesled in
behelf of svid corporttion by muthority of its Boerd of Direators, and
il J. Weterhopae and J.P.Cooke acknowiedged satd instrumant to be the
fren act and desd of said corporztion.

{Fotarial Seal)} Jamea F. Morgen, Notary Publio,

1zt Judicial Cireuit, Territory of Hewnil.

Eutered of regors this 3rd day of Januery A.D.1927, at 10:18 o‘clook

- - -
A.H. anu sompered, 5-’4:-:--:!".4 L i re. Roglatrar of Conveysnoes.
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RECORDATION REQUESTED BY:

z 2 . waid BRA3U PR 1147

et A, REG!IR A

AFTER RECORDATION: Addressee

MPWA .
i;l_xen cgmpletf :thgi} ;_-(“_'?“6‘,

DEED
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawailiili corporation,
with its principal place of business in Honolulu, Hawaii,
hereinafter callied the "Grantor”, in consideration of the sum of
Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other valuable consideration to it paid
by A&B-HAWAII, INC., a Hawaii corporation, with its principal
place of business at 822 Bishop Street, Honolulu, Hawaii, and
mailing address at P. D. Box 3440, Honolulu, Hawaii 96801,
hereinafter called@ the *“Grantee", theae raceipt of which is hsreby

acknowledged, dJdoes hereby grant, bargain, sell and convey unto
the Grantee, its successors and assigns:

ALL of those certain parcels of land described in
Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof,

subject, however, to the encumbrances mentioned in said
Exhibit A;

AND the reversions, remainders, rents, issues and
profits thereof, together with all buildings, improvements,
tenements, rtights, aasements, privileges and appurtenances
toc the same belonging or appertaining or held and enjoyed
therewith, and all of the estate, right, title and intersst
of the Grantor both at law and in egquity therein and thereto;

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same unto the Grantee, its

successors and assigns, forever, subject to the encumbrances
mentioned in said Exhibit A;

AND the Grantor, for itself, its Bsuccessors and
assigng, hereby covenants with the Grantee, its successors
and assigns: THAT the Grantor has good right to grant and
convey said land and premises unto the Grantee as aforesaid
and that ¢the same are free and clear of and from a?ll
encumbrances made or suffered by the Grantor, except the
encunbrances mentioned in said Exhibit A.




23006 G584

IN WITNESS WHERECF, the darantor has caused these
presents to ke zecuted by its duly authorized cfficers this

wHetw day of av et ., 1989, but effective as of the
\ =% day of &*Qf\\ . 1989,

ALEXARDER & BALDWIN, TINC.

BY -
Its SENIO] T ENT

BY ALMMZJ 0. /@L@ﬂ,ﬂ_.-————

Its  ASST. stcderant

31638

Y w‘l .

s

e

1 tLadh
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- 23006 585
STATE OF HAWAII )]
Yy 88
CITY AND COUNTY OF HOROLULU )
On this t\w. day of ‘\"\“\’d‘\-' . 1989, before me
" appeared R. K. SASAXI and _BEVERLY I REFN s to
i me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, 4id say that
. they are SENIOR VICE PRESIDE and ASST, SECRETARY , Tespectively.
' of ALEXRANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation; that the
seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the corporate seal
Y of such corporation and *hat such instrument was signed and
H sealed on hehalf of such corporation by authorﬂ:y of its Board
. of Directors; and said R. K. 54 and __BEVERIY | fprepg

acknowledged such instrument to be the free act and deed of such
corporaticon.

Notary Public, State of lgawaii
My commission expires: &-—-"9M"




23006 586
EXHIBIT A
FIRST:
All that certain parcel of land situate in the City

and County of Honolulu, state of Hawali., aesignated as Tax Map

Rey ?.-—1—013—001. containing an area of L4349 acre, (a coPY which

is attached hereto and made a part hereof) .
i
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SECOND:

588

All of those certain parcels of land situate in the

County of Maui, State of Hawaii, designated upon the Tax Maps

for the Second Division,

TAX KEY

SECOND DIVISION

2=-3=-008-009
2-4-001-004
2-4-001-006
2-4-001-010
2-4-001-019
2-4-002-007
2-4-002-010
2~4-016-003
2~5-001~001
2=-5=-001-002
2-5-001-008
2-5-0G1-009
2~-5-002-001
2-5=-002-002
2-5-002-004
2-5-002-005
2-5=-002-006
2-5-002~010
2=5=002-011
2-5-003~-001
2~-5-003-006
2=-5=-003—~007
2-5-003-008
2=-5-003-009
2-5-003~010
2-5-003-012
2-5~003-017
2-5-003-020
2-5-004-013
2=-5-004-024
2~5-004-026
2-5-004-035
2-5-004-036
2-5-004-037

AREA SHOWN

ON TAX MAP

0.7500
50.2460
5.5000
1.2190
6.4300
129.7400
9.0000
1,068.0000
1,983.4300
264.48%00
1,815.5000
138.6000
1,942.58200
2,48B6.7860
10.3000
142.3300
2.6700
136.0300
1.2900
316.5%60
0.9200
4.B000
9.0000
538.9200
2,380.8840
0.4800
0.0670
0.1030

D0, B000
5.7000
21.1580
1.0000
683.4520
118.7890

State of Hawali

(copies of which are
attached hereto and made a part hereof) as follows:

TAX EKEY

SECOND DIVISION

AREA SHOWN
ON TAX MAP

2-5-004-038
2-5-004-039
2=-5=-004-043
2-5-004-045
2=5=-004-046
2=-5=004-047
2-5=004-055
2=5-004-068
2=-5-004-069
2=-5=004~-070
2—5-004~-073
2=5=004-074
2-5-004-079
2-5-005-002
2-5=-005-005
2-5-005-006
2=5=005=-007
2-5-4305-009
2=5=-005-011
2-5-005-012
2=5-005~013
2=5=0D05~014
2-5~005-016
2=5-005-017
2-~5-005-018
2~5-005-019

2-5~005-020

2-5~-005-021
2-5~-005-026
2-5=005-027
2-5-005-028
2-5-005=-030
2—-5-005-033

2-5-005~038

36.0000

2,524.5860
G.5000
4.67040
4,.6700
0.9400
0.9200
0.4620
0.8100
1.%200
1.5800
1.3500
4.1700
2.6100
2.2500
5.5100
0.2000
1.6700
0,3100
9.3100
2.9400
1.0300
9.3600
32,1860
362.9500
816.9130
1,098,8550
764.6580
0.8600
0.35000
0.4000
1.14040
1.0200
2.6100
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23006 589

TAX KEY AREA SHOWN TAX KEY
SECOND DIVISION ON T2X MAP

AREA SHOWN
ON TAX MAP

SECOND DIVISION

0.7500

2-5-005=-044 2-8-004-034 7.60040
2=-5-005-046 12.5300 2=-8-004-057 38.2000
2-5-005-047 4.6400 2=-R-004-058 25.6510
2-5-005-052 0.2700 2-8-004=-059 2.000

2-5-005--053 0.8400 2-8-004-082 11.4200
2-5-005-057 23.4010 2=-8-004-063 24.4090
2-5-006-019 0.6800 2-8-004-0D64 0.1900
2~-6=-001-001 3.5170 2~B—004-065 0.7500
2=-6-001=004 1.6830 2-B-004-066 8.9500
2~6—003-027 0.2220 2=-8-006-023 1.2000
2-6-005-014 0.1300 2-8-006-027 1.1500
2-6-009-002 12.4z220 2—-8-006~054 4.7500
2-6-009-018 0.5500 2-8=~006—-055 0.5800
2-6—~009-019 0.6500 2~-8=-006—-056 0.4500
2-6-009-023 0.4660 2-8-006=-057 0.5000
2-6-010~013 0.0830 2-8-006-D58 6.9900
2—6-010-016 0.1320 2-8-008-001 163,.3000
2-6-012-033 0.5000 2-8-008-008 187.1000
2-7=0021-028B 0.4440 2—-8-008-~009 3B.5000
2-7--001-046 0.0800 2-8-008~010 1.9000
2=7-001-058 0.8500 3=-3=001=-033 1.6700
2=-7-002-004 225.2100 . 3-3-002-011 0.3600
2-7-002+05B 35.2000 3=-3~002-019 0.2400
2-7-003-001 159.8100 3-3-002-020 4.0700
2=7=003-005 0.44C0 3=4—-002-045 0.0400
2-7~003-~011 3.159¢0 3—-4-003-020 1.0800
2-7-003-013 29.6500 3=-4=-009-002 0.5100
2=7=-003-019 4,3200 3-4-010-001 2.6410
2=7=003-030 0.1400 3-4-010-004 0.2000
2-7-003-032 i9.9100 3=4~011-001 0.8500
2-7=-003-052 1.8400 3=4=017-052 0.3230
2-7-003-055 24,8000 3-4-~-018=-003 0.9400
2-7-003-056 1¢.2020 3-4-021-061 0.0460
2=-7-003-059 1.9500 3-4-033-024 0.7060
2-7-003-081 112,3000 3-4-033-029 0.1000
2=-7-003-082 6.9800 3-4-038-003 0.9960
2=7=003~-0B3 18.2000 3-4-038-005 0.2060
2=7=-003-084 33,0000 3-7-001-005 1.9800
2-7--003-085 2.2100 3~7-001~-007 1.3760
2-7=004-001 183.5700 3-7-001-0210 0.0970
2=7=-015=-032 0.4700 3-7-001-015 0.0790
2-7—-015-033 16.0000 3-7=-001-016 1.2830
2-7—-015-034 516.4000 3-7-001-018 0.0050
2-7=-033-014 92,4790 3-7~002-006 0.2900
2-8-003=005 0.6600 3-7=002-016 0.0390
2=-8=-003-027 0.0700 3-7-003-002 1.4230
2-8-004-014 4.6200 3-7=-003-003 0.4480
2-8-004-028 6.3200 3-7-003-D26 0.4020

ar v e



TAX KEY

SECOND DIVISION

3-7-003-027
3-7-003-028
3.-7--004-001
3-7-005-003
3=7-005-011
3-7-005-023
3~-7-008~006
3-7-0D0B-008
3-7-008-017
3-7-011-001
3-7-011-006
3-7-011-011
3.7=011-013
3-7-011-019
3-7-013-001
3-8-001-001
3-8-001-003
3-8-001-004
3-8-001-005
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TAX KEY
FOURTH DIVISION

1-8-002-001
1-8-005-011
1-8-005-014
1-9-001-005
1-9-001-016
1-9-002-015
1-9-002-016
1-9-004-023
1-9-007=-001
1-9-012-024
2=1-001~0D02
2-1-001-015
2=1-001=038
2=1~002—-001
2~1-003-011
2—=-1-003-024
2-~1=-003~025
2-1-003-026
2—~1=-003-027
2=-3-0D02-021
2-3-002-024
2-3-002-D45
2—~3-006-004
2-3-007~007
2=-3-007-014
2-3-~009-017
2=4=001=010
2=4-0G1-015
2=4=006-00Q7
2-4-D06-019
2—-4--006-021
2—-4-007~-004
2-4-007-024

AREA SHOWN

ON _TAX Map

4.5100
0.9100
2.6800
0.5300
2.9660
3.3320
0.110G
5.9210
19.5030
1.4370
0.7500
3.7500
8.9230
25.9890
0.2300
0.3200
0.6614
1.2620
0.0680
6.7000
0.1730
1.5000
0.B600
0.09%00
0.2892
2,5500
1.0000
0.6800
0.0070
0.1800
0.1100
44 .8800
21.7400

(copies of which are
attached heretc and made a rart hereof) as follows:

TAX KEY

FOURTH DIVISION

AREA SHOWN
ON TAX MAP

2=4~-007-025
2=-4-007-026
2-4-0710-008
2=5-006-001
2-5=-006-005
2-5-006~017
2—6~-003~003
2-6—-003-004
2-6=-003-019
2=6=-003~021
2=6-003=~-023
2—6-003-031
2—6-003~-033
2—6-003~034
2—-6=-003~035
2—6=003-044
2-6-003-054
2=6-004-010
2—6=-004-011
2—£6=004~016
2—6—-004-017
2—6~-004-018
2=—6-004-038
2—6—-004-044
2—-6-004-045
2—-6-011-016
2-~7=-007-001

227.5300
2.1200
0.1140
0.3460
2.3000
0. 0450
5.3000
0,0790
2.0100
0.2430
0.1160

309.9400

10.6000

34.1400

47,5700
0.3556

10.8800
0,7510
1.4790

26.4600
0,2350
3.2380

310.6040
7.8570

10.6520
0.4710
2.1140
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SUBJECT, HOWEVER, TO, as to all of the land described
any and all encumbrances affecting the land described
above existing as of the date of this instrument.

above,

TOGETHER WITH BUT SUBJECT TO, as to all of the land
described above, any and all leases affecting portion or

portions of the land described above existing as of the date of

+this instrument, and all rents reserved thereunder, and the

benefit of all the lessee's covenants and all rights and
xemedies of the lessor contained therein.
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Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs

...-...lt.". .

CERTIFICATE OF MERGER |
I, KATHRYN S. MATAYOSH]I, Director of Commerce and Consumer Affairs of
the State of Hawaii, do hereby certify that pursuant to the Articles of Merger and Plan
of Merger of ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation, filed in this
Department on December 15, 1999, in accordance with the provisions of Section 415-75
of the Hawaﬁ Rev_ised Statutes, A&B-HAWALIJ, INC., 2 Hawaii corporation, was merged

with and into ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC. on December 31, 1999, at 11:59 p.m.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have hereunto
set my hand and affixed the seal of the
Department of Commerce and Consumer
Affairs, at Honoluly, State of Hawaii, this

3™ day of January, 2? 0.
=

Director of Commerce and Consumer

Affairs
FALBCE Ay, 4= Commissioher of Securities
“..nnu. ’ )
é;.‘ ....o '..."-':";.#
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.- AN Wty
Stute of Wamaii
Bepartment of Treasury and Regulation

FHanoinin

Mis hﬂ'?hg cerlified dhat the allacked és a Grue and exact cofty o/.’-

CERTIFICATE OF TREASURER OF THE STATE OF HAWALI OF MERCER
' of
HAWAITAN COMMERCIAL AND SUGAR COMPANY, LIMITED
with and inco

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LIMITED
issued on January 3, 1962,
——

s " "._ _‘-‘_ﬁ-—h___\
S ' I witness wherenf, F doee Astound
- e ool my hond and ofived ke seal of lhe
: Depariment of Tieasury and Regulation, af
Konolule, i bthoey of  Januvary, »962 .
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5 THE DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY AND REGULATICN

STATE OF HAWAII

Ir. the Matter of the Merger of

HAWAIIAN COMMERCIAL AND SUGAR
COMPANY, LIMITED

with and into

)
}
)
)
)
%’
ALFXANDER & BALDWIN, LIMITED ;
)

CERTIFICATE OF TREASURER OF THE
STATE OF HAWATI OF MERGER
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iN THE DEPARTMENT Or TREASURY AND REGULATION

STATE OF HAWAII

Tr. the Matter of the Merger of

HAWAIIAN COMMERCIAL AND SUGAR
COMPANY, LIMITED

with and into

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LIMITED

CERTIFICATE OF TREASURER OF THE
STATE OF HAWATI OF MERGER

_ ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LIMITED, = Hawairi corporstien,
and HAWAITAN COMMERCIAL AND SUGAR COMPANY, LIMITED, & like
corpoeration, having f:led in the (ffice of the Treasurer of
ine State .of Hawsiir for approval a Merger Agreement by and
petween the said ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LIMITED, and HAWAITTAK
COMMERCIAL AND SUGAR COMPANY, LIMITED, dated as of December
29, 1961, together with accompanying certificates of approval,
pursuant to and in compliance with the preovisions of Chapter
173, Revised Laws of Hawai: 1955, and 1t appearing therefrom
: and from the documents on file in this office that all of the
; provisions of said Chapter 173 have been fully complied with,

and that the Treasursr should certafy that said merger has

frgpae aab iy g

=

been effected in compliance with said Chapter 173,

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that said Merger Agreement

R

O et
:

15 !
G

oy Lt

—

be and it 1s hereby approved;, u b

ARD 1n compliance with Section 173-11 of the Revised

T
T

Laws of Hawai: 1955,

IT 1S5 HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:
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E. F.

is as follows:

and Alexander & Baldwin, Limited;

{2)

follows-

{1} That the name of sach constituent corparation

Hawaiian Commercial and Sugar Company, Limited,

That the name of the surviving corporation is as

Alexander & Baldwin, Limited;

(3) That the names of the officers and divectors of

the surviving corporatiom, 4t the time of the filing of the

Merger Agreement, are as follows:

Name
J. W. Cameron

. . Cadagan

J. T. Waterhouse
J. 6. McIntosh

. Kingsbury

=
tn

., Sheehan
Goss
Jamieson
Gorie
Waterhouse
Ruff

R. H. Cox

Major

/ A N

H
¥. S. Benedict

A, F. Baldwin

Dffice
Chajrgan of the Board

President, General
Manager and Director

Vice President and
Director

Vice President and
Pirecter

Vice Pfesident

Vice PgESident and
Secretary

Vice President
Treasurexr

Assistant Treasurer
Assistant Treasurer
and Director
Asgistant Treasurer
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretiary

.
Assistant Secretary

Dizector

Address
Paia, Maui

4014 Poli Hiwa Place
Honolulu, Hawaiai

3850 Round Top Drive
Honolulu, Hawsii -

2130 Ralston Avenue
Hillsborough, Calif.

1920-92nd Street N.E.
Bellevue, Washington

3871 0ld Pali Road
Honoluln, Hawaii

40803 Kolohala Street
Honeolulu, Hawai:

4809 ¥olohala Street
Honolula, Hawaii

220 Highland Avenue
Piedmont, California

2125 Keeaumoku Street
Honolulu, Hawaia

9538 Pia Street
Honolulu, Hawaii

1951 Kakela Draive
Honelulu, Hawaii

4370 Kahala Avenue
Honolulu, fawai:

220 Séltcn Drive
Menlo Park, Calif.

Puunene, Maui
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l,ame Office Address

R. H. Baldwin Director Makawao, Maui

E. Benner, Jr. Director 4473 Aukal Avenue
Honoluiu, Hawaii

A. L. Castle Director 23 Jack Lane,
Honolulu, Hawaiai

. E. Hanson Director 1510 Ualakag Place
Honolulu, Hawaii

J. B. Hurd Director 115 Lexford Road
Piedmnpt Calaf.

J. R. Judd Director 2490 Makiki Helghts
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IN THE DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY AND REGULATION
STATE OF HAWAII
In the Matter of the Amendment
of the Articles of Associaticn
of
ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LIMITED
Changing the Nawe of the Corperation
to
ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC,
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IN THE DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY AND REGULATION

STATE OF HAWAII
In the Matter of the Amendmsni
of the Articles of Association

of .=

ALFYANDER & BALDWIN, LIMITED
Changing the Name of the Corporation
to

boYE

RLEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.

CERTIFICATE OF CHANGE OF NAME

IT 13 HEREBY CERTIFIED that pursuant to and in accordance
with Section 172-20, Revised Laws of Hawaii 1955, as amended, there
has been duly filed in the Department of Treasury and Regulation
of the State of Hawa.: a verified cerxtificate showing that at a
special meeting of the stockholders of ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LIJITED
duly called and held for that purpose, among others, Article FIRST
of the Articles of Association of said corporalion was amended by
4 vote of not less than two-thirds of all of ihs corpordiion’s
i1ssued and outstaading stock having voting por:r; that the
Treasurer of the State of Hawari has determined that sueh amend-
meni is not in conflict with Seotion 172-11 of the Revised Laws
of Hawail-iess Qs amended; that by the aforesaid amendment the
nammqgf the carpoxaggon has been changed from ALEXANDER & BALDWIN,
LIMIIED to’ ALEXAHDER'& BALDWIN, INC; that such change of name, in
acqu@anqe with law, nhal; become effective npon the filing of

this Certificate iﬂﬁﬁhe Burean of Conveyances of the State of
Hawaii. ;:” e
Fdn. T
IN. WITNESS WHEREQF, T have hereunto sst my hand and
affired the seal of the Treasurer’s Office, State of Hawaii at

Honolulu, Hawaii, this Slee# day of January, 1962.




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 106-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009
OR

[ 1 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15{d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 000-00565
A3} ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC,

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Hawaii 99-0032630
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.5. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

822 RBishop Street
Pust Office Box 3440, Honeluly, Hawaii 96801
{Address of principal executive offices and zip cods)

808-525-6611
(Registrant's telephone number, including aren code)

Securitics registerced pursuant to Section 12{b} of the Aci:

Name of each exchange

Title of each class on which registered
Common Stock, without par value NYSE

Securities registered pursnant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None

Number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at February 11, 2010:
41,071,571

Aggregate market value of Commeon Stock held by non-affiliates at June 30, 2009:
$937.803,905
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is 2 well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes[® No O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Ssetion 15{d) of the Act. Yes O No[Bd

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has iled all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 1 5(d) of the Securities Bxchange Acl
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registram was required to file such reports), and {2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes B No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted elecironically and posied on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursnant to Rule 405 of Regulation 5-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorier period that
the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes O No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to liem 405 of Regulation S-K is nol contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of regisirant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statemnents incorporated by reference in Part 1l of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large aceelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, br a smaller reporting
company. Sec definition of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act,

Large accelerated filer X Acceierated filer O
Non-accelerated filer [ (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smafler reporling company &

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as delined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). YesOO No

Documents Incorporated By Reference
Portions of Registrant’s Proxy Statement dated March 11, 2010 (Part I1I of Form 10-K)

EXHIBIT "5"



ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.......o.ccooovonvecrncnenee
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MANAGEMENT'S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. has the responsibility for éstablishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal conirol over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-
15(6) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company's principal executive and principal financial officers and effected by the company’s
board of directors, management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and includes those policies and procedures that:

Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of assets of the company;

Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company’'s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting only provides reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statement presentation and preparation. Projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2009. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Commitiee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Jnternal Control-Integrated Framework. Based
on its assessment, management believes that, as of December 31, 2009, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting is effective. The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, Deloiite & Touche

LLP, has issued an audif report on the Comypany’s internal control over financial reporting. That report appears on
page 58 of this Form 10-K.

Stanley M. Kuriyama , Christopher J. Benjamin

President and Chief Execufive Officer Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer

February 25, 2010 February 25, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Alexander & Baldwin, Inc.
Honolula, Hawaii

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
*Company") as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, stackholders' equity, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009. We also have audited the Company's internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria established in Infermal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's management is responsible for these financial statements, for
mairtaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness -of internal control over
financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on Infernal Control Over Financial Reporting, Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial staternents and an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial
reporting based on cur audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financtal statements
are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal conirol over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects,
Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimaies made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Cur audit of infernal conirol over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
conirol aver financial reporiing, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such ofher procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal contral over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of
directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for exiernal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable defail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preveniion or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisiion, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal conirol over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditicns, or that ihe degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred fo above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three ‘years in the period ended December 31, 2008, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of Decermber 31, 2009, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/ ‘ ““;ﬂ«;‘:._ LS
Honolulu, Hawaii
February 25, 2010
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ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In millions, except per-share amounts)

Operating Revenue:
Ocean transportation
Lopistics services
Real estate leasing
Real estate sales
Agribusiness
Total operating revenue
Operating Costs and Expenses:
Cosi of ocean transporlation services
Cost of logistics services
Cost of real estate sales and leasing
Cost of agribusiness goods and services
Selling, general and administrative
Total operating costs and expenses
Operatinp Income
Other Income and (Expense):
Gain on insurance settlement and other
Gain on consolidation of HS&RTC (Note 3)
Equity in income of real estate affiliates
Impairment Joss cn investment
Interest income
Interest expense
Income From Cbnlinuing Operations Before Income Taxes
Income taxes
Income From Continuing Operations
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (Note 2)
Net Income

Basic Earnings per Share of Common Stock:
Continuning operations
Discontinued operations
Net income

Dilated Earnings per Share of Commeon Stock:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income

Weighted Average Number of Shares Quistanding:
Basic
Diluted

See notes 1o consolidated financial statemenis.
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Year Ended December 31,
2008 2008 2007
$ 887 1,021 § 1,003

321 436 433

84 79 12

16 225 23

a7 119 120
1,405 1,880 1,601
710 825 789
280 381 381

59 229 47

130 133 120
154 163 165
1,363 1,731 1,502

42 149 148

- 8 1

5 _— —

-- 9 23

@ {2) -

-- 1 3

(25) {24 (19)

20 141 157

B 52 59

12 89 98

32 43 44

$ 414 132§ 142
$  0.29 217 $ 230
0.79 1.04 . 104

$§ 1.08 321 0§ 334
§ 0.29 215 § 2.27
0.79 1.04 1.03

$ 108 319 § 330
41.0 41.2 42.5
41.5 43.1
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ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{In millions)

Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operations:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Gains on disposal of assets, net of impairment losses
Casualty gain from receipt of insurance proceeds
Gain on consolidation of HS&TC
Share based expense
Equity in income of affiliates, net of distributions
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts and notes receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Deferred dry-docking costs
Liability for employee benefit plans
Accounts and income taxes payable
Other liabilities
Real Estate Developments Held for Sale:
Real estate inventory sales
Expenditures for real estate inventory
Net cash provided by operations
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures for property and developments

Proceeds from disposal of income-producing property, investments and other assets

Proceeds from insurance settlement related to 2005 casualty loss
Depaesits into Capital Construction Fund
Withdrawals from Capital Construction Fund
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired
Payments for purchases of investments
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments
Net cash used jn investing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Praceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Payments of long-term debt and deferred financing costs
Proceeds from {payments on) short-term borrowings, net
Repurchases of capilal stock
Proceeds from issuance of capital stock, net of excess tax benefit
Dividends paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Net increase {decrease) for the year
Balance, beginning of year
Balance, end of year

Other Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid, nef of amounts capitalized
Income taxes paid

Non-cash Activities:
Debt assumed in real estate purchase
Tax-deferred property sales
Tax-deferred property purchases

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007
$ 44 3 132§ 142
105 101 93
1 19 26
(51} (61) (64)
. 8) .
() -
9 11 17
(1 11 1
(16} 24 i)
(6) (6) @
(5) 3 12
10 ©) 22
- (3) @
20 37 19
11 (17 14
5 184 11
8) (39) (110)
115 275 124
@1 {109) {122
32 19 18
- ) -
ey M (30)
4 8 30
1] 27N -
(48) (60) (43}
6 19 2
@1 (149) {145)
211 127 139
(288) (138) (88)
13 )] 15
- (59) (33)
W) 2 8
(52) (51) (48)
(8D (124) 0]
3) 2 (28)
19 17 45
$ 16 3 19 3 17
$ 29 3 (25 % (25)
$ (38 5 (6D 5 (55
$ - % 1 3% -
$ e § 112§ 83
$ (M5 $ 46 5 (1
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ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC,
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except per-share amount)

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts and notes receivable, less allowances of $10 for 2009 and $8 for 2008

Inventories
Real estate held for sale
Deferred income {axes
Section 1031 exchange proceeds
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Total current assets
Investments in Affiliates
Real Estate Developments
Property - net
Employee Benefit Plan Assets
Other Assets
Total

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Notes payable and current portion of lonp-term debt
Accounts payable
Payroli and vacation benefils
Uninsured claims
Deferred income taxes
Accrued and other liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term Liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Employee benefit plans
Uninsured claims and ether liabilities
Total long-term liabilities
Commitmenis and Contingencies (Note 12)
Shareholders’ Equity

Capital stock — common stock without par value; authorized, 150 million shares ($0.75
stated value per share); outstanding, 41.0 million shares in 2009 and 2008

Additional capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings
Cost of treasury stock
Total sharcholders’ equity
Total

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

61

December 31,
2008

2008

172
43
36

33
Jo7
242

88

1,536

204
$ 2,380

132
18

73
297

406
428
116

18
998

$

19
163
28
20

23

31

284
208
78
1,580

187

2,350

52
105
18
10

32

238

452
414
122

52

1,040

33
204
(96)
942
(11)

$

1,072

$_ 2350



ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the three years ended December 31, 2009

(In millions, except per-share amounts)

Accumulated
Capital Stock Other
Issued In Treasury Compre-
Stated Additional hensive Retained
Shares  Value Shares  Cost Capital Loss Earnings Total
Balance, December 31, 2006 46.2 35 36 {11) 179 (19} 843 1,027
Net income ' — — — — — — 142 142
Other comprehensive income,
net of tax:
Defined benefit plans:
Net gain (loss) — — — — — 14 — 14
Less: Amortization of net {gain)
loss — — — — — 1 — 1
Total comprehensive income 157
Shares repurchased 0.7) (1 — — 4) — (28) (33)
Shares issued 0.5 — — — 8 — — 8
Share-based compensation — — — — 17 _ _ 17
Adjustment to initially adopt
accounting for uncertain tax
positions — — — — — — 2 2
Dividends ($1.12 per share) — — — — — — (48) (48)
Balance, December 31, 2007 46.0 kT i6 (8] 200 1) 11 1,130
Net income — — — — — — 132 132
Other comprehensive income, net of
tax:
Defined benefit plans:
Net loss/prior service cost — — — — — (93) — (93}
Less: Amortization of net
loss/prior service cost — —_ — — — 1 — 1
Total comprehensive income 40
Shares repurchased (1.4) 1) — — (8) — (50) (59)
Shares issued — — — — 1 — — 1
Share-based compensation — — — — 11 — — 11
Dividends ($1.23 per share) — — — — — — (51) (51)
Balance, December 31, 2008 446 33 36 a1 20 (96) 942 1,072
Net income — — — — — — 44 44
Other comprehensive inceme, net of
tax:
Defined benefit plans:
Net gain/prior service (cost) — — — — — 7 — 7
Less: Amaortization of net
loss/prior service cost — — — — — 8 — 8
Tota! comprehensive income 59
Excess tax benefit and share
withholding — — — — 3 — — (3
Share-based compensation — — — — 9 — — 9
Dividends ($1.26 per share) — — — e — — (52) (52)
Balance, December 31, 200% 446 § 33 36 $ (an s 2id % (81) $ 934 $ 1,08

See notes io consolidated financial statements.
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ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC. .
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business. Founded in 1870, Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. (“A&B" or the “Company”) is
incorporated under the Jaws of the State of Hawaii. A&B operates in five segments in three industries:
Transportation, Real Estate and Agribusiness. These industries are described helow:

Transportation: The Transportation Industry consists of Ocean Transportation and Logistics
Services segments. The Ocean Transportation segment, which is conducted through Matson Navigation
Company, Inc. ("Matson"}, a wholly-owned subsidiary of A&B, is an asset-based business that derives its
revenue primarily through the carriage of contalnerized freight between various 1.S. Pacific Coast, Hawaii,
Guam, China and other Pacific island ports. Additionally, the Ocean Transportation segment has a 35
percent interest in an entity (SSA Terminals, LLC or “SSAT") that provides terminal and stevedoring
services at U.S. Pacific Coast facilities. The Logistics Services segment,- which is conducted through
Matson Integrated Logistics, Tnc. ("MIL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Matson, is a non-asset based
business that is a provider of domestic and iniernational rail intermodal service (“Intermodal”), long-haul
and regional highway brokerage, specialized hauling, flat-bed and project work, less-than-truckioad,
expedited/air freight services and warehousing and distribution services (collectively “Highway™).
Warehousing and distribution services are provided by Matson Global Distribution Services, Inc.
("MGDS”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of MIL. MGDS’s operations also include Pacific American

Services, LLC ("PACAM”), a San Francisco bay-area regional warehousing, packaging, and distribution
company.

Real Estate: The Real Estate Industry consists of two segments, both of which have operations in
Hawaii and on the U.S, Mainland. The Real Estate Sales segment generates its revenues through the
development and sale of land and commercial and residential properties. The Real Estate Leasing segment
owns, operates and manages retail, office and industrial properties. Real estate activities are conducted
through A&B Properties, Inc. and various other wholly-owned subsidiaries of A&B.

Agribusiness: Agribusiness, which contains ane segment, produces and transports bulk raw sugar,
specialty food-grade sugars, and molasses; produces, markets, and distributes roasted coffee, green coffee
and specialty food-grade sugars; provides general trucking services, mobile equipment maintenance and
repair services, and self-service storage in Hawaii; and generates and sells, to the extent not used in the
Company's operations, electricity. In the fourth quarter of 2009, the Company became the sole member in
Hawaiian Sugar & Transportation Cooperative {“HS&TC"), a cooperative that provides raw sugar
marketing and transportation services to its members, and therefore, the Company consolidated HS&TC
beginning December 1, 2008 in accordance with Financial Accounting Standard Board ("FASR")
Accounting Standards Codification {"ASC") Topic 810 related to consolidation.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Alexander &
Baldwin, Inc. and all wholly-owned and controlled subsidiaries, after elimination of significant intercompany
amounts. Significant investments in businesses, partnerships, and limited liability companies in which the Company
does not have a controlling financial interest, but has the ability to exercise significant influence, are accounted for
under the equity method. A controlling financial interest is cne in which the Company has a majority voting interest

or one in which the Company is the primary beneficiary that absorhs the majority of the expected losses, or receives
a majority of the expected residual returns, or both, of a variable interest entity.

Risks and Uncertainiies: Factors that could adversely impact the Company’s operations or financial results
include, but aré not limited to, the following: unfavorable economic conditions in the U.S,, Guam, or Asian markets
that result in a further decrease in consumer confidence or market demand for the Company's services and products;
increased competition; replacement of the Company’s significant operating agreements; reduction in credit
availability; downgrade in the Company’s credit rating that affecis its ability to secure adequate financing and/or
increase the cost of financing; failure to comply with restrictive financial covenants in the Company’s credit
facilities; insolvency of the Company's insurance carriers; insolvency and/or failure of joint venture partner to
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perform; loss and/or insolvency of significant agents, customers, or vendors; unfavorable political conditions in
domestic or international markets; sirikes or work stoppages; increased cost of energy or labor; noncompliance with
and/or changes in laws and regulations relating to the Company’s business; unfavorable litigation or legal
proceedings or government inquiries or investigations; adverse weather conditions; changes in the legal and
regulatory environment; changes in accounting and taxation standards, including an increase in tax rates; an inability
to achieve the Company’s overall long-term goals; an inability te protect the Company’s information systems; future

impairmeni charges; increased pension costs; inadequate internal controls; and giobal or regional catastrophic
events.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported. Significant estimates and assumptions are used for, but not limited to;
(i) asset impairments, (ii) legal contingencies, (iii} allowance for doubtful accounts, (iv) revenue recognition for
long-term real estate developments, (v} self-insured liabilities, (vi) pension and postretirement estimates, and (vii)

income taxes. Future results could be materially affected if actual results differ from these estimates and
assumptions. :

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with a weighted-average
maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase. The Company carries these investments at cost, which
approximates fair value. Qutstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit totaled $22 million and $15 million at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and are reflected as current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

Fair Value of Financial Insiruments. The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and
short-term borrowings approximate their carrying values due to the short-term nature of the instruments. The
carrying amount and fair value of the Company’s long-term debt at December 31, 2009 was $471 million and $475
million, respectively and $504 million and $471 million at December 31, 2008, respectively,

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: Allowance for doubtful accounts are established by management based
on estimates of collectibility. The changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts, included on the consolidated
balance sheets as an offset to “Accounts and notes receivable,” for the three years ended December 31, 2009 were as
follows (in millions):

Balance at Write-offs Balance-at
Beginning of vear Expense and -Other End of Year
2007 $14 $- $(2) $12
2008 $12 $1 $(5) $8
2009 $8 $3 (1) $10

Inventories: Sugar and coffee inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) or market
value. Materials and supplies inventory are stated at the lower of cost (principally average cost) or market value.
Inventories at December 31, 2009 and 2008 were as follows (in millions):

2009 2008
Sugar and coffee inventories $ 28 $ 13
Materials and supplies inventories 15 1]
Total $ 43 $ 28

Dry-docking: Under U.S. Coast Guard rules, administered through the American Bureau of Shipping’s
alternative compliance program, all vessels must meet specified seaworthiness standards to remain in service.
Vessels must undergo regular inspection, monitoring and inaintenance, referred to as "dry-docking,” to maintain the
required operating certificates. These dry-docks occur on scheduled intervals ranging from two to five years,
depending on the vessel's age. Because the dry-docks enable the vessel to continue operating in compliance with
U.S. Coast Guard requirements and provide future economic henefits, the costs of these scheduled dry-docks are
deferred and amortized until the next regularly scheduled dry-dock period. Routine vessel maintenance and repairs
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that do not improve or extend asset lives are charged to expense as incurred. Deferred amounts are included on the
consolidated balance sheets in non-current other assets. Amortized amounts are charged to operating expenses in the
consolidated staiements of income. Changes in deferred dry-docking costs are included in the consolidated
statements of cash flows in cash flows from operating activities,

Property: Property is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures for
major renewals and betterments are capitalized. Replacements, maintenance, and repairs that do not improve or
extend asset lives are charged to expense as incurred. Costs of developing coffee orchards are capitalized during the
development period and depreciated over the estimated productive lives. Upon acquiring commercial real estate that
is deemed a business, the Company records land, buildings, leases above and below market, and other intangibles
based on their fair values. Due diligence costs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation: Depreciation and amortization is-computed using the straight-line methed over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. Estimated useful lives of property are as follows:

Classification Range of Life {in years)
Vessels 10 to 40
Buildings 10 to 40
Water, power and sewer systems 5to 50
Machinery and equipment 2to 35
Other property imiprovements Jto 35

Real Estate Developments: Expenditures for real estate developments are capitalized during construction
and are classified as Real Estate Developmenis on the consolidated balance shests. When construction is
substantially complete, the costs are reclassified as either Real Estate Held for Sale or Property, based upon the
Company’s intent to either sell the completed asset or to hold it as an investment property, respectively. Cash flows
related to real estate developments are classified as either operating or investing activities, based upon the

Company’s intention to sell the property or to retain ownership of the property as an jnvestment following
completion of construction.

For development projects, capitalized costs are allocated using the direct method for expenditures that are
specifically associated with the unit being sold and the relative-sales-value method for expenditures that benefit the
entire project. Capitalized development costs typically include costs related to land acquisition, grading, roads, water
and sewage systems, landscaping, capitalized interest, aind project amenities. Direct overhead costs incurred after the
development project is substantially complete, such as utilities, maintenance, and real estate taxes, are charged to

selling, general, and administrative expense as incurred. All indirect overhead costs are charged to selling, general,
and administrative costs as incurred.

Capitalized Interest: Interest costs incurred in connection with significant expenditures for real estate
developments, the construction of assets, or investments in joint ventures are capitalized during the period in which
activities necessary to get the asset ready for its intended use are in progress. Capitalization of interest is
discontinued when the asset-is substantially complete and ready for its intended use. Capitalization of interest on
investments in joint ventures is recorded until the underlying investee commences its principal operations, which is
typically when the investee has other-than-ancillary revenue generation. Total interest cost incurred was $26 million,
$25 million, and $26 million in 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Capitalized interest was $1 million and $7
million in 2008 and 2007, respectively. Capitalized interest in 2009 was not material.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: Long-lived assets are reviewed for possible impairment when events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. In such an evaluation, the estimated fiture
undiscounted cash flows generated by the asset are compared with the amount recorded for the asset to determine if
its carrying value is not recoverabie. If this review determines that the recorded value will not be recovered, the
amount recorded for the asset is reduced to estimated fair value. The Company has evaluated certain long-lived
assets for impairment; however, no impairment charges were recorded as a result of this process. These asset
Impairment Joss analyses are highly subjective because they require management to make assumptions and apply
considerable judgments to, among others, estimates of the timing and amount of future cash flows, expected useful
lives of the assets, unceriainty about future events, including changes in economic conditions, changes in operating
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performance, changes in the use of the assets, and ongoing cost of maintenance and improvements of the assets, and
thus, the accounting estimates may change from period to period. If management uses different assumptions or if
different conditions occur in future periods, the Company’s financial condition or its future operating results could
be materially impacted.

Impairment of Investments: The Company's investments in unconsolidated affiliates are reviewed for
impairment whenever there is evidence that fair value may be below carrying cost. An investment is written down
to fair value if fair value is below carrying cost and the impairment is considered other-than-temporary. In
evaluating the fair value of an investment, the Company reviews discounted projected cash flows associated with
the investment and other relevant information. In evaluating whether an impairment is other-than-temporary, the
Company considers all available information, including the length of time and extent of the impairment, the
financial condition and near-term prospects of the affiliate, the Company’s ability and intent to hold the investment
for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market value, and projected industry and
economic trends, among others.

In determining the fair value of an investment and assessing whether any identified impairment is other-
than-temporary, significant estimates and considerable judgments are involved. These estimates and judgments are
based, in part, on the Company’s current and future evaluation of economic conditions in general, as well as a joint
venture’s current and future plans. These impairment calculations are highly subjective because they also require
management to make assumptions and apply judgments to, among others, estimates of the timing and amount of
future cash flows, probabilities related to various cash flow scenarios, and appropriate discount rates. Changes in
these and other assumptions could affect the projected operational results of the unconsolidated affiliates, and
accordingly, may require valyation adjustments to the Company's investmenis that may materlally impact the
Company's financial condition or its future operating results. For example, if the current market conditions continue
fo deferiorate or 2 joint venture's plans change, additional impairment charges may be required in future periods,
and those charges could be material.

In 2009, the Company evaluated certain investments in unconsolidated affiliates for impairment. As a
result of this process, the Company recorded an impairment loss of approximately $2.5 million related to its Ka
Milo joint venture investment. Continued weakness in the real estate sector or difficulty in obtaining or renewing
project-level financing may affect the value or feasibility of certain development projects owned by the Company or
by its joint ventures and could lead to additional impairment charges in the future.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets: Goodwill and intangibles are recorded on the consclidated balance sheets
as other non-current assets. Recorded goodwill is reiated to the acquisition of logistic service entities and earnout
ohligations (see Note 3}. Recorded intangible assets are related to logistic service entity acquisitions as well as the
acquisition of commercial properties. The Company reviews goodwill for potential impairment on an annual basis,
or more frequently if indications of impairment exist. Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances would indicate the carrying amount of the intangible assets may not be
recoverable, There were no impairments of goodwill or intangible assets in 2009, 2008, or 2007.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were as
follows (in millions):

Goodwill
Balance, December 31, 2007 3 12
Additions 14
Balance, December 31, 2008 26
Additions - 1
Balance, December 31, 2009 § 27
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Intangible assets for the years ended December 31 included the following (in millions):

2009 2008
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Amortized intangible assets:
Customer lists $§ 12 3 (1) § 12 F O
In-place Jeases 11 £)] 8 2)
Other 8 @) 6 (3)
Total assets $ 2 $ (12) $§ 26 3 (8

Agpgregate intangible asset amortization was $4 million, $3 million, and $2 million for 2008, 2008, and
2007, respectively. Future estimated amortization expense related to intangibles are as follows (in millions):

Estimated
Amertization
2010 $ 4
2011 3
2012 2
2013 2
2014 1

Investment in Note Receivable: As of December 31, 2009, the Company had invested, as part of its real
estate investment strategy, $11 million in a note receivable secured by real estate. The note was classified as a non-
current asset. At acquisition, due to evidence of deterioration of credit quality, it was probable that the Company
would not be able to collect all contractually required payments. Accordingly, the note receivable was acquired at a

discount. The note receivable was recorded at cost with no valuation allowance, and no interest income is being
accrued.

1031 Exchange Proceeds: As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had $61 million and $71

million, respectively, of proceeds related to qualifying 1031 tax-deferred sales. These proceeds are classified as non-
current assets on the consolidated balance sheets until reinvested in qualifying property.

Revenue Recognition: The Company has a wide range of revenue sources, including, shipping revenue,
logistics revenue, property sales, rental income, and sales of raw sugar, molasses and coffee. Before recognizing
revenue, the Company assesses the underlying terms of the transaction to ensure that recognition meets the
requirements of relevant accounting standards, In general, the Company recognizes revenue when persuasive

evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery of the service or product has occurred, the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Voyage Revenue Recognition: Voyage revenue is recognized ratably over the duration of a voyage based
on the relative transit time in each reporting period, commonly referred to as the percentage-of-completion method.
Voyage expenses are recognized as incurred,

Logisiics Services Revenue Recognition: The revenue for logistics services includes the total amount billed
to customers for transportation services. The primary costs include purchased transportation services. Revenue and
the related purchased transportation costs are recognized based on relative transit time, commonly referred to as the
percentage-of-completion method. The Company reports revenue on a gross basis. The Company serves as principal
in transactions because it is responsible for the centractual relationship with the customer, has latitude in
establishing prices, has discretion in supplier selection, and retains credit risk.

Real Estate Sales Revenue Recognition:  Sales are recorded when the risks and rewards of ownership have
passed to the buyers (generally on closing dates), adequate initial and continuing investments have been received,
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and collection of remaining balances is reasonably assured. For certain development projects that have material
continuing post-closing involvement and for which total revenue and capital costs are reasonably estimable, the
Company uses the percentage-of-completion method for revenue recognition. Under this method, the amount of
revenue recognized is based on development costs that have been incurred through the reporting period as a
percentage of total expected development cost associated with the development project. This generally results in a
stabilized gross margin percentage, but requires significant judgment and estimates.

Real Fstate Leasing Revenue Recognition: Real estate leasing revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the ferms of the related leases, including periods for which no rent is due (typically referred to as “rent
holidays”). Differences between revenue recognized and amounts due under respective lease agreements are
recorded as increases or decreases, as applicable, to deferred rent receivable. Also included in rental revenue are
certain tenant reimbursements and percentage rents determined in accordance with the terms of the leases, Tncome
arising from temant rents that are contingent upon the sales of the tenani exceeding a defined threshold are
recognized only after the contingency has been resolved (e.g., sales thresholds have been achieved).

Sugar and Coffee Revenue Recognition: Revenue from bulk raw sugar sales and coffee sales is recorded
when title to the product and risk of loss passes to third parties (generally this occurs when the product is shipped or
delivered to customers) and when collection is reasonably assured.

Non-voyage Ocean Transporiation Costs: Depreciation, charter hire, terminal operating overhead, and
general and administrative expenses are charged to expense as incurred.

Agricultural Costs: Costs of growing and harvesting sugar cane are charged to the cost of inventory in the
year incurred and to cost of sales as raw sugar is sold. Costs of growing coffee, excluding orchard development
costs, are charged to inventory in the year incurred and to cost of sales as coffee is sold.

Discontinved Operations: The sales of certain income-producing assets are classified as discontinued
operations if the operations and cash flows of the assets clearly can be distinguished from the remaining assets of the
Company, if cash flows for the assets have been, or will be, eliminated from the ongoing operations of the
Company, if the Company will not have a significant continuing involvement in the operations of the assets sold,
and if the amount is considered material. Certain assets that are “held-for-sale,” based on the likelihood and
intention of selling the property within 12 months, are also treated as discontinued operations. Upon reclassification,
depreciation ceases on assets reclassified as "held-for-sale.” Sales of land and residential houses are generally
considered inventory and are not included in discontinued operations.

Employee Benefit Flans: Certain Ocean Transportation subsidiaries are members of the Pacific Maritime
Association ("PMA”) and the Hawali Stevedoring Industry Commitiee, which negotiate multiemployer pension
plans covering certain shoreside bargaining unit personnel. The subsidiaries directly negotiate multiemployer
pension plans covering other bargaining unit persornel. Pension costs are accrued in accordance with contribution
rates established by the PMA, the parties to a plan or the trustees of a plan. Several trusteed, non-contributory,
single-employer defined benefit plans and defined contribufion plans cover substantially all other employees.

Share-Based Compensation: The Company records compensation expense for ali share-based payment
awarids made to employees and directors. The Company’s various equity plans are more fully described in Note 11,

_ Basic and Diluted Farnings per Share ("EF5 "} of Common Stock: Basic earnings per share is defermined

by dividing net income by the weighted-average common shares outstanding during the year. The calculation of
diluted earnings per share includes the dilutive effect of unexercised non-qualified stock options, non-vested
common stock, and non-vested stock units. The computation of average dilutive shares outstanding excluded non-
qualified stock options to purchase 1.8 million, 1.1 million, and 0.2 million shares of common stock for 2009, 2008,
and 2007, respectively. These amounts were excluded because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the
average market price of the Company’s common stock for the periods presented and, therefore, the effect would be
anti-dilutive.
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The denominator used lo compute basic and diluted earnings per share is as follows (in millions):

2009 2008 2007

Denominator for basic EPS: weighted average shares outstanding ' 41.0  41.2 42.5
Effect of dilutive securities;

Quistanding stock options, non-vested stock, and non-vested stock units 0.1 0.3 0.6
Denominator for diluted EPS: weighted average shares outstanding 41.1 41.5 43.1

On January 27, 2010, the Company granted to employees, non-gualified stock options exercisable into
422,156 shares of common stock at $33.02 per share, 69,540 shares of time-based restricted stock units, and 92,743
shares of performance-based restricted stock units. The time-hased restricted stock units vests ratably over three

years and the performance-based restricted stock units vests ratably over three years, provided that the one-year
performance target is achieved.

Income Taxes: Significant judgment is required in determining the Company’s tax liabilities in the multiple
Jurisdictions in which the Company operates. Deferred income taxes are provided for the tax effect of temporary
differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are adjusted to the extent necessary to reflect tax rates expecied to be
in effect when the temporary differences reverse. Adjustments may be required to deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities due to changes in tax laws and audit adjustments by tax authorities. To the extent adjustments are

required in any given period, the adjustments would be included within the tax provision in the consolidated
statements of income and/or consolidated balance sheets.

The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance for its deferred tax assets. A valuation allowance
would be established if, based on the weight of available evidence, management believes that it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of a recorded deferred tax asset would not be realized in future periods.

Restricted Net Assets of Subsidiaries: Matson is subject to restrictions on the transfer of net assets under
certain debt agreements. These restrictions have not had any effect on the Company’s shareholder dividend policy,
and the Company does not anticipate that these restrictions will have any impact in the future. At December 31,

2009, the amount of net assets of Matson that may not be transferred to the Company was approximately $286
million.

Derivative Financial Instruments: The Company periodically uses derivative financial instruments such as
Interest rate and foreign currency hedging products to mitigate risks. The Company’s use of derivative instruments is
limited to reducing its risk exposure by utilizing interest rate or currency agreemenis that are accounted for as
hedges. The Company does not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading or other speculative purposes nor
does it use leveraged financial instruments. All derivatives are recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at their
fair value. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, there were no material derivative instruments held by the Company.

Comprehensive Income (Loss): Comprehensive income (loss) includes all changes in Shareholders' Equity,
except those resulting from capital stock transactions. Accumulated other comprehensive loss principally includes
amortization of deferred pension/postretirement costs. The components of other comprehensive loss, net of taxes,
were as follows for the years ended December 31 (in millions):

2009 2008 2007
Unrealized components of benefit plans:
Pension plans $ (73 $ (90 $ 2
Postretirement plans - 1 3
Non-yualified benefii plans (6) (5) {6)
SSAT pension plan and other (2 (2 3
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $§ (8D $  {98) $ {4
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Environmental Costs: Environmenial exposures are recorded as a liability and charged to operating
expense when the environmental liability has been incurred and can be estimated. If the aggregate amount of the
liability and the amount and timing of cash payments for the liability are fixed or reliably determinable, the
environmental liahility is discounted. An environmental liability has been incurred when both of the following
conditiens have been met: (i) litigation has commenced or a claim or an assessment has been asserted, or, based on
available information, commencement of litigation or assertion of a claim or an assessment is probable, and (i)
based on available information, it is probable that the outcome of such litigation, claim, or assessment will be
unfavorable. If a range of probable loss is determined, the Company will record the obligation at the low end of the
range unless another amount in the range better reflects the expected loss. Certain costs, however, are capitalized in
Property when the obligation is recorded, if the cost (1) extends the life, increases the capacity or improves the
safety and efficiency of property owned by the Company, {2) miligates or prevents environmental contamination
that has yet to occur and that otherwise may result from future operations or activities, or (3)is incurred or

discovered in preparing for sale property that is classified as “held—for-sale.” The amounts of capitalized
environmental costs were not material at December 31, 2009 or 2008.

Self-Insured Liabilities: The Company is self-insured for certain losses that include, but are not limited fo,
employee health, workers’ compensation, general liability, real and personal property, and real estate construction
warranty and defect claims. When feasible, the Company obtains third-party insurance coverage to limit its exposure
to these claims. When estimating its self-insured liabilities, the Company considers a number of factors, including
historical claims experience, demographic factors, and valuations provided by independent third-parties.
Periodically, management reviews its assumptions and the valuations provided by independent third-parties to
determine the adequacy of the Company's self-insured liabilities.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards: In October 2009, the FASB issued guidance on revenue
arrangements with multiple deliverables effective for the Company’s 2010 fiscal year, although early adoption is
permitted. The guidance revises the criteria for separating, measuring, and allocating arrangement consideration to
each deliverable in a multiple element arrangement. The guidance requires companies to allocate revenue using the
relative selling price of each deliverable, which must be estimated if there is no history of selling the deliverable on
a stand-alone basis nor third-party evidence of selling price. The adoption of this standard is not expected o have a
material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In June 2009, the FASB issued guidance to revise the approach to determine when a variable interest entity
(*VIE") should be consolidated. The new consolidation mode] for VIEs considers whether the Company has the
power {o direct the activities that most significantly impact the VIE's economic performance and shares in the
significant risks and rewards of the entity. The guidance on VIEs requires companies to continually reassess VIEs to
determine if consolidation is appropriate and provide additional disclosures. The guidance is effective for the

Company in 2010. The Company is currently assessing the potential effect of this guidance on its consolidated
financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance on accounting for asseis acquired and liabilities
assumed in a business combination that arise from contingencies that amend the provisions related io the initial
recognition and measurement, subsequent measurement and disclosure of assefs and liabilities arising from
contingencies in a business combination under previously issued guidance. The revised authoritative guidance
requires that such contingencies be recognized at fair value on the acquisition date if fair value can be reasonably
estimated during the allocation period. This authoritative guidance will be effective for the Company in 2010, The
adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial position or results of
operations.

Rounding: Amounts in the consolidated financial statements and Notes are rounded to millions, but per-

share calculations and percentages were determined based on amounts befare rounding. Accordingly, a recalculation
of some per-share amounts and percentages, if based on the reported data, may be slightly different.
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2. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During 2009, the sales of an office/retail property on Oahu for $37.9 million, a retail shopping center in
California for $20.3 million, an office building in Arizona for $20.1 million, an industrial property on Qahu for
$13.0 million, an industrial property in California for $8.3 million, and various parcels on Maui have been classified

as discontinued operations. Additionally, a retail property on Oahu was classified as discontinued operations (the
Company sold the property in January 2010},

During 2008, the sales of two retail properties on the mainland for $61.2 million, one mainland office
property for $20.6 million, a multi-tenant residential rental property for $12.1 million, three commercial properties
on Maui for $12.9 million, land previously leased to a telecommunications tenant on Maui for $8.1 million, several
commercial leased fee parcels on Maui for $8.1 million, and various land parcels on Maui for $2.4 million have
been classified as discontinued operations.

During 2007, the sales of land leased to a retail tenant on Oahu for approximately $46 million, five
commercial properties on Maui for approximately $42 million, a commercial property in California for

approximately .37 million, and a commercial property on Maui sold in 2008 have been classified as discontinued
operafions.

The revenue, operating profit, income tax expense and after-tax effects of these transactions for 2009, 2008,
and 2007 were as follows (in millions, except per share amounts):

2009 2008 2007
Sales Revenue $ 110 $ 125 $ 95
Leasing Revenue $ 14 $ 26 $ 35
Sales Operating Profit 5 44 $ 55 $ 5
Leasing Operating Profit $ 8 $ 14 $ 20
Income Tax Expense $§ 20 $ 26 § 27
Income from Discontinued Operations $ 32 $ 43 $ 44
Basic Earnings Per Share $ 0.79 $ 104 $ 1.04
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 0.79 $ 1.04 $ 1.03

The results of operations from these properties in prior years were reclassified from continuing operations
to discontinued operations to conform to the current year's accounting presentation. Consistent with the Company's
intention to reinvest the sales proceeds into new investment property, the proceeds from the sales of property treated

as discontinued operations were deposited in escrow accounts for tax-deferred reinvestment in accordance with
Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code.

3 ACQUISITIONS AND RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s Hawaiian Commercial & Sugar Company division and Gay & Robinson (“G&R") were
members in Hawaiian Sugar & Transportation Cooperative (‘HS&TC"), a cooperative thal provides raw sugar
marketing and transportation services to its members. In the fourth quarter of 2009, G&R ceased the production of
raw sugar. As a result of G&R's cessation of raw sugar production in the fourth quarter of 2009, G&R's
memberskip in the cooperative terminated because a cooperative member must be an active producer. Consequently,

upon G&R's withdrawal, the Company became the sole member in HS&TC and consolidated HS&TC beginning
December 1, 2009. '

The identitiable assets and liabilities from HS&TC were recorded based upon their estimated fair values at
December 1, 2009. Approximately $5 million of identifiable assets, net of liabilities, measured at fair value, was
recorded as a grain and classified as Other Income {Expense) in the consolidated statements of income. In
consolidation, approximately $11 million of cash, $6 million in fixed assets, $8 million in inventory, $2 million in
prepaid and other assets, and $22 million in accrued and other liabilities were recorded.
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The Company consolidated the results of operations of HS&TC effective December 1, 2009. The Company
has not presented unaudited pro forma results of operations because the consolidation of HS&TC is not material to
its consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Under the terms of a supply contract between HS&TC and C&I1 Sugar Company, Inc. ("C&H"), C&H is
obligated to purchase, and HS&TC is obligated to sell, all of the raw sugar delivered to HS&TC by the Hawaii sugar
growers, at prices determined by the quoted domestic sugar market. Revenue from raw sugar and molasses sold to
HS&TC, prior to December 1, 2009, was $38 million, $45 million, and $53 million during 2009, 2008, and 2007,
respectively.

On August 28, 2008, Matson Global Distribution Services ("MGDS”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Matson Integrated Logistics, acquired substantially all of the assets and assumed certain liabilities of Pacific
American Services, LLC ("PACAM”"), a regional, warehousing, packaging and distribution company specializing in
value-added handling of domestic, import and export goods, headquartered in Qakland, California. The acquired net

tangible asseis of PACAM consisted primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounis receivable, prepaid expenses'

and fixed assets, partially offset by accounts payable, and other current and long-term liabilities that MGDS
assumed, PACAM was acquired to expand the Company's warehousing and distribution service capabilities.

The purchase price was approximately $24 million in cash, including transaction costs. The total purchase
price was allocated to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their estimated
fair values at the acquisition date, with the excess purchase price allocated to goodwill. Approximately $3 million
was allocated to fixed assets, $1 million was allocated to accounts receivable, accounts payable and other accrued
liabilities, $9 miilion was allocated to identifiable intangibles, principally customer relationships, and $11 million
was allocated to goodwill. Commencing with the date of the acquisition, identifiable intangibles are being amortized

to general and administrative expense over an average useful life of 13 years. The goodwill recorded is deductible
for tax purposes.

The results of operations of PACAM were included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements
effective August 29, 2008. The Company has not presented unaudited pro forma results of operations because the
acquisition of PACAM is not material to its consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

4. INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, investments consisted principally of equity in lmited liability companies.
The Company does not have a controlling financial interest in any of these investments and, accordingly, accounts
for its investments using the equity method of accounting. Consclidated retained earnings at December 31, 2009 that
represent undistributed earnings of investments in affiliates was approximaiely $32 million. Dividends and
distributions from unconsolidated affiliates totaled $8 million, $30 million, and $36 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

The Company’s investments in affiliates are summarized, by industry, as follows {in millions):

2009 2008
Invesiment in Unconsolidated Affiliated Companies:
Real Estate and Other $ 195 § 164
Transportation 47 44
Total Investmenis $ 242 $ 208
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Operating results include the Company’s proportionate share of net income from its equity method
investments. A summary of financial information for the Company’s equity method investments by industry at
December 31 is as follows (in millions):

2009 2008
Real Estate Transportation Real Estate Transportation
Current assets § 48 $ 60 $ 61 § 46
Noncurrent assets 554 118 497 113
Total assels $ 602 $ 178 $ 558 $ 159
Current liabilities $ 97 $ 29 $ 61 $ 35
Nencurrent liabilities 111 26 148 11
Total liabilities $ 208 $ 55 $ 209 $ 46
Year Ended December 31,
2008 2008 2007
Real Estate:
Operating revenue $ 14 $ 73 $ 132
Operating costs and expenses 8 47 90
Operating income $ 5 $ 28 P 4z
Income from continuing operations $ 1 £ 22 £ 38
Net income $ 1 22 $§ 38
Transportation:
Operaling revenue § 478 $ 505 5 519
Operaling costs and expenses 470 502 494
Operaling income ' $ 6 $ 3 $ 25
Income from continuing operations* $ 20 $ 13 $ 32
Net income £ 20 £ 13 32

* Includes earnings from equity method investments held by the investee,

Real Estate: At December 31, 2009, the Company and its real estate subsidiaries had investments in various
Joint ventures that operate and/or develop real estate. The Company does not have a controlling financial interest in
any of these veniures and, accordingly, accounts for its investmenis in the real estate ventures using the equity
method of accounting. A summary of the Company's principal investments is as follows:

a) Kukui'ula: In April 2002, the Company entered into a joint venture with DMB Communities
I, an affiliate of DMB Associates, Tnc., an Arizona-hased developer of master-planned
communities ("DMB"), for the development of Kukui'ula, a 1,000-acre master planned resort
residential community located in Poipu, Kauai, planned for approximately 1,000 to 1,200
high-end residental units. The capital contributed by A&B to the joint venture, including the
value of land initially contributed, was $138 million as of December 31, 2009, and DME has
contributed $161 million. The Company has a 50-percent voting inferest in the venture.

b) Kai Malu at Wailea: In April 2004, the Company entered into a joint venture with Armstrong
Builders, Ltd. for development of the 25-acre MF-8 parcel at Wailea into 150 -duplex units.
Sales commenced in 2006, with 135 units closed as of year end. As of December 31, 2009, six

of the remaining 15 units have been leased. The Company has a 50-percent voling interest in
the venture.

73



¢) Ka Milo at Mauna Lani: In April 2004, the Company entered into a joint venture with

d)

e

Brookfield Homes Hawaii Inc. to develop a 30.5-acre residential parcel in the Mauna Lani
Resort on the island of Hawaii. A total of 27 units were constructed in 2007 and 2008 and, as
of year-end 2009, 20 units had closed. In December 2009, the project’s construction loan,
with a year-end balance of $15.8 million, matured. The venlure is negotiating with the lender
to refinance the loan (see Note 12). Due to market conditions, the Company recorded an
impairment loss of approximately $2.5 million in December 2009. Construction of the

remaining units in the project has been deferred until a new husiness plan is evaluated for the -

future construction of the remaining units. The Company has a 50-percent voting interest in
the venture.

Crossroads Plaza: In June 2004, the Company entered into a joint venture with Intertex
Hasley, LLC, for the development of a 56,000-square-foot mixed-use neighborhood retail
center on 6.5 acres of commercial-zoned land in Valencia, California, The property was
acquired in August 2004 and construction of the center was completed in 2008. In August
2009, a $12 million construction loan held by the veniure matured, The joint venture is
currently negotiating with the lender to extend the maturity date of the loan (see Note 12). As
of December 31, 2009, occupancy was 85 percent. The Company has a 50-percent voting
interest in the venture.

Bridgeport Marketplace: In July 2005, the Company entered Into a joint venture with Intertex
Bridgeport Marketplace, LLC for the development of a 27.8 acres in Valencia, California.
Construction of the center was completed in 2009 and is 95 percent leased. The Company has
a 50-percent voting interest in the venture.

Waiawa: In August 2006, the Company entered into a joint venture with an affiliate of
Gentry Investment Properties, for the development of a 1,000-acre master-planned primary
residential community (530 residential-zoned acres) in Central Qahu. In the second half of
2009, the master development agreement for the Waiawa lands between Kamehameha
Schools and Gentry was terminated. However, because the jeint venture has fee simple
ownership, or the right to acquire at no cost, approximately 58 acres of developable land, in
addition to 125 acres of gulch land required for the major project land bridge and road leading
to the project, the venture and the Company continue to evaluate their options for the
development of this master-planned community. The Company has a 50-percent voting
interest in the venture.

Bakersfield: In November 2006, the Company entered into a joint venture with Intertex P&G
Retail, LLC, for the planned development of a 575,000 square-foot retail center on a 57.3-acre
commercial parcel in Bakersfield, California. The parcel was acquired in November 2006.
Development plans remain on hold due to current economic conditions. The Company has a
50-percent voting interest in the venture,

Kukai'ula Village: In August 2007, the Company entered into a joint venture with DMB
Kukui'ula Village LL.C for the development of Kukui’ula Village, a planned 91,700 square-
foot commercial center located at the entrance of the Kukui’'ula project. Construction on
83,600 square feet commenced in 2008, was completed in March 2009, and the center opened
for business in August 2009. As of December 31, 2009, the center was 56 percent Ieased. The
Company has a 50-percent voting interest in the venture.

Santa Barbara Ranch: In November 2007, the Company entered into a joint venture with
Vintage Communities, LLC (*Vintage”), a residential developer headquariered in Newport
Beach, California. Vintage and its affiliates intend to develop 1,049 acres for an exclusive
large-lot subdivision, located 12 miles north of the City of Santa Barbara. The joint venture
owns appraximately 22 acres in the project. In 2008, due to the deterioration in the local real
estate market, the Company recorded a $3 million impairment loss. Additionally, in 2008,
because the Company declined te provide any further equity funding, Vintage and its affiliate
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had the option to purchase the Company’s investment for $15 million plus a 12 percent
preferred return (“Preferred Return”). Since Vintage and its affiliate failed to exercise this
option, the Company, in iis sole discretion, has the right to cause the joint venture to sell
certain Santa Barbara land parcels to satisfy the Company’s investment basis plus the
Preferred Return. The Company confinues to evaluate alternatives to maximize the value of
the venture’s assets that serve as collateral for the repayment of its investment. The Company
has a 50-percent voting interest in the venture,

j) Palmdale Trade & Commerce Center: In December 2007, the Company entered into a joint
venture with Intertex Palmdale Trade & Commerce Center LLC, for the planned development
of a 315,000 square-fooi mixed-use commercial office and light industrial condominium
complex on 18.2 acres in Palmdale, California, located 80 miles northeast of Los Angeles and
25 miles northeast of Valencla. The parcel was contributed to the venture in 2008,
Development plans were placed on hold due to current market conditions, although the

venture is continuing with water infrastructure work. The Company has a 50-percent vofing
interest in the venture. :

Transportation; Matson owns a 35-percent membership interest in an LLC with SSA Marine Inc., named
SSA Terminals, LLC ("SSAT"), which provides stevedoring and terminal services at five terminals in three West
Coast ports to the Company and other shipping lines. Matson accounts for its interest in SSAT under the equity
method of accounting. The "Cost of transportation services” included approximately $135 million, $145 million, and
$150 million for 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively, paid to this unconsclidated affiliate for terminal services,

The Company’s equity in earnings of its unconsolidated transportation affiliate of $6 million, $5 million,
and $11 million for 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively, were included on the consclidated statements of income
with costs of transportation services because the affiliate is integrally related to the Company’s Ocean
Transportation segment, providing all terminal services to Matson on the 1U.S. West Coast.

3. PROPERTY

Property on the consolidated balance sheets includes the fullowing {in millions):

2009 2008

Vessels $ 1,216 $ 1,209
Machinery and equipment 609 296
Buildings ' 507 522
Land 165 146
Water, power and sewer systems 119 115
Other property improvements 99 112

Total 2715 2,700
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,179) {1,110}

Property — net § 1536 $ 1,500

6. CAPITAL CONS’i‘RUCTION FUND

Matson is party to an agreement with the United States government that established a Capital Construction
Fund (*CCF") under provisions of the Merchant Marine Act, 1936, as amended. The agreement has ‘program
objectives for the acquisition, construction, or reconstruction of vessels and for repayment of existing vessel
indebtedness. Deposits to the CCF are limited by certain applicable earnings. Such deposits are tax deductions in the
year made; however, they are taxable, with interest payable from the year of deposit, if withdrawn for general
corporate purposes ot other non-qualified purposes, or upon termination of the agreement. Qualified withdrawals for
investment in vessels and cerfain related equipment do not give rise to a current tax liability, but reduce the
depreciable bases of the vessels or other assets for income tax purposes.
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Amounts deposited into the CCF are a preference item for calculating federal alternative minimum taxable
income. Deposits not committed for qualified purposes within 25 years from the date of deposit will be treated as
naon-qualified withdrawals over the subsequent five years.

Under the terms of the CCF agreement, Matson may designate certain qualified earnings as “accrued
deposits” or may designate, as obligations of the CCF, qualified withdrawals to reimburse qualified expenditures
initially made with operating funds. Such accrued deposiis to, and withdrawals from, the CCF are reflected on the
consolidated balance sheets either as obligations of the Company’s current assets or as receivables from the CCF. At

December 31, 2009, Matson has accrued a $4.4 million withdrawal from the CCF and a $4.4 million deposit to the

CCF, reflecting a zero net balance in the consolidated balance sheets,

As of December 31, 2009, there was no CCF deposit balance. As of December 31, 2008, the balance on
deposit in the CCF totaled $0.1 million.

7. NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, notes payable and long-term debt consisted of the following (in millions}:

2009 2008
Revolving Credit loans, (0.68% for 2009 and 1.16% for 2008) $ 34 $ 135
Title XI Bonds:
5.27%, payable through 2029 14 46
5.34%, payable through 2028 42 44
Term Loans:
6.90%, payable through 2020 108 -
4.79%, payable through 2020 73 51
5.55%, payable through 2017 50 50
5.53%, payable through 2016 30 50
4.10%, payable through 2012 25 30
5.56%, payable through 2016 25 25
6.20%, payable through 2013 i1 il
6.38%, payahle through 2017 8 8
7.42%, payable through 2010 3 6
4.31%, payable through 2010 ) 3 6
5.88%, payable through 2014 3 3
7.55%, payable through 2009 - 7
7.57%, payable through 2009 - 2
Total debt 471 504
Less current portion (65) {(52)
Long-term debt $ 406 $ 452

Long-term Debt Maturities: At December 31, 2009, debt maturities during the next five years and
thereafter are $65 million in 2010, $27 million in 2011, $39 miilion in 2012, $40 million in 2013, $48 million in
2014 and $252 million thereafter.

Revolving Credit Facilities: The Company has two revolving senior credit facilities with six commercial
banks that expire in December 2011. The revelving credit facilities provide for an aggregate commitment of $325
million, which consists of $225 million and $100 miilion facilities for A&B and Matson, respectively. Amounts
drawn under the facilities bear interest at London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR”) plus a spread ranging from
0.225 percent to 0.475 percent based on the Company’'s S&P rating. The agreement contains certain restrictive
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covenants, the most significant of which requires the maintenance of minimum shareholders’ equity levels,
minimum unencumbered properfy investment values, and a maximum ratio of debt to earnings before interest,
depreciation, amortization and taxes. At December 31, 2009, $34 million was outstanding and classified as current,

$10 million in letters of credit had been issued against the facility, and $281 million remained available for
borrowing.

Matson has a $105 million secured reducing revolving credit agreement with DnB NOR Bank ASA and
ING Bank N.V. that expires in June 2015, The maximum amount that can be outstanding on the facility declines in
eight annual commitment reductions of $10.5 million each, commencing in June 2007, The incremental borrowing
rate for the facility is 0.225 percent over LIBOR through June 2010. For the remaining term, the incremental
borrowing rate is 0.300 percent over LIBOR. The agreement contains certain restrictive covenants, the most
significant of which requires the maintenance of minimum net worth levels, minimum working capital levels, and
maximum ratio of long-term debt to net worth. At December 31, 2009, no amount was outstanding and
approximately $74 million remained available for borrowing.

The Company has a replenishing $400 million three-year unsecured note purchase and private shelf
agreement with Prudential Investment Management, Inc. and its affiliaies (collectively, “Prudential”) under which
the Company may issue notes in an aggregate amount up to $400 millien, less the sum of all principal amounts then
outstanding on any notes issued by the Company or any of its subsidiaries to Prudential and the amount of any notes
that are commitled under the note purchase agreement. The Prudential agreement contains certain restrictive
covenants that are substantially the same as the covenants contained in the aggregate $325 million revolving senior
credit facilities. In 2009, the Company borrowed $100 million at 6.9% with a final maturity in March 2020. The
ability to draw additional amounts under the Prudential facility expires on April 19, 2012 and borrowings under the
shelf facility bear inferest at rates that are determined at the time of the borrowing. At December 31, 2009,
approximately $71 million was available under the facility.

The unused borrowing capacity under all revolving credit and term facilities as of December 31, 2009
tofaled $426 million,

Title XI Bonds: In August 2004, Matson partially financed the delivery of the MV Maunawili with
$55 million of 5.27 percent fixed-rate, 25-year term, U.S. government Guaranteed Ship Financing Bonds, more

commonly known as Tifle XI bonds. These bonds, which are secured by the MV Maunawili, are payable in $1.1
million semiannual paymenis.

In Sepiember 2003, Matson partially financed the delivery of the MV Manukaf with $55 million of 5.34

percent fixed-rate, 25-year term, Title X1 bonds. These bonds, which are secured by the MV Manukai, are payable in
$1.1 million semiannual payments.

Vessel Secured Term Debi: Matson has an Amended and Restated Note Agreement with The Prudential
Insurance Company of America and Pruco Life Insurance for $120 million. Included in the agreement are Series A
and Series B notes. Series A represents a $15 million note and Series B represents 15-year term notes totaling $105
million. Both series are secured by the MV Manulani. The Series A note carries interest at 4:31 percent with $3

million currently outstanding. The Series B notes carry interest at 4.79 percent with $73 million currently
outstanding,

Real Estate Secured Term Debt: In June 2005, A&B Properties, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, assumed $11.4 miltion of secured debt in connection with the purchase of an office building in Phoenix,

Arizona. This term loan, with an outstanding amount of $11 million at December 31, 2009, carries interest at 6.2
percent and matures in October 2013,

In December 2008, A&B Properties, Inc. assumed approximately $13 million of secured debt, with a fair
value of $11 million at the time of acquisition, under two notes in connection with the purchase of the Midstate 99
Distribution Center in Visalia, California. At December 31, 2009, the notes had outstanding amounts of $8 miltion

and $3 million, and carry interest at 6.38 percent and 5.88 percent, respectively. The $9 million note matures in
August 2017 and the $4 million note matures in April 2014.
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8. LEASES

The Company as Lessee; Principal non-cancelable operating leases include land, office and terminal
facilities, containers and equipment, leased for periods that expire through 2036, Management expects that, in the
normal course of business, most operating leases will be renewed or replaced by other similar leases. Rental expense
under operating leases totaled $30 miilion, $31 million, and $32 million for 2009, 2008, and 2007, respeciively.
Rental expense for operating leases that provide for future escalations are accounted for on a straight-line basis.
Future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2009 were as follows {in
millions):

Operating
Leases

2010 3 14
2011 13
2012 12
2013 12
2014 11
Thereafter 25
Total minimum lease payments $ 87

In addition to the future minimum lease payments above, the Company has an operating lease for terminal
facilities in Honolulu that includes a minimum annual commitment, which is calculated by the lessor based on
capital improvements by the lessor and an aflocation of lessor operating expenses. The Company’s payments of
volume-based charges to the lessor must meet or exceed the minimum annual commitment. The Company’s
volume-based payments to the lessor were approximately $16 million in 2008, $16 million in 2008, and $17 million
in 2007, and there were no minimum annual guarantee payments in any year.

The Company as Lessor: The Company leases land, buildings, and land improvements under operating
leases. The historical cost of, and accumulated depreciation on, leased property at December 31, 2009 and 2008
were as follows {in millions):

2009 2008
Leased property - real estate $ 694 $ 693
Less accumulated depreciation {101) (102)
Property under operating leases - net $ 593 $ 591

Total rental income under these operating leases for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2009 was as follows {in miliions);

2009 2008 2007
Minimum rentals % 78 $ 82 $ 80
Contingent rentals (based on sales volume) 3 4 4
Total $ 81 $ 86 $ 84

78

e R

R



Future minimum rentals on non-cancelable leases at December 31, 2009 were as follows (in millions);

Operating
Leases

2010 $ 67
2011 57
2012 43
2013 33
2014 24
Thereafter 80
Total 5 304

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has funded single-employer defined benefit pension plans that cover substantially all non-
bargaining unit employees and certain bargaining unit employees, In addition, the Company has plans that provide
certain retiree health care and life insurance benefits to substantially all salaried and to certain hourly employees,
Employees are generally eligible for such benefits upon refirement and completion of a specified number of years of
credited service. The Company does not pre-fund these benefits and has the right to modify or terminate certain of
these plans in the future. Certain groups of retirees pay a portion of the benefit costs. :

Plan Administration, Investments and Asset Allocations: The Company has an Investment Commitiee that
meets regularly with investment advisors to establish investment policies, direct investments and select investment
options. The Investment Committee is also responsible for appointing investment managers. The Company’s
investment policy permits investments in marketable equity securities, such as domestic and foreign stocks,
domestic and foreign bonds, venture capital, real estate investments, and cash equivalents. The Company’s
investment policy does not permit investment in certain types of assets, such as options, commodities, or real estate
mortgages, or the use of certain strategies, such as short selling or the purchase of securities on margin.

The Company's investment strategy for its pension plan assets is to achieve a diversified mix of
investments that provides for attractive long-term growth with an acceptable level of risk, but also to provide
sufficient liquidity to fund ongoing benefit payments. The Company has engaged a number of investment managers
to implement various investment sirategies to achieve the desired asset class mix, liquidity and risk diversification
objectives. The Company’s weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2009 and 2008, and 2009 year-end
target allocation, by asset category, were as follows: :

Target 2009 2008

Domestic equity securities 60% 61% 20%
International equity securities 10% 1% 12%
Deht securities 15% 15% 5%
Real estate 15% 8% 16%
Other and cash : - % 13%
Total 100% 180% 100%

The Company's investments in equity securities primarily include domestic large-cap and mid-cap
companies, but also include an allocation to international equity securities. Equity investments in the defined benefit
plan assets do not include any direct holdings of the Company’s stock but may include such holdings to the extent
that the stock is included as part of certain mutual fund holdings. Debt securities include investmeni-grade and high-
yield corporate bonds from diversified industries, mortgage-backed securities, and U.S. Treasuries. Other types of
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investments include private equity investments in commercial real estate assets, and (o a lesser extent, private equity
investments in technology companies.

The expected return on plan assets is principally based on the Company’s historical returns combined with
the Company’s long-term future expeciations regarding asset class returns, the mix of plan assets, and inflation
assumptions. One-, three-, and five-year pension returns (losses) were 16.8 percent, (3.7) percent, and 3.0 percent,
respectively, and the long-term average return (since plan inception in 1989) has been approximately 8.3 percent.
Over the long-term, the actual returns have generally exceeded the benchmark returns used hy the Company to
evaluate performance of its fund managers. Due to volatile market performance in recent years, the Company has
reduced its long-term rate of return assumption from 8.5% in 2009 to 8.25% in 2010 and believes that the change is

appropriate given the Company’s investment portfolio’s historical performance and the Company's target asset
allocation.

The Company’s pension plan assets are held in a master trust and stated at estimated fair value, which is

based on the fair values of the underlying investmenis. Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date

basis. Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis, Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, establishes a fair value hierarchy,
which requires the pension plans to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. The hierarchy places the highest priority on unadjusted quoted market prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and assigns the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of inputs within the hierarchy are defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices {unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar

assets or Iiabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can
be corroborated by observable market data,

Level 3. Significant unobservable inputs that reflect the pension plans’ own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

I the technique used to measure fair value includes inputs from multiple levels of the fair value hierarchy,
the lowest level of significant input determines the placement of the entire fair value measurement in the hierarchy.

Equity Securities: Domestic and infernational common stocks are valued by obtaining quoted prices on
recognized and highly liquid exchanges.

Fixed Income Securities: Corporate bonds and U.S. government treasury and agency securities are valued
based upon the closing price reported in the active market in which the security is traded. U.S. government agency
and corporate asset-backed securities may utilize models, such as a matrix pricing model, that incorporates other

observable inputs such as cash fiow, security structure, or market information, when broker/dealer quotes are not
available.

Real Estate, Private Equily, and Insurance Contract Interests: The fair value of real estate, private equity,
and insurance contract interests are determined by the issuer based on the unit values of the funds. Unit values are
determined by dividing the fund’s net assets by the number of units outstanding at the valuation date. Fair value for
underlying investments in real estate is determined through independent property appraisals. Fair value of
underlying investments in private equity assets is determined based on information provided by the general partner
taking into consideration the purchase price of the underlying securities, developments concerning the invesiee
company subsequent to the acquisition of the investment, financial data and projections of the investee company
provided fo the general partner, and such other factors as the general partner deems relevant. Insurance conlracis are
principally invested in real estate assets, which are valued based on independent appraisals.
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The fair values of the Company's pension plan assets at December 31, 2008, by asset category, are as
follows (in millions):

Fair Value Measurements as of
December 31, 2009

Quofed Prices in Significant Significant
Active Markets  Observable Inputs Unobservable
Total {Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
Asset Category
Cash $ 7 3 7 % - % -
Equity securities:
11.5. large-cap 121 121 - -
U.S. mid- and small-cap 36 36 - -
International large-cap 30 a0 - -
Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasuries 1 -- 1 -
Investment grade U.S. corporate bonds 2 - 2 -
High-yield U.S. corporate bonds 8 - 8 -
Mortgage-backed secarities 28 - 28 -
Ciher types of investments:
Real estate partnerships interests 23 - - 23
Private equily partnership interests (a) 3 - - 3
Insurance contracts 1 - --
Total $ 260 3 194 3% 39 § 27

{a) This category represents private equity funds that invest principally fn U.5. technology companies.

The table below presents a reconciliation of all pension plan investments measured at fair value on a
recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) for the year ended December 31, 2009 (in millions):

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant
Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)

Real Private ,
Estate Equity Insurance Total
Beginning balance, Jaruary 1, 200% L3 38 3 4 % 1 % 43
Actual return on plan assets:
Assets held at the reporting date (13) 1 - (19
Assets sold during the pericd -- - - -
Purchases, sales and settlements (2) - - (2)
Ending balance, December 31, 2008 $ 23 % 3 % 1 8 27

Contributions are determined annually for each plan by the Company's pension administrative cormmiites,
based upon the actuarially determined minimum required contribution under the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974 (*ERISA"), as amended, the Pension Protection Act of 2006 {the “Act”), and the maximurn
deductible contribution allowed for tax purposes. For the plans covering employees who are members of collective
bargaining units, the benefit formulas are determined according to the collective bargaining agreements, either using
career average pay as the base or a flat dollar amount per vear of service. The benefit formulas for the remaining
defined benefit plans are based on final average pay. The Company did not make any contributions during 2009 or
2008 to its defined benefit pension plans. In 2010, the Company expects to make required contributions of
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appraximately $0.5 million. The Company’s funding policy is to contribute cash to its pension plans so that it meets
at Jeast the minimum contribution requirements.

New employees earn retirement benefits based on a fixed percentage of their eligible compensation, plus
interest. The plan interest credit rate will vary from year-to-year based on the ten-year U.S. Treasury rate,
Employees hired on or after January I, 2008 are fully vested upen completion of three vears of service.

Benefit Plan Assets and Obligations: 'The measurement date for the Company’s benefit plan disclosures is

December 31% of each year. The status of the funded defined benefit pension plan and the unfunded accumulated
post-retirement benefit plans at December 31, 2008 and 2008 are shown below (in millions):

Other Post-retirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
2009 2008 2009 2008

Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 314 $ 303 8 52 $ 48

Service cost 8 8 1 1

Interest cost 19 19 3

Plan participants’ contributions - - 2 2
Actuarial (gain) loss (3) (1) 1 2
Benefits paid (17) (16) (5) (5)
Seitlemenis - (1} - -
Amendments 1 2 - 1
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 322 $ 314 $ 54 $ 52
Change in Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 244 379 - -
Actual return on plan assets 33 {118) - -
Settlements -- {1) -- -
Benefits paid {17 {16) — -
Fair value of plan assels at end of year $ 260 $ 244 $ -- 3 -
Funded Status and Recognized Liability $ {62) § {710) % (4 3§ {62)

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Company’s qualified pension plans were $297 million and $284
million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Amounts recognized on the consolidated balance sheets
and in accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows {in millions):

Other Post-retireinent

Pension Benefits Benefits
2009 2008 2009 2008
Non-current assets $ 3 $ 3 $ - $ -
Current liabilities - - 3 (3)
Non-current liabilities (65) {73) (51) {49)
Total $ _(62) $ (7O $ (9 $ (52
Net loss (gain) (net of taxes) $ 70 $ 87 $ - $ 1
Unrecognized prior service cost (net of taxes) 3 3 - -
Total $ 73 0§ 0 3 - 3 {1)
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The information for qualified pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets at
December 31, 2009 and 2008 is shown below (in millions):

2009 2008
Projected benefit obligation $ 269 § 248
Accumulated benefit abligation § 248 $ 221
Fair value of plan assets $ 208 $ 177

The estimated prior service cost for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from
accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost in 2010 is $0.7 million. The estimated net loss
that will be recognized in net periodic pension cost for the defined benefit pension plans in 2010 is $8.3 million. The
estimated prior service cost and estimated net gain for the other defined benefit postretiremnent plans that will be
amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic pension benefit in 2010 is negligible.

Unrecognized gains and losses of the post-retirement benefit plans are amortized over five years. Although
current health costs are expected to increase, the Company aliempts to mitigate these increases by maintaining caps
on certain of its benefit plans, using lower cost health care plan options where possible, requiring that certain groups
of employees pay a portion of their benefit costs, self-insuring for certain insurance plans, encouraging wellness
programs for employees, and implementing measures to mitigate future benefit cost increases,

The Company has determined that its post-retirement prescription drug plans are actuarially equivalent to
Part D of the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003, The 2009 post-retirement
obligations include the benefits of the Act’s subsidy. These amounts are not material.

Components of the net periodic benefit cost and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive loss for
the defined benefit pension plans and the post-retirement health care and life insurance benefit plans during 2009,
2008, and 2007, are shown below {in millions): )

Pension Benefits Other Post-retirernent Benefils
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

Components of Net Periodic
Benefit Cost/{Income)
Service cost $ 3 8 % 7 % 1 § 1 $ 1
Interest cost 19 18 17 3
Expected retnrn on plan assets {20 {32) (28) - - --
Amortization of net (gain) loss 12 - - -- 1) -
Amortization of prior service cost 1 i - - - -
Recopnition of loss (gain) due to settleent -- 1 -- -- - L
Net periodic benefit cost/{income) 20 (4) (4} 4 3 3
Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit

Obligations Recognized in Other Comprehensive

Income (net of tax)
Net Joss (gain) (10 80 (12) 1 1 @
Amortization of unrecognized (loss) gain N - - - 1 -
Prior service cost 1 1 -- - - -
Amortization of prior service cost (1) - - - - -
Total recognized in other comprehensive income {i7) 91 {12) 1 2 (2)
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and

other comprehensive income $ 3 % 87 (16) § 5 3% 5 % 1
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The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit information during 2009, 2008, and 2007,

were as follows:

Pension Benefits

Other Post-retirement Benefits

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
Weighted Average Assumpfions:
Discount rate 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25%
Expected return on plan assets B.50% 8.50% 8.50%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Initial health care cost trend rate 9.00 9.00% 9.00%
Ultirnate rate 5.00 5.00% 5.00%
Year ultimate rafe is reached 2014 2013 2012

As a result of a decline in the market value of the Company’s plan assets in 2008, the expected return on

plan assets had decreased in 2009 and the amortization of net loss had increased, resulting in a net periodic pension
cost of $20 million for 2009.

If the assumed health care cost trend rate were increased or decreased by one percentage point, the
accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation, as of December 31, 20089, 2008, and 2007 and the net periodic post-
retirement benefit cost for 2009, 2008 and 2007, would have increased or decreased as follows {in millions):

Other Post-retirement Benefits
One Percentage Point
Increase Decrease
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

Effect on total of service and interest

cost components 5 - & - 35 - & - % - s -
Effect on post-retirement benefit
abligation £ &8 % 5 $ 5 $§ @ 3 @ $ @

Non-gualified Benefit Flans: The Company has non-qualified supplemental pension plans cavering certain
employees and retirees, which provide for incremental pension payments from the Company's general funds so that
total pension benefits would be substantially equal to amounts that would have been payable from the Company’s
qualified pension plans if it were not for limitations imposed by income tax regulations. The funded status, relating
to these unfunded plans, totaled $(34) million at December 31, 2009. A 5.0 percent discount rate was used to
determine the 2009 obligation. The expense associated with the non-qualified plans was $3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2009 and $4 million in each year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. As of December 31,
2008, the amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income for unrecognized loss, net of tax, was
approximately $6 million, and the amount recognized as unrecognized prior service credit, net of tax, was
negligible. The estimated net loss and prior service credit that will be recognized in net periodic pension cost in
2010 is negligible.
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Estimated Benefit Payments: The estimated future benefit payments for the next ten years are as follows
{in millions):

Pension Non-qualified Post-retirement

Year Benefiis Plan Benefils Benefits

2010 3 18 $ 23 $ 3

2011 18 1 4

2012 19 1 4

2013 20 2 4

2014 21 1 4
2015-201% 118 9 21

Current liabilities of approximately $26 million, related to non-qualified plan and postretirement benefits,
are classified as accrued and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2009.

Multiemployer Flans; Matson participates in 11 multiemployer plans and has an estimated withdrawal
obligation with respect to four of these plans that totals approximately $89 million. Management has no present
infention of withdrawing from and does not anticipate termination of any of these plans. Total contributions to the
multiemployer pension plans covering personnel in shoreside and seagoing bargaining units were $12 million in
2009, $13 million in 2008, and $12 million in 2007.

Union collective bargaining agreements provide that total employer contributions during the terms of the
agreements must be sufficient to meet the normal costs and amortization payments required to be funded during
those periods. Contributions are generally based on union labor paid or cargo volume. A portion of such
contributions is for unfunded accrued actuarial liabilities of the plans being funded over periods of 25 to 40 years,
which began between 1967 and 1976.

The multiemployer plans are subject to the plan termination insurance provisions of ERISA and are paying
premiums to the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation. (“PBGC"). The stalutes provide that an employer who
withdraws from, or significantly reduces its contribution obligation to, a multiemployer plan generally will he
required to continue funding its proportional share of the plan’s unfunded vested benefits,

Under special rules approved by the PBGC and adopted by the Pacific Coast longshore plan in 1984,
Matson could cease Pacific Coast cargo-handling operations permanently and stop contributing to the plan without
any withdrawal liability, provided that the plan meets certain funding obligations as defined in the plan.
Accordingly, no withdrawal obligation for this plan is included in the total estimated withdrawal obligation.

Defined Contribution Plans: The Company sponsors defined contribution plans that quatify under Section
401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code and provides matching contributions of up to 4% of eligible employee
compensation. During 2009, the 401(k) matching contributions were suspended for all employees who are
participants in the Company’s defined benefit plan. The Company’s matching contributions expensed under these
plans totaled $1.4 million, $2.0 million, and $1.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007,
respectively. The Company also maintains profit ‘sharing plans, and if a minimum threshold of Company
performance is achieved, provides contributions of 1 percent to 3 percent, depending upon Company performance
above the minimum threshold. In 2010, the profit sharing plan was suspended. The contribution expense for these
plans totaled $1 million and $2 million for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. There was no
profit sharing contribution expense recorded in 2008.
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10.

INCOME TAXES

The income tax expense on income from continuing operations for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31, 2009 consisted of the following (in millions):

2009 2008 2007
Current:
Federal 5 26 $ 56 $ 55
State and Foreign 2 4 4
Current 2B 60 59
Deferred {20) (8} -
Total continuing operations tax expense $ 8 $ 52 $ 59

Income tax expense for 2008, 2008, and 2007 differs from amounts computed by applying the statutory
federal rate to income from continuing operations before income taxes for the following reasons (in millions):

2009 2008 2007
Computed federal income tax expense 3 7 $ 49 5 55
State income taxes 4 4 5
Tax effect of HS&TC consolidation ) - —
Other—net 1)) (1} (1)
Income tax expense $ 8 $ 52 $ 59

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and

deferred tax liabilities at December 31 of each year are as follows (in millions):

2009 2008
Deferred tax assets:
Capital loss carry-forward ' % - 3 3
Benefit plans 70 75
Insurance reserves 10 9
Other 12 11
Tetal deferred tax assets o2 98
Deferred tax liabilities:
Basis differences for property and equipment 287 304
Tax-deferred pains on real estate {ransactions 197 181
Capital Constraction Fund 5
Joint ventures and other investments 6
Other 22 17
Total deferred tax liabilities 514 513
Net deferred tax Hability $ 422 § 415
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The realization of the deferred tax assets related to the capital loss carryover is dependent upon the future
generation of capital gains. Management considers projected firture transactions and tax planning strategies in

making this assessment. As of December 31, 2008, the federal capital loss carryover has been fully wtilized, and the
Hawaii state capital loss carryover was not material,
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The Company also has California alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of approximately $1
million at December 31, 2009 to reduce future California state income taxes over an indefinite period.

The Company's income taxes payable has been reduced by the tax benefits from share-based
compensation. The Company receives an income tax benefit for exercised stock options calculated as the difference
between the fair market value of the stock issued at the time of exercise and the option exercise price, tax effected.
The Company also receives an income tax benefit for non-vested stock and restricted stock units when they vest,
measured as the fair market vaiue of the stock at the time of vesting, tax effected. The net tax benefits from share-
based transactions were $1.3 million and $1.1 million for 2009 and 2008, respectively, and the portion of the tax
benefit related to the excess of the amount reporied as expense over the tax deduction was reflected as a reduction to
additional capital in the consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity. ‘

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in
millions):

Balance at January 1, 2007 $ 10
Additions for tax positions of prior years 3
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (2}
Reductions for lapse of statute of imitations (1)
Balance at December 31, 2007 . 10
Additions for tax positions of prior years -
Reductions for fax positions of prior years (1)
Reductions for lapse of statute of limitations (3
Balance at December 31, 2008 6
Additions for tax positions of prior years -
Additions for tax positions of current year 3
Reductions for tax positions of prior years -
Reductions for lapse of statuie of limitations (D

Balance at December 31, 2009

-
-

Of the tofal unrecognized benefits, $8 million at December 31, 2009 and $6 million at December 31, 2008,
represent the amount that, if recognized, would favorably affect the Company’s effective rate in future periods. The
Company does not expect a material change in gross unrecognized benefits in the next 12 months,

‘The Company recognizes potential accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in
income tax expense, To the extent interest and penaliies are not ultimately assessed with respect to the settlement of
uncertain tax positions, amounts accrued will be reduced and reflected as a reduction of the overall income tax
provision. As of December 31, 2009 the amounts of accrued interest and penalty were not material,

The Company is no longer subject to U.S, federal income tax audits for years before 2005, The Internal
Revenue Service may audit the Company's federal income tax returns for years subsequent to 2004. Additionally,
the Company is routinely involved in state and local income tax audits. Substantially all material income tax matters
have been concluded for years through 2004.

11. SHARE-BASED AWARDS

2007 Incentive Campensation Plan: The 2007 Incentive Compensation Plan (the "2007 Plan™) serves as a
successor to the 1998 Stock Option/Stock Incentive Plan, the 1998 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, the
Restricted Stock Bonus Plan and the Non-Employee Director Stock Retainer Plan (the “Predecessor Plans”). Under
the 2007 Plan, 2,215,000 shares of common stock were initially reserved for issuance. As of December 31, 2009,
826,480 shares of its common stock were reserved for future issuance of share-based awards under the 2007 Plan,
On January 28, 2010, the Board of Directors adopted an amended and restated 2007 Plan, subject to shareholder
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approval at the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which, among other things, authorizes the issuance of an
additional 2,200,000 shares of A&B stock under the 2007 Plan.

The 2007 Plan consists of four separate incentive compensation programs: (i) the discretionary grant
program, (i) the stock issuance program, (iii) the incentive honus program and (iv) the automatic grant program for
the non-employee members of the Company’s Board of Directors. Share-based compensation is generally awarded
under three of the four programs, as more fully described below.

Discretionary Grant Program - Under the Discretionary Grant Program, stock options may be granted with
an exercise price no less than 100 percent of the fair market value (defined as the closing market price) of the
Company’s common stock on the date of the grant. Options generally become exercisable ratably over three years
and have a maximum contractual term of 10 years. The Company estimates the grant-date fair value of its stock
options using a Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model.

Stock Issuance Program — Under the Stock Issuance Program, shares of common stock or restricted stock
units may be granted. Time-based equity awards vest ratably over three years. Provided certain performance targets
are achieved, performance-based equity awards (granted prior to December 31, 2008) vest after one year, and
performance-based equity awards granted after December 31, 2008 vest over three years.

Automatic Grant Program ~ The Automatic Grant Program supersedes and replaces the Company’s 1998
Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan and the Non-Employee Director Stock Retainer Plan. At each annual
shareholder meeting, non-employee directors will receive an award of restricted stock units that entitle the holder to
an equivalent number of shares of common stock upon vesting. Awards of restricted stock units granted under the
program generally vest ratably over three years.

The shares of common stock authorized to be issued under the 2007 Plan may be drawn from shares of the
Company’s authorized but unissued common stock or from shares of its common stock that the Company acquires,
including shares purchased on the open market or in private transactions. '

Fredecessor Plans: Adopted in 1998, the Company's 1998 Stock Option/Stock Incentive Plan (1998
Plan”) provided for the issuance of non-qualified stock options and common stock to employees of the Company.
Under the 1998 Plan, option prices could not be less than the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on
the dates of grant and the options became exercisable over periods determined, at the dates of grant, by the
Compensation Committee of the A&B Board of Directors that administers the plan. Generally, options vested
ratably over three years and expired ten years from the date of grant. Payments for options exercised may be made in
cash or in shares of the Company’s stock. If an option to purchase shares is exercised within five years of the date of
grant and if payment is made in shares of the Company's stock, the option holder may receive, under a reload
feature, a new stock option grant for such number of shares as is equal to the number surrendered, with an option
price not less than the greater of the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of exercise or one and
one-half times the original option price. The 1998 Plan also permitted the issuance of shares of the Company’s
common stock. Generally, grants of time-based, nosi-vested stock vests ratably over three years and performance-
based, non-vested stock vests in one year, provided that certain performance targets are achieved. The 1998 Plan
was superseded by the 2007 Plan and no further grants will be made under the 1998 Plan.

Director Stock Option Plans: The 1998 Director Stock Option Plan (“1998 Director Plan") was superseded
by the 2007 Plan. Under the 1998 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, each non-employee Director of the
Company, elected at an Annual Meeting of Shareholders, was automatically granted, on the date of each such
Annual Meeting, an option to purchase 8,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at the fair market valite of the

shares on the date of grant. Each option to purchase shares generally became exercisable ratably over three years
folowing the date granted.

The Company estimates the grant-date fair value of its stock options using a Black-Scholes-Merton option-
pricing model.
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The weighted average grant-date fair values of the options granted during 2009, 2008, and 2007 were $2.79,
$7.88, and $10.91, respectively, per option, using the range of assumptions provided in the table below:

2009 2008 2007
Expected volatility 24.83% 19.5%-19.8% 19.0%-19.5%
Expected term {in years) 5.8 5.8 5.8-5.9
Risk-free interest rate 1.9% 3.19%-3.5% 4.8%-9.0%
Dividend yield 5.4% 2.6% 2.1%-2.2%

*  Expected volatility was primarily determined using the histarical volatility of A&B common stock
over the expected term, but the Company may also consider future events and other factors that it
reasonably concludes marketplace participants might consider.

*  The expected term of the awards represents expectations of future employee. exercise and post-
vesiing termination behavior and was primarily based on historical experience. The Company
analyzed various groups of employees and considers expected or unusual trends that would likely
affect this assumption.

*  The risk free interest rate was based on 1.S. Government treasury yields for periods equal to the
expecied term of the option on the grant date.

*  The expected dividend yield is based on the Company’s current and historical dividend policy.

Application of alternative assumptions could produce significantly different estimates of the fair value of
share-based compensation and, consequently, significantly affect the related amounts recognized in the consolidated
statements of income.

The following iable summarizes 2009 stock option activity for the Company’s plans (in thousands, except
exercise price amounts):

Weighted Weighted

1998 1998 Average Average Aggrepate
2007 Employee Director Total Exercise Contractual  Intrinsic
Plan Plan Plan Shares Frice Life Value
Qutstanding Tanuary 1, 2009 480 1,316 239 2,035 $30.71
Granted 478 - - 478 $23.33
Exercised - (11) - (n  $26.24
Forfeited and expired - (14) {43) (57)  $28.77
Ouistanding December 31, 2009 958 1,201 195 2445  $36.80 5.5 $5,367
Vested or expected to vest 948 1,278 194 2420  $36.80 2.5 $9.273
Exercisable December 31, 2009 161 1,199 196 15656  338.50 4.3 $4,002
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The following table summarizes 2009 non-vested common stock and restricted stock unit activity (in
thousands, except weighted-average, grant-date fair value amounts):

Predecessor
2007 Plans
Plan Weighted Non-Vested Weighted
Restricted Average Common Average

Siock Grant-Date Stock Grant-Date

Units Fair Value Shares Fair Value
January 1, 2009 160 $46.68 94 §47.48
Granted 339 $23.59 - -
Vested {L00) $44.70 {79) 47.34
Forfeited (22) $28.47 - -
Outstanding December 31, 2009 427 $27.06 15 48.19

A summary of the compensation cost and other measures related to share-based payments is as follows (in
millions):

2009 2008 2007

Share-based expense (net of estimated
forfeitures):

Stock options [ 4 $ 3 $ 3

Non-vested stock & restricted stock units 5 13

Total share-based expense 9 16

Total recognized tax benefit (3) (3) (4)
Share-based expense (ret of tax) $ 6 $ 8 $ 12
Cash received upon option exercise $ - 3$ 2 $ 6
Intrinsic value of options exercised . S $ 1 $ 5
Tax benefit realized upon option exercise [ $ 1 3 2
Fair value of stock vested $ 3 $ 13 $ 7

As of December 31, 2009, there was $1.3 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
unvested stock options. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 1.5
years. As of December 31, 2009, unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock and restricted stock
units was $4.8 million. The unrecognized cost for non-vested stock and restricted stock units is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 1.4 years.

12. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies: Commitments and financial arrangements, excluding capital
lease commitments that are described in Note 8, included the following as of December 31, 2009 (in millions):

Standby letters of credit @ $ 10
Bands (b) § 19
Benefit plan withdrawal obligations {c) $ 89

These amounts are not recorded on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and it is not expected that
the Company or its subsidiaries will be cailed upon to advance funds under these commitments.
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(a) Consists of standby letters of credit, issued by the Company’s lenders under the Company’s
revolving credit facilities. Approximately $8 million of the letters of credit are required to
allow the Company to qualify as a self-insurer for state and federal workers’ compensation
liabilities. The balance includes approximately $2 million for insurance-related matters,
principally in the Company's real esiate business. In the event the letters of credit are drawn
upon, the Company would be obligated (o reimburse the issuer of the letter of credit. None of
the Jetters of credit has been drawn upon to date, and the Company believes it is unlikely that
any of these letters of credit will be drawn upon,

(b) Consists of approximately $1 million of constructien bonds related to teal estate projects in
Hawaii, approximately $16 million in U.S. customs bonds, and approximately $2 million
related fo iransportation and other matters. In the event the bonds are drawn upon, the
Company would be obligated to reimburse the surety that issued the bond. None of the bonds
has been drawn upon to date, and the Company believes it is unlikely that any of these bonds
will be drawn upon.

(c) Represents the withdrawal liabilities for multiemployer pension plans, in which Matson is a
participant. The withdrawal liability aggregated approximately $89 million as of the most
recent valuation date. Management has no present intention of withdrawing from and does not
anticipate termination of any of the aforementioned plans.

Indemnity Agreements: For certain real estate joint ventures, the Company may be obligated under bond
indemnities in order to complete construction of the real estate development if the Jjoint verture does not perform.
These indemnities are designed to protect the surety. The Company recorded liabilities at fair value for three
indemnities it provided in connection with surety bonds issued to cover construction activities, such as project
amenities, roads, utilities, and other infrastructure, at three of its joint ventures. The recorded amount of the
liabilities were not material at December 31, 2009 and 2008. Under the indemnities, the Company and its joint
venture partners agreed to indemnify the surety bond issuer from all Joss and expense arising from the failure of the
joint venture to complete the specified bonded construction. The maximum potential amount of aggregate future
payments is a function of the amount covered by outstanding bonds at the time of default by the joint venture,
reduced by the amount of work completed to date. As of Decemnber 31, 2009, the maximum potential amount of
aggregaie future payments under honds outstanding was $67 million, computed as $166 million of bonds
outstanding, less the value of work completed, which totaled approximately $99 million. The:Company and its joint
venture partners also entered into mutual indemnification agreements under which each partner agrees to indemnify
the other partner for its share of the obligation under the bonds. Including amounts recoverable from the Company's
Joint venture partners under the mutual indemnification agreements, the Company's maximum poiential amount of
aggregate future payments under indemmnities at December 31, 2009 was approximately $37 million.

Completion Guarantees: For cerlain real estate joint ventures, the Company may be required to perform
work to complete construction if the joint venture fails to complete construction. These guarantees are intended to
assure the joint venture's lender that the project will be completed as represented to the lender. The Company
recorded liabilities at fair value for two completion guarantees it provided in connection with joint venture
development projects. The recorded amount of these liabilities were not material at December 31, 2009 and 2008,
Under the completion guarantees, the Company and its joint venture partners agree to complete development of
specified development work if the joint venture fails to complete development. The maximum potential amount of
aggregate future payments related to the Company's completion guarantees is a function of the work agreed to be
completed, reduced by the amount of work compleied to date at the time of default hy the joint venture. As of
December 31, 2009, the maximum potential amount of aggregate future payments under completion guarantees
outstanding was $3 million, computed as $15 million of praject work guaranteed, less the value of work completed,
which totaled approximately $12 million. The Company’s share of the maximum potential amount of aggregate
future payments under indemnities at December 31, 2009 was approximately $2 million.

Other Obligations: Certain of the businesses in which the Company holds a non-controlling interest have
long-term debt obligations. In August 2009, a $12 million construction loan held by one of the Company's real
estate joint ventures matured, The joint venture is currently negotiating with the lender to extend the maturity date of
the loan. The lender has tentatively agreed to a 36-month extension of the loan, conditioned upon a $1.8 million
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payment from the joint venture, an agreement to convert the loan to a 25-year amortization schedule, and certain
other conditions. If the joint venture fs not successful in consummating an extension of the Ioan and remains in
default, the Company may be obligated to pay approximately $2 million under a “re-margin” guarantee, under
which the joint venture must maintain a minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.3 to 1. As of December 31, 2009,
the Company had not paid any amounts under the re-margin guarantee, but a liability of $2 million was recorded
with a corresponding increase to the Company’s investment in the joint venture, In December 2009, a $16 million
construction loan held by one of the Company's real estate joint ventures matured. The Joint venture is currently
negotiating with the lender to extend the maturity date of the loan. If the joint venture is not successful in
consummating an extension of the loan and remains in default, the Company may be obligated to pay $1.8 million.
As of December 31, 2009, the Company had not paid any amounts to the lender, but a liability of $1.8 million was
recorded with a corresponding increase to the Company’s investment in the joint venture.

Other than obligations described above, investee obligations do not have recourse to the Company and the
Company's “at-risk” amounts are limited to its investment. These investments are more fully described in Note 4.

Environmental Matters: As with most transportation, industrial and land development companies of its
size, the Company’s shipping, real estate, and agricultural businesses have certain risks that could result in
expenditures for environmental remediation. It is the Company’s policy, as past of its due diligence process for all
acquisitions, to use third-party environmental consultants to investigate the environmental risks and to require
disclosure from land sellers of known environmental risks. Despite these precautions, there can be no assurance that
the Company will avoid material liabilities relating to environmental matters affecting praperties currently or
previousty owned by the Company. Nao estimate of such potential liabilities can be made although the Company
may, from time to time, purchase property which requires modest environmental clean-up costs after appropriate due
diligence. In such instances, the Company takes steps prior to acquisition to gain assurance as to the precise scope of
wark required and costs associated with removal, site restoration and/or manitoring, using detatled investigations by
environmental consultants. The Company believes that based on all information available to it, the Company is in
compliance, in all material respects, with applicable environmental laws and regulations.

In late 2003, the Company paid $1.6 million to settle a claim for payment of environmental remediation
costs incurred by the current owner of a sugar refinery site in Hawaii that previously was sold by the Company in
1994. In connection with this settlement, the Company assumed responsibility to remediate certain parcels of the site
and accrued an undiscounted obligation of approximately $2 million for the estimated remediation costs. The
commencement of environmental cleanup is dependent upon studies to be approved by the Department of Health of
the State of Hawaii, which has not-occurred as of December 31, 2009.

Other Contingencies: A&B owns 16,000 acres of watershed lands in East Maui that supply a significant
portion of the irrigation water used by HC&S. A&B also held four water licenses to another 30,000 acres owned by
the State of Hawaii in East Maui, which over the years has supplied approximately two-thirds of the irrigation water
used by HC&S. The last of these water license agreements expired in 1986, and all four agreements were then
extended as revocable permits that were renewed annually. In 2001, a request was made to the State Board of Land
and Natural Resources (the “BLNR") to replace these revocable permits with a long-term water lease. Pending the
conclusion by the BLNR of this contested case hearing on the request for the long-term lease, the BLNR has
renewed the existing permits on a holdover basis, If the Company is not permitted to divert stream waters from State
lands in East Maui for its use, it would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s sugar-growing operations.

In addition, on May 24, 2001, petitions were filed by a third party, requesting that the Commission on
Water Resource Management of the State of Hawaii (“Water Commission”) amend interim instream flow standards
(*IIFS") in 27 East Maui streams that feed the Company’s irrigation system, On September 25, 2008, the Water
Commission took action on eight of the petitions, resulting in some quantity of water being returned to the streams
rather than being utilized for irrigation purposes. While the loss of the water as a result of the Water Commission’s
action on the eight petitions may not significantly impair the Company’s sugar-growing operations, similar losses of
water on the remaining 19 streams would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s sugar-growing
operations. In December 2009, the Water Comimission conducted deliberations on the amendment of IIFS for the
remaining 19 East Maui streams, deferring action for at least a three month period. The Company, at this time, is
unable to determine what action the Water Commission will take with respect to all 27 sfreams.
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On June 25, 2004, two organizations filed with the Water Commission a petition to amend IIFS for four
streams in West Maui to increase the amount of water fo be returned to these streams. The West Maui irrigation
system provides approximately one-sixth of the irrigation water used by HC&S. The Water Commission's
deliberations on whether to amend the current IIFS for the West Maui streams are currently ongoing, and an adverse
decision could result in some quantity of water being returned to the streams, rather than being utilized for irrigation
purposes, which may have a material adverse effect on the Company's sugar-growing operations. A decision by the
Water Commission is not expected until mid-2010.

On December 10, 2007, the Shipbuilders Council of America, Inc. and Pasha Hawaii Transport Lines LLC
filed a complaint against the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, the U.S, Coast Guard and the National Vessel
Documentation Center in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia. The complaint sought review of
a certificate of documentation with a coastwise endorsement issued by the National Vessel Documeritation Center
after concluding that Matson’s C9 vessel Mokihana had not been rebuilt abroad. Matson intervened in the action, On
December 4, 2009, the court granted summiary judgment in favor of the government and Matson, and dismissed the
plaintiffs” complaint with prejudice. The time to seek appellate review of this matter has expired,

On April 21, 2008, Matson was served with a grand jury subpoena from the U.S. District Court for the
Middle District of Florida for documents and information relating to water carriage in connection with the
Department of Justice's investigation into the pricing and other competitive practices of carriers operating in the
domestic trades. Matson understands that while the investigation currently is focused on the Puerto Rico trade, it
also includes pricing and other competitive practices in connection with all domestic trades, including the Alaska,
Hawaii and Guam trades. Matson does not operate vessels in the Puerto Rico and Alaska trades, It does operate
vessels in the Hawaii and Guam trades. Matson has cooperated, and will continue to cooperate, fully with the
Department of Justice. If the Department of Justice believes that any violations have occurred on the part of Maison
or the Company, it could seek civil or ctiminal sanctions, including monetary fines. The Company is unable to
predict, at this time, the outcome or financial impact, if any, of this investigation.

The Company and Maison were named as defendanis in a consclidated civil lawsnit purporting to be a class
action in the U.S. District Court for the Western District of Washington in Seattle, The lawsuit alleged violations of
the antitrust laws and also named as a defendant Horizon Lines, Inc., another domestic shipping carrier operating in
the Hawaii and Guam trades. On August 18, 2009, the court granted the defendants’ motion to dismiss the
complaint. The court granted the plaintiffs leave to amend the complaint by May 10, 2010 to allege claims
consistent with the court’s order. If the plaintiffs file an amended complaint, the Company and Matson will continue
to vigorously defend themselves in this lawsuit. The Company is unable to predict, at this time, the outcome or
financial impact, if any, of this lawsuit if an amended complaint is filed.

In June 2006, Matson and its Long Beach terminal operator, SSAT LLC, completed negotiations of an
amendment to the Preferential Assignment Agreement with the City of Long Beach that includes changes requested
by Matson to implement its new China Service as well as environmental covenants applicable to vessels which call
at Pier C. The environmental requirements are part of programs proposed by both the ports of Los Angeles and Long
Beach designed to reduce airborne emissions in the port area. Under the amendment, Matson is required to install
equipment on all its motor vessels to allow them to accept a shore-hased electrical power source instead of using the
vessel’s diesel generators while in port (“cold ironing”) and to phase out calls by its steamships by 2020. In
December 2008, the Office of Administrative Law approved regulations put forth by the California Air Resources
Board ("CARB") which mandate cold ironing of diesel powered container ships at major ports starting in 2014. The
CARB regulations put the responsibility for shoreside electrical infrastructure on the terminal operator. Matson’s
lease agreement commits the Port of Long Beach to providing the shoreside infrastructure and construction
commenced in 2009 and is expected to be completed in 2010, However, the Port of Oakland has not yet made a
commitment to provide the required infrastructure at the Company’s Oakland terminal and therefore, SSAT may be
held responsible for this cost. SSAT submitted the reguired terminal plan to CARB on July 1, 2008, but the plan has
not yet been approved. The cost of the required infrastructure improvements has not been estimated, The
modifications to Matson's vessels to accommodate cold ironing will occur at each of their next scheduled out-of-
water drydockings. Two vessels have been retrofitted through 2009 and one is scheduled for 2010. The estimated
costs of the modifications are projected at $13.7 million for the eight motor vessels including design and engineering
costs, and the cost for vessel stepdown transformers to accommodate the power provided at the dock. As of
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December 31, 2009, approximately $4.3 million has been incurred. The costs of the medifications have been
recorded as capital assets because they provide fuiure economic benefits.

The Company is subject to possible climate change legislation, regulation and international accords.
Numerous bills related to climate change, such as limiting and reducing greenhouse gas emissions through a “cap
and trade” system of allowances and credits, have been infroduced in the U.S. Congress. If enacted, these
regulations could impose significant additional costs on the Company, including increased energy costs, higher
material prices, and costly mandatory vessel and equipment modifications. The Company is unable to predict, at this
time, the outcome or financial impact, if any, of future climate change related legislation,

The Company and certain subsidiaries are parties to other various legal actions and are contingently liable
in commection with claims and contracts arising in the normal course of business, the ouicome of which, in the
opinion of management after consultation with legal counsel, will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position or results of operaticns,

13. INDUSTRY SEGMENTS

Operating segments are components of an enterprise that engage in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial information is available. The Company's chief operating decision maker is its Chief Executive

Officer. Based on the foregoing, the Company has five segments that operate in three industries: Transportation,
Real Estate and Agribusiness.

The Transportation Industry consists of two segments. Ocean Transportation carries freight between
various U.S. Pacific Coast, major Hawaii ports, Guam, China and other Pacific ports and provides terminal,
stevedoring and container equipment management services in Hawaii. Logistics Services arranges domestic and
international rail intermodal service, long-haul and regional highway brokerage, specialized hauling, flat-bed and
project work, less-than-truckload, expedited freight services, and warehousing and distribution services.

The Real Estate Industry consists of two segments. The Real Estate Sales segment generates its revenues
through the development and sale of land, commercial and residential properties. The Real Estate Leasing segment
owns, operates, and manages retail, office, and industrial properties. When property that was previously leased is
sold, the revenue and operating profit are included with the Real Estate Sales segment.

Agribusiness, which consists of one segment, grows sugar cane and coffee; produces bulk raw sugzar,
specialty food-grade sugars, and molasses; produces, markets, and distributes roasted coffee, green coffee and
specialty food-grade sugars; provides general trucking services, mobile equipment maintenance and repair services,
and self-service storage in Hawaii; and generates and sefls, to the extent not used in the Company’s operations,
electricity.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are described in the summary of significant accounting
policies, Reportable segments are measured based on operating profit, exclusive of interest expense, general
corporate expenses, and income taxes.
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INDUSTRY SEGMENTS {CONTINUED)

Industry segment information for 2009, 2008, and 2007 is summarized below (in miilions);

For the Year 2009 2008 2007
Revenue:
Transportation:
Ocean transportation $ 8886 $ 10237 $ 1,006.9
Logistics services 3209 436.0 433.5
Real Estate:
Leasing 103.2 107.8 108.5
Sales 125.6 350.2 117.8
Less amounts reported in discontinued operations’ {124.2) (151.5) (130.2)
Agribusiness’ 107.0 124.3 123.7
Reconciling Items 2 {16.3) {10.7) 9.2)
Total revenue § 1,404.8 $ 18798 $ 1,651.0
Operating Profit:
Transportation:
Ocean transportation® $ 58.3 $ 1058 $ 1265
Logistics services 6.7 18.5 2L.8
Real Estate:
Leasing 43.2 47.8 518
Sales® 39.1 95.6 744
Less amounts reported in discontinued operations! (52.3) (69.3) (71.2)
Agribusiness® (27.8) (12.9) 0.2
Total operating profit 67.2 185.5 2033
Tnterest expense, net! ' (25.9) (23.7) (18.8)
General corporate expenses (21.8) (21.0) (27.3)
Income from continuing operations before income
taxes 195 140.8 157.2
Income taxes 7.6 51.5 59.3
Income from continuing operations 11.9 89.3 97.9
Discontinued operations 32.3 43.1 44.3
Net income $ 44.2 § 1324 § 1422

Prior year amounts restated for amounts treated as discontinued operations. See Notes 1 and 2 for additional infonmation,
Includes inter-segment revenue, inferest income, and other income classified as revenue for segment reporiing purposes.
The Ocean Transporfation segment includes approximately $6.2 million, $5.2 million, and $10,7 million of equify in earnings from its
investment in SSAT for 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively, The Real Estate Sales segment includes approximately $9.6 mfilion and $22.6
millicn in equity in earnings from its various real estate jolnt veniures for 2008 and 2007, tespectively. Equity in earnings from joint ventures

in 2009 was negligible.

Includes Ocean Transporfation interest expense of $9.0 million for 2008, $11.6 million for 2008, and $13.9 million for 2007. Substantially all
other interest expense was at the parent compary.

Includes a $5.4 million gain recorded upon consolidation of HS&TC in 2009.
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INDUSTRY SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

As of December 31: 2009 2008 2007
Identifiable Assets:
Ocean transportation® $ 1,005.2 $ 1,153.9 $ L2150
Logistics services 72.4 74.2 586
Real estate leasing 627.4 590.2 5954
Real estate sales® 415.6 344.6 408.9
Agribusiness 156.8 172.2 1746
Other 12.2 15.1 26.8
Total assets § 2,370.6 $ 23502 § 24791
Capital Expenditures:
Ocean transportation 3 12.7 L 35.5 3 65.8
Logistics services’ 0.6 2.4 2.0
Real estate leasing8 108.8 100.2 1245
Real estate sales® 0.1 06 0.3
Agribusiness 3.4 15.2 20.5
Other 0.3 0.8 0.3
Total capital expenditures $ 1259 $ 1547 § 2134
Depreciation and Amortization:
Ocean fransportation $ 67.1 $ 66.1 $ 63.2
Logislics services 3.5 23 1.5
Real estate leasing’ 19.5 179 15.7
Real estate sales 0.3 0.2 0.2
Agribusiness 11.8 115 10.7
Other 31 2.7 1.3
Total depreciation and amortization 5 1054 $ 100.7 3 92.6

The Ocean Transportation segment includes appraximately $47.2 miltion, $44.6 million, and $48.6 million related to its investment in SSAT
as of December 31, 2008, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The Real Estate Sales segment includes approximately $193.3 million, $162.1 nillion,
and $134.1 million related fo ifs investment in various real estate joint ventures as of December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

Excludes expendifures relaied fo Matson Integrated Logistics” acquisitions, which are classified as Payments for Purchases of Investments in
Cash Flows from Investing Activities within the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Represents gross capital additions to the leasing portfolio, Including gross tax-deferred property purchases that are reflected as non-cash
transactions in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Excludes capital expenditures for real estate developments held for sale which are classified as Cash Flows from Operating Activities within

the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Gperating cash flows for capital expenditures related to real estate developments were $6 million,
$39 million, and $110 million for 2008, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
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14. QUARTERLY INFORMATION (Unaudited)

Segment resulis by quarter for 2009 are listed below {in millions, except per-share amounts):

2009
01 Q2 Q3 Q4
Revenue:
Transportation;
Ocean fransporiation $ 2011 $ 2185 $ 2342 § 2348
Logistics services 76.2 80.3 82.3 821
Real Estate:
Leasing 272 25.9 25.2 249
Sales 25.2 21.3 14.9 64.2
Less amounts reported in discontinued
operations ' (29.6) (20.8) (13.4) (60.4)
Agribusiness’ 17.7 29.2 32.5 27.6
Reconciling Ttems * (2.3) (2.8) (3.0) (8.2)
Total revenue § 3155 $ 3516 $ 3727 $  365.0
Operating Profit (Loss):
Transportation:
Ocean transportation $ (05 $ 211 $ 242 $ 135
Luogistics services 1.5 1.8 2.2 1.2
Real Estate:
Leasing 12.0 11.0 10.2 10,0
Sales 5.6 9.6 3.5 204
Less amounis reported in discontinued
operations' (1L.3) (12.1) (5.5) (23.4)
Agribusiness® (1.9) (11.3) (13.8) {0.8)
Total operating profit 5.4 20.1 20.8 20.9
Interest Expense (5.6) (6.9 (6.7) {6.7)
General Corparate Expenses (6.1) {4.5) 4.9) {6.3)
Income From Continuing Operations before
Income Taxes {6.3) 8.7 9.2 7.9
Income taxes (benefif) {2.3) 3.6 4.1 2.2
Income From Continuing Operations 4.0 5.1 5.1 57
Discontinued Operations’ 7.0 75 3.4 14.4
Net Income $ 3.0 § 126 $ 8.5 § 201
Earnings Per Share:
Basic $ 0.07 3 0.3 $ 0.21 § .49
Diluted $ 007 3 031 $§ o021 § 049

See Note 2 for discussion of discontinued operations.
Includes a $5.4 million gain recorded upon consolidation of HS&TC in the fourth quarter of 2009.
Includes inter-segment revenue, interest income, and other income classified as revenue for segment Teporting purposes,
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Segment results by quarter for 2008 are listed below (in millions, except per-share amounts):

Revenue:
Transportation:
Ocean transportation
Logistics services
Real Estate:
Leasing
Sales
Less amounts repaorted in discontinued
operations !
Agribusiness
Reconciling Items *
Total revenue
Operating Profit (Loss}):
Transportation:
Ocean transportation
Logistics services
Real Estate:
Leasing
Sales
Less amounts reported in discontinued
operations'
Apribusiness
Total operating profit
Interest Expense
General Corporate Expenses

Income From Continuing Operations hefore
Income Taxes

Income taxes
Income From Continuing Operations
Discontinued Operations’
Net Income

Earnings Per Share:
Basic
Diluted

See Note 2 for discussion of discontinued operations.
Includes inter-segment revenue, interest income, and other incame elassified as revenue for segment reporting purposes,
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2008
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
$ 2430 . $ 2684 $ 2728 § 2395
102.6 115.5 118.1 99.8
28.8 27.3 26.2 25.5
187.4 31.2 77.2 54.4
(8.3) (19.0) (75.9) - (48.3)
22.5 36.2 37.5 28.1
(L.5) (2.5) (3.0) (3.6)
$ 5745 0§ 4570 § 4529  § 3954
$ 159 $ 374 0§ 314 0§ 211
47 46 5.1 41
13.9 12.6 11.1 10.2
414 9.1 25.8 19.3
(4.9) (10.8) (30.0) (23.6)
48 (4.9) ®.7) (6.1)
75.8 48.0 36.7 25.0
(6.1) (5.6) (5.8) (6.2)
(5.7) (5.4) (5.3) (4.6)
64.0 37.0 25.6 14.2
25.1 14.1 7.4 4.9
38.9 229 18.2 9.3
3.2 6.7 18.6 14,6
421 § 296 $ 368 § 239
1.02 0.72 08 $§ 058
1.01 0.71 089 § 058
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15. PARENT COMPANY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Set forth below are the unconsolidated condensed financial statements of Alexander & Baldwin, Inc.
(“Parent Company”). The significant accounting policies used in preparing these financial statements are
substantially the same as those used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements as described in Note
1, except that, for purposes of the tables presented in this footnote, subsidiaries are carried under the equity method.

The following table presents the Parent Company’s condensed balance sheets as of December 31, 2009 and
2008 (in millions):

2009 2008
ASSETS -
Cumrent Assets: -
Cash and cash equivalenis $ 1 $ .
Accounts antl other recelvables, net 12 3
Inventories [ -
Real estate held for sale 7 -
Income tax receivable - 24
Section 1031 exchange proceeds - 23
Prepaid expenses and other 15 23
Total current assets 41 73
Investments:
Subsidiaries consolidated, at equity 1,210 1,131
Property, at Cost 455 432
Less accumalaied depreciation and amortization 226 219
Property -- net 229 213
Other Assets 32 43
Total $ 1,512 $ 1,460
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Lizhilities:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 10 8 28
Accounis payable 10 8
Income taxes payable 24 -
Non-qualified benefit plans 17 4
Other 15 12
Fotal eurrent liabilities 106 52
Long-term Debi 239 200
Employee Benefit Plans 22 48
Non-gualified Benefit Plans 8 17.
Other Long-term Liabilities 4 6
Deferred Income Taxes 42 30
Due to Subsidiaries L] 34
Shareholders” Equity:
Capital stack 33 i3
Additional capital 210 204
Accumulated ather comprehensive loss {81) (96}
Retained earnings 934 942
Cost of treasury stack (11) (11)
Total shareholders® equity 1,085 1,072

Total 3 1512 $ 1,460
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The following table presents the Parent Company's condensed statements of income for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (in millions):

Revenue:
Agribusiness
Real estate leasing
Real estate sales
Interest and other
Total revenue

Costs and Expenses:
Cost of agribusiness goods and services

Cost of real estate sales and leasing
Selling, peneral and administrative

Interest and other
Incorne tax benefit
Tofal costs and expenses
Loss fram Continuing Operations

Discontinited Operations, net of income taxes

Loss Before Equity in Income of Subsidiaries
Consolidated

Equity in Income from Continuing Operations of
Subsidiaries Consolidated

Equity in Income from Discontinued Operations of
Subsidiaries Consolidated

Net Income

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of income
taxes

Comprehenstve Income

100

2009

$ 73
22

2008

§ 01

—
— l —
Wl &

110

11
21
14
__as)
140

(21)

111

25

132

(91)

=
[t
faan

2007

$ 82

l —
oo O oo

124

97
i0
28
12
_
140

(16)
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The following table presents the Parent Company's condensed statements of cash flows for the years ended

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (in millions):

Cash Flows from Operations (including dividends received
from subsidiaries)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from disposal of property and sale of investments
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Change in intercompany payables/receivables
Proceeds from (repayments of) long-term debt, net

Proceeds from issuance of capital stock, including tax
henefit

Repurchases of capital stock
Dividends paid
Net cash used in financing activities

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Net increase (decrease) for the year
Balance, beginning of year
Balance, end of year

Other Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid, net of refunds

Other Non-cash Information:
Depreciation expense
Tax-deferred property sales
Tax-deferred property purchases

General Information: The Parent Company is headquartered in Honolulu, Hawaii and is engaged in the operations

2009

$ 90

(6)
(96)
28

(79)

(13)
51

$ 17
$ 29
$ (40)

2008 2007
$ 144 $ 17
(16) (18)
(12) -

9 5

(19) 13)
) (15)
(i6) - 85

2 8
(59) (33)
(51) {48)
{128) {3)
3) 1

3 2

5 - $ 3
$ (13) $ (12)
$ (63) $ (55)
$ 15 $ 15
$ 60 5 -
5 () § -

that are generally described in Note 13, "Industry Segments.” Additional information related to
is described in the foregoing notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Long-term Debt: At December 31, 2009 and 2008, long-term debt consisted of the following (in millions):

2009 2008
Revolving Credit loans (0.76% for 2008 and 1.12% for 2008) § 24 $ 55
Term Loans:

6.90%, payable through 2020 100 -
5.53%, payable through 2016 : 50 50
5.55%, payable through 2017 50 50
5.56%, payable through 2016 25 25
4.10%, payable through 2012 25 30
7.42%, payable through 2010 3 6
6.20%, payable through 2013 2 3
7.55%, payable through 2009 -- 7
7.57%, payable through 2009 - 2
Total 279 228
Less current poriion (40) (28)
Long-term debt 5 239 $ 200

Long-term Debt Maturities: At December 31, 2009, maturifies of all long-term debt during the next five
years are $40 million in 2010, $16 million in 2011, $27 million in 2012, $21 million in 2013, $33 million in 2014,
and $142 million thereafier.

Revolving Credit Facilities: The Company has a revolving senior credit facility with six commercial banks
that expires in December 2011. The revolving credit facility provides for a commitment of $225 million. Amounts
drawn under the facility bear interest at London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a spread ranging from
0.225 percent ta 0.475 percent based on the Company's S&P rating. The agreement contains certaln restrictive
covenants, the most significant of which require the maintenance of minimum shareholders’ equity levels, minimum
unencumbered property investment values, and a maximum ratio of total debt to earmings before interest,
depreciation, amortization, and taxes. At December 31, 2009, $24 million was outstanding and classified as current,

$2 million in letters of credit had been issued against the facility, and $199 million remained available for
borrowing.

The Company has a replenishing $400 million three-year unsecured note purchase and private shelf
agreement with Prudential Investment Management, Inc. and its affiliates (collectively, “Prudential”) under which
the Company may issue notes in an aggregate amount up to $400 million, less the sum of all principal -amounis then
outstanding on any notes issued by the Company or any of its subsidiaries fo Prudential and the amount of any notes
that are committed under the note purchase agreement. The Prudential agreement contains certain restrictive
covenants that are substantially the same as the covenants contained in the aggregate $325 million revolving serior
credit facilities. The ability to draw additional amounts under the Prudential facility expires on April 19, 2012 and

borrowings under the shelf facility hear interest at rates that are determined at the time of the borrowing. At
December 31, 2009, $71 million was available under the facility.

Real Estate Secured Term Debt: In June 2005, the Company, together with its real-estate subsidiaries,
purchased an office building in Phoenix, Arizona, and assumed $11 million of mortgage-secured debt. A&B owns
approximately 24 percent of the Phoenix office building. At December 31, 2009, approximately $2 million of the

$11 million was recorded on the parent company’s books, consistent with ownership of the property. The property is
jointly and severally owned by three subsidiaries of the Company. -

Dividends from Subsidiaries: The Company received dividends from Matson totaling $60 million for each
of the last three years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007.
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

This environmental impact statement preparation notice (EISPN} is prepared in accordance
with Chapter 343, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS) for the Wai‘ale Community Project
(hereafter “Wai‘ale” or “Project”) on the island of Maui.

1.1 SUMMARY
Project Name:
Location:

judicial District:
Landowner:
Applicant:

Tax Map Key (TMK):

Project Area:

Existing Use:

Proposed Use:

Land Use Designations:

Wai‘ale

Waikapt, Wailuku, Maui
Wailuku

Alexander & Baldwin, Inc.

A&B Properties, Inc.

TMK (2) 3-8-005: 023 (por.) and 037, and (2) 3-8-007: 071, 101
(por.), and 104 :

Approximately 545 acres

Pasture (cattle and horses), cattle feed lot, orchid farm, base
yard, sand stockpile and fallowed sugar fields

A master planned residential community that would inciude:
Village Mixed Use, Commercial, Business/Light Industrial, Multi
Family and Single Family Residential, Community Center,
Regional Park, Neighborhood Parks, Greenways and Open
Space, Cultural Preserves, Middle School, and related
infrastructure, including a possible wastewater treatment plant.
50 acres of the subject fands will be donated to the County of
Maui with the following specified land use allocations:
Affordable Housing (40 acres), Neighborhood Park (3 acres), and
Community Center (7 acres).

State Land Use: Agricultural
Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan: Agriculture
County Zoning: Agricultural

Draft Maui Island Plan {December 2009): within Urban Growth
Area
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Special Management Area: Outside of the Special Management Area (SMA)

Permits/Approvals

Required: Compliance with Chapter 343, Hawaii Revised Statutes
State Land Use District Boundary Amendment
Community Plan Amendment
Project District (Phase 1)/Change in Zoning
Project District (Phases 11)
Project District (Phase iI)/Subdivision Approval
Compliance with Chapter 6E, Hawaii Revised Statutes
Grading/Building Permits
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit

Accepting Authority: State of Hawai‘i Land Use Commission

1.2 LOCATION

The approximately 545.229 acre Wai‘ale property is located at Wailuku and Waikapa, Maui,
adjacent and south of the Maui Lani project (See Figure 1). The Wai‘ale property borders
Kuihelani Highway on the east. Waiko Road intersects Kuihelani Highway and divides the
property into two sections, one section lies north of Waiko Road (approximately 422.594
acres) and the other south of Waiko Road (approximately 122.635 acres).

1.3 LAND OWNERSHIP

Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. owns the properties identified as TMK (2) 3-8-005: 023 (por.) and
037; and (2) 3-8-007: 071, 101 {por.), and 104 (See Figure 2).

1.4 IDENTIFICATION OF THE APPLICANT

The applicant is A&B Properties, Inc.

Contact: Mr. Grant Chun, Vice President
A&B Properties, Inc.
P. O. Box 156
Kahului, Hawai‘i 96732
Phone: (808) 872-4312
Fax: (808) 871-7497
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1.5 IDENTIFICATION OF ACCEPTING AUTHORITY

In accordance with Chapter 343, HRS, privately-initiated EIS documents must be accepted by
the government agency empowered to approve permits for a project. “The authority to
accept a final statement shall rest with the agency receiving the request for approval.” The
accepting authority for the Wai’ale EIS is the State of Hawai‘i Land Use Commission (LUC).

Contact: Mr. Dan Davidson, Executive Officer
State of Hawai’i
Land Use Commission
P.O. Box 2359
Honoluiu, Hawai‘i 96804
Phone: (808) 587-3822
Fax: (808) 587-3827

1.6 IDENTIFICATION OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT
The environmental consultant is PBR HAWAIL.

Contact: Mr. Vincent Shigekuni, Vice President
PBR HAWAII
1001 Bishop Street
ASB Tower, Suite 650
Honolulu, HI 96813
Phone: (808) 521-5631
Fax: (808) 523-1402

1.7 COMPLIANCE WITH STATE OF HAWAI‘l AND COUNTY OF MAUI
ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS

This document has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Hawaii Revised
Statutes (HRS) Chapter 343 and Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) Title 11, Department of
Health, Chapter 200, Environmental Impact Rules. Section 343-5, HRS, establishes nine
“triggers” that require compliance with these regulations. The applicable “trigger” for the
preparation of this environmental assessment includes:

¢ Possible use of State and/or County lands related to infrastructure connections and
access to State or County roadways;

* Possible development of an onsite wastewater treatment facility; and
» Amendments to the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan (County General Plan)
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Section 343-5, HRS also requires an environmental assessment or environmental impact
statement for projects involving the use of State or County funds or lands. Use of State or
County lands or funds could include, but not be limited to on- and off- site infrastructure
improvements relating to roadways, water, sewer, utility and drainage facilities affecting State
andfor County lands relating to the project. While the specific nature of all potential
improvements is not known at this time, the Draft EIS will address all current and future
instances involving the use of State or County lands or funds relating to Wai‘ale.

Additionally, Section 343-5, HRS requires an environmental assessment or environmental
impact statement for projects involving any amendments to existing county general plans
where the amendment would result in designations other than agriculture, conservation, or
preservation, except actions proposing any new county general plan or amendments to any
existing county general plan initiated by a county. The proposed project will require an
amendment to the Maui County Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan.

In satisfying a condition of zoning for the Maui Business Park (Phase II), A&B Properties, Inc.
agreed to provide 50 acres of the Wai‘ale project area to the County of Maui. The lands are
to be used as follows: Affordable Housing (40 acres), Community Center (7 acres) and
Neighborhood Park (3 acres). These lands and proposed uses are included within the scope
of the Wai‘ale project, and this EISPN.

1.8 STUDIES TO BE CONDUCTED AND INCLUDED IN THE EIS

A description of the existing natural and social environment, the possible alternatives to the
project, and the potential impacts of the project and proposed mitigation measures are
provided in this EISPN. The information contained in this report has been developed from
site visits and generally available information regarding the characteristics of the site and
surrounding areas. Technical studies to assess the existing natural and physical conditions of
the site and potential impacts to the property and the surrounding area are being prepared
and will be included in the Draft EIS. These include:

» Air Quality Study;

» Archaeological Inventory Survey;

Cultural Impact Assessment;

Faunal Survey;

Floral Survey;

Market Assessment and Fiscal impact Study;

* Noise Study;

e Preliminary Engineering and Drainage Report; and
» Traffic Impact Analysis Report
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1.9 PUBLIC CONSULTATION

This project has undergone an extensive community planning process, including consultation
with community leaders, the County of Maui administration and Maui residents. Public input
was sought through four community meetings in August 2005.

The first community meeting on August 17 provided an orientation of the project, the
planning process, and the formulation of a vision statement for Wai‘ale. In the planning
workshop held on August 13, residents had the opportunity to help develop the Wai‘ale
master plan. A community open house was held on August 20 to enable residents to provide
additional input and refine the master plan. On August 25, the preferred conceptual master

plan was presented to the community. Additionally, the community contributed to the
formulation of the vision staiement for Wai‘ale (See Section 2.3.1).
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2.0 DESCRIPTION OF WAI‘ALE

This chapter provides background information and a general description of the Wai’‘ale
project.

2.1 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2.1.1 Location and Surrounding Uses

The approximately 545 acre Wai‘ale property is located at Wailuku and Waikapa (See Figure
1). The Wai‘ale property borders Kuihelani Highway on the east. Waiko Road intersects
Kuihelani Highway and divides the property into two sections, one section lies north of
Waiko Road comprised of approximately 422 acres and the other south of Waiko Road
comprised of approximately 123 acres. Current access to the property is off of Waiko Road
and Kuihelani Highway.

The property is bounded on the west by Waikapt Village and light industrial uses.

Maui Lani, adjacent to and north of Wai‘ale, is a master planned mixed-use community
including residential, commercial, recreational and educational uses. The 18-hole
championship golf course, The Dunes at Maui Lani, is also jocated within Maui Lani.

The Waiolani Elua subdivision (25 single-family lots), the Waiolani Mauka subdivision (104
single-family lots), the Waiolani Pikake subdivision (38 single-family lots), and the Waikapu
affordable housing subdivision located off Honoapi‘ilani Highway in Waikapa have
approximately 410 existing single-family home sites, with an additional 440 homes proposed
to be developed. The expanded Waikapi residential area is west of Wai‘ale.

Maui Tropical Plantation is also located west of Wai‘ale and adjacent to Waikapi. The 60-
acre plantation is a demonstration farm, open to the public for tours and special events.

. 2.1.2 Description of the Property

The approximately 545 acre Wai‘ale property is divided into two sections by Waiko Road.
The section located north of Waiko Road is comprised of approximately 422 acres. These
lands are currently used for pasture (cattle and horses), a cattle feed lot, base yard, and sand
stockpiling. Two potable water wells are located in the northeastern portion of the property
near Kuihelani Highway. The section located south of Waiko Road is comprised of
approximately 123 acres consisting mainly of fallowed sugar cane fields and an orchid farm.

The property is generally flat along the eastern boundary along Kuihelani Highway, with a
gentle slope rising from the northeastern to the northwestern corner. At its lowest point (at
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the northeastern corner), the property is approximately 150 feet above mean sea level (msl).
Higher elevations occur along the western edge of Waiko Road at approximately 310 above
msl. Slopes generally increase from the north to the south, and the topography of the

property at the southern tip is approximately 200 feet above msl. Waikapa Stream borders
the southern edge of the property.

2.1.3 History of the Property

The southern portion of the Wai‘ale site was previously cultivated for sugar cane production
by the Hawaiian Commercial & Sugar Company (HC&S). Production ended in 2005, and
fallowed sugar cane fields currently exist on the property south of Waiko Road. A portion of
the lands north of Waiko Road was previously mechanically cultivated as a turf sod farm.

Other portions of this area have been utilized for sand mining with the balance used for cattle
and horse grazing and a cattle feed lot.

2.2 COMMUNITY PLANNING PROCESS

Wai‘ale has been planned through a community-based process including meetings with key
stakeholders, community leaders, the County of Maui Administration, and Maui residents.
Questionnaires and informational meetings and planning workshops held in 2005 sought
community input and participation in developing a vision and conceptual master plan for
Wai‘ale. The community has contributed to Wai‘ale’s conceptual master plan and vision
statement, which envisions a socially integrated community with a unique sense of identity
and character that makes both visitors and residents feel welcomed.

Community Meetings:

e August 11, 2005 ~ This meeting provided an orientation of the project area, the
planning process, and the formulation of a vision statement for Wai‘ale.

e August 13, 2005 —In this planning workshop, residents had the opportunity to help
develop alternative conceptual master plans consistent with their vision for a new
community.

¢ August 20, 2005 — At the community open house, residents were able to provide
additional input on the project and refine the preferred master plan for Wai‘ale.

¢ August 25, 2005 — The preferred conceptual master plan was presented to the
community at this meeting.

A summary of the planning process and resultant conceptual master plan for Wai‘ale is
included as Appendix A. it should be noted that the original conceptual master plan for the
property included approximately 826 acres; comprising of 474 acres contiguous to Maui Lani,
extending to Kuihelani Highway and Waiko Road, and approximately 352 acres extending
south from Waiko Road along Kuihelani Highway. The project was envisioned as a master
planned community that would incorporate a mix of land uses to support the projected future

8
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community growth in Central Maui, including affordable housing and the potential for a new
civic - center for the County of Maui.

However, since that time, portions of the original project area have been sold to others and
the lands south of Waikapi Stream (approximately 220 acres) were not designated within the
Urban Growth area under the Draft Maui Isfand Plan. Although the lands south of Waikap
Stream are still envisioned as a future expansion area for Wai‘ale, they are not included in
this project.

While the final Maui Island Plan has not yet been adopted by the Maui County Council (See
Section 5.2.2); a major element of the Maui Istand Plan will be the Directed Growth Strategy,
which wil! include Directed Growth Maps specifying “urban growth boundaries” for the
island of Maui. As of July 2010, all of the subject lands north of Waikapa Stream are within
the “urban growth boundary” of the Directed Growth Maps of put forth by: 1) the Planning
Department; and 2) the General Plan Advisory Committee; and 3) the Maui Planning
Commission.

Also, in satisfying a condition of zoning for the Maui Business Park (Phase II), A&B Properties,
Inc. agreed to contribute 50 acres of the Wai‘ale project area to the County of Maui. The
lands are to be used as follows: Affordable Housing {40 acres), Community Center (7 acres)
and Neighborhood Park (3 acres).

2.3 GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF WAI‘ALE

2.3.1 Vision Statement for Wai‘ale

Through the community-based planning process, the following vision statement was
developed:

Create a socially integrated community with a “unique” sense of identity and
character, capitalizing on its location and natural features. As an extension of Kahului
“Dream City,” it will be a community that makes both visitors and residents feel
“welcome” and plans for the long-range community and civic facilities to support the
central Maui region.

Some of the key community planning goals to achieve this vision includes:

» Provide walkable mixed-use neighborhoods.

e Provide homes for a variety of income ranges, ages, and lifestyles. If so desired, a
resident can grow-up and spend their entire lives in the community with the
appropriate housing types available.

¢ Plan for needed community facilities to meet the region’s current and future needs.
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» include a multi-modal transportation system that accommodates walking, biking,
jogging and driving.

» Include commercial activities (including locally-owned stores and restaurants),
schools, and other civic and recreational facilities.

« Respect the natural, historical, and cultural significance of the land.

+ Capitalize on the views of Haleakala, the West Maui Mountains and other
significant landmarks.

2.3.2 Conceptual Community Master Plan for Wai‘ale

Updates. Subsequent to the community-based planning process that resutied in the 2005
conceptual master plan, there have been several developments which have resulted in
modifications to the conceptual community master plan. These include:

+ Recommendation of the County of Maui Planning Department to limit the
proposed development to the area north of Waikapii Stream within the 2030
planning horizon of the Maui Island Plan. The approximately 220 acres south of
Waikapi Stream were not recommended for community growth at this time.

» Zoning Ordinance that required A&B Properties Inc. to contribute 50 acres to the
County of Maui for Affordable Housing, Community Center, and Neighborhood

- Park.

» The County of Maui’s public transportation system (“Maui Bus”) was started. As of
August 1, 2008, the Maui Bus public transit service consists of twelve (12} bus
routes, all operated by Roberts Hawaii. These routes are funded by the County of
Maui and provide service in and between various Central, South, West, Haiku and
Upcountry Maui communities. All of the routes are operated seven days a week,
including all holidays. All vehicles on the routes are ADA accessible. This results
in a potentially positive impact to one of the key community planning goals of
“Include a multi-modal transportation system...” by accommodating another
alternative mode of transportation to cars. ,

« Portions of the original planning area were sold to others and are not included in
the project.

= Maui Lani has continued its development and expansion to the north of Wai‘ale,
The expansion includes village mixed uses, residential neighborhoods, Pomaika’i
Elementary School (opened in 2007) and a regional park, which provide
opportunity to coordinate and connect this planned community with Wai‘ale.

Wai‘ale is envisioned to be a community for residents to live, work, learn and play.
Residential communities, including single-family homes and multi-family dwellings, will be
connected to Village Mixed-Use areas supported with commercial, retail, office, civic and
other public facilities through a system of pedestrian/bicycle paths and greenways (See Figure
3). Approximately 2,550 residential units are proposed for Wai‘ale, including approximately
300 residential units within the 40 acres to be contributed to the County of Maui.

10
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Proposed land uses are shown in the updated conceptual master plan for Wai‘ale (See Figure
3) and are generally described below. As described, the approximate land use areas are

summarized generally and may be adjusted as the master plan is refined through the land use
review and approval process.

Village Mixed Use. Commercial, office, retail, business, civic, social services and multi-
family residential uses would be located on several parcels of land near the Kuihelani
Highway/Waiko Road intersection, as well as along the extension of Kamehameha Avenue.
Pedestrian and bicycle paths connecting these uses with the rest of the Wai‘ale community
(including schools and places of employment) encourage multi-modal transportation.

Commercial. To provide a variety of services and employment opportunities within Wai‘ale,
a commercial area is planned along Kuihelani Highway. The commercial area is
approximately 23 acres, and is envisioned for commercial, office, retail, and business uses.

Business/Light Industrial. To meet regional and area demands and to provide for an

additional employment center for Wai‘ale, approximately 16 acres are planned to provide an
area for light industrial type users and businesses.

Residential. Ranging from traditional single family homes to multi-family dwellings with a
variety of live-work opportunities, there are approximately 202 acres planned for residential
uses. Consistent with the Draft Maui Island Plan’s Directed Growth Strategy for Central Maui,
a total of approximately 2,550 residential units are planned at Wai‘ale.

County of Maui Lands. Integrated into the conceptual master plan in the vicinity of the
current terminus of Kamehameha Avenue in the north-western portion of Wai‘ale, 50 acres of
fand are to be contributed to the County of Maui. The lands are to be used as follows:
Afiordable Housing (40 acres), Community Center (7 acres) and Neighborhood Park (3 acres).

Approximately 300 residential units, including both multi-family and single family residences
are assumed for the affordable housing.

Schools. To accommodate the educational needs of children living in Wai‘ale and the
surrounding neighborhoods, it has been estimated that one middle school site, totaling
approximately 18 acres, may be needed, and has been provided for within Wai‘ale.

Public Support Facilities & Regional Community Center. Public support and civic-related
facilities and a regional community center would be located in the center of the Wai‘ale
community along the extension of Kamehameha Avenue. The regional community center is

envisioned to be developed by the County of Maui on 7 acres, as part of the County of Maui
lands.

Parks and Cultural Preserves. A regional park is proposed along the northern boundary of
Wai‘ale, providing a spatial separation between the neighborhoods of Wai‘ale and Maui Lani.
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This park is intended to support regional and Wai‘ale recreational activities and would be
within walking distance or a bicycle ride from residential communities and schools.
Additional neighborhood parks are provided within residential areas, as well as along the
perimeter of Wai‘ale. Parks, cultural preserves, and open space planned within Wai‘ale total
nearly 142 acres.

Greenways and Open Space. The conceptual master plan for Wai‘ale includes greenways
and open space along Kuihelani Highway, within residential communities, and along
Waikapii Stream to enhance the visual character of the community.

Bicycle/Pedestrian Paths. Wai‘ale is designed as a bikeable/walkable community. A system
of linked paths will provide pedestrians and bicyclists with another option for transportation
throughout the community. Residents would be able to trave! from their homes to the Village
Mixed Use, Commercial Center, parks, school, and other public uses on pedestrian and
bicycle pathways that would run through a network of open spaces and greenways.

Landmark Buildings. At prominent locations within a community, there are opportunities to
create buildings that have “landmark” qualities. These buildings could include civic or other

institutional uses such as churches and will contribute to the overall character and visual
orientation of the community.

2.4 DEVELOPMENT TIMETABLE AND PRELIMINARY COSTS

2.4.1 Development Timetable
The EIS process is expected to be completed and accepted by the State Land Use Commission
(SLUC) in 2011. SLUC approval is anticipated in late 2011, followed by County approvals

{community plan amendment, change in zoning, project district approvals) through about
2013.

2.4.2 Preliminary Development Costs

Estimated costs for the development of Wai‘ale will be provided in the Draft EIS.
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3.0 DESCRIPTION OF THE AFFECTED NATURAL
ENVIRONMENT, POTENTIAL IMPACTS, AND MITIGATION
MEASURES

This chapter describes the existing conditions of the natural environment, potential impacts of
Wai‘ale on the environment, and mitigation measures to minimize such impacts.

3.1 CLIMATE

The climate of Maui is relatively uniform year-round. The project area experiences mild and

uniform temperatures, moderate humidity, and a relatively consistent northeasterly
tradewinds. Average temperatures recorded at the Kahului Airport range from a low of 63
degrees Fahrenheit to a high of 87 degrees Fahrenheit. August is historically the warmest
month, and February is the coolest month. Average annual rainfall in the project area is
approximately 20 to 30 inches, with the most rainfall occurring in January. Surface winds are
usually from the northeast, with wind speeds averaging 16 to 18 miles per hour.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

The Wai‘ale community is not expected to have a significant effect on climatic conditions
and no mitigation measures are proposed.

3.2 GEOLOGY AND TOPOGRAPHY

The island of Maui is part of a volcanic mass consisting of at least six major volcanoes and
one minor volcano. Presently, lower saddles between the volcanoes are flooded by shallow
seawater, dividing the mass into four separate islands — Maui, Kaho‘olawe, Lana'i, and
Moloka‘i. In the geologically recent past, all islands were united as a single large island
(MacDonald, Abbott, & Peterson 1983).

The island of Maui consists of two major volcanoes, West Maui and Haleakala (East Maui).
West Maui is older than East Maui. The broad gently-sloping plain connecting the two
volcanoes, the Maui Isthmus, was formed when lavas of Haleakala banked against the
existing West Maui volcano. The West Maui volcano has passed through the principal stages
of Hawaiian volcanism, and has produced four small post-erosional eruptions. The Haleakala
volcano erupted less than two centuries ago and is regarded as dormant (MacDonald, Abbott,
& Peterson 1983).

Wai‘ale is located in the ceniral basin of Maui, where West Maui and East Maui meet. The
property is generally flat along the eastern boundary along Kuihelani Highway, with a gentle
slope rising from the northeastern to the northwestern corner. At its lowest point {(at the
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northeastern corner), the property is approximately 150 feet above mean sea Jeve! (ms!).
Higher elevations occur along the western edge of Waiko Road at approximately 310 above
msl. Slopes generally increase from the north to the south, and the topography of the
property at the southern tip is approximately 200 feet above msl. Waikapt Stream borders

the southern edge of the property. With a gentle overall terrain, the average slope is about
three percent or less.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

While the Wai‘ale community will alter how the land is currently used, the proposed
improvements are relatively insignificant compared to the overall geological character of the
site and region. Construction activities, such as grading, will alter the topography of the site’
to accommodate the Wai‘ale community. Appropriate engineering, design and construction
measures will be implemented to minimize potential erosion due to grading of soils during
construction. Further information on soils and grading is provided in Section 3.3 below.

3.3 SOILS

Three soil suitability studies have been prepared to describe the physical attributes of land
and the relative productivity of different land types for agricultural production in Hawai‘i.
These studies include the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resource Conservation
Services Soil Survey; 2) the University of Hawai‘i, Land Study Bureau Detailed Land

Classification; and 3) the State Department of Agriculture Agricultural Lands of Importance to
the State of Hawai’i (ALISH) system.

3.3.1 Natural Resources Conservation Service Soil Survey

The Soil Survey of the Islands of Kauai, Oahu, Maui, Molokai, and Lanai, State of Hawaii
(1972) classifies the soils of the Wai‘ale site as Jaucas Sand, 0 to 15 percent slopes; Pulehu
Clay Loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes; Pulehu Cobbly Silt Loam, 3 to 7 percent slopes; and
Pu’uone Sand, 7 to 30 percent slopes {See Figure 4). Most of the project area contains soils
classified as Pu‘uone Sand or Jaucas Sand. There are small portions of soils classified as
Pulehu Cobbly Silt Loam or Pulehu Clay Loam located near the project area.

Jaucas Sand, 0 to 15 percent slopes (JaC). This soil is used for pasture, sugarcane, truck
crops and urban development. Permeability is rapid, and runoff is very slow to slow. The

hazard of water erosion is slight, but wind erosion is a severe hazard where vegetation has
been removed.

Pulehu Clay Loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes (PsA). This soil is used for sugarcane, truck crops

and pasture. Permeability is moderate, runoff is slow, and the erosion hazard is no more than
slight.
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Pulehu Cobbly Silt Loam, 3 to 7 percent slopes (PrB). This soil is used for sugarcane. It is

similar to Pulehu clay loam, 0 to 3 percent siopes (PsA}, except that the texture is silt loam,
and the surface layer is cobbly. Runoff is slow, and the erosion hazard is stight.

Pu‘uone Sand, 7 to 30 percent slopes (PZUE). This soil is used for pasture and home sites.

Permeability is moderately rapid above the cemented layer. Runoff is slow, and the hazard of
wind erosion is moderate to severe.

3.3.2 land Study Bureau Detailed Land Classification

The University of Hawai’i, Land Study Bureau (LSB) developed the Detailed Land
Classification rating the productivity of land using the letters A, B, C, D, and E, with A
representing the class of highest productivity and E the lowest. The majority of the Wai‘ale
site is located on lands classified as E (very poor) (See Figure 5). These lands have the lowest
productivity rating under the Land Study Bureau classification system. Machine tillability is
very poorly suited for these land, thus grazing is the typical use for this type of soil. A small

portion at the northeastern boundary and a small portion along the northern boundary of the
site are classified as C (fair).

3.3.3 Agricultural Lands of Importance to the State of Hawai'i (ALISH)

The Agricultural Lands of Importance to the State of Hawaii (ALISH) (1977) system classifies
lands that are important to agriculiure in Hawai‘i as Prime, Unique, or Other, with all
remaining lands termed Unclassified. When utilized with modern farming methods, Prime
agricultural lands have a soil quality, growing season, and moisture supply necessary 1o
produce sustained crop yields economically. Unique agricultural lands possess a
combination of soil quality, growing season, and moisture supply to produce sustained high
yields of a specific crop. Other agricultural lands include those that have not been rated as

Prime or Unique. The soils on the Wai‘ale site are classified as Other by the ALISH
classification system (See Figure 6).

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Wai‘ale will involve the use of approximately 545 acres of land, which represents
approximately 0.2 percent of the roughly 246,000 acres of land in the State Agricultural
district on the island of Maui. A more detailed assessment of the agricultural impact of the
proposed project will be included in the Draft EIS.

3.4 NATURAL HAZARDS

Natural hazards impacting the Hawaiian Islands include hurricanes, tsunami, volcanic
eruptions, earthquakes and floods. Devastating hurricanes have impacted Hawai'i twice in
since 1980 — Hurricane ‘lwa in 1982 and Hurricane “Iniki in 1992. While it is difficult to
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predict these natural occurrences, it is reasonable to assume that future events could be likely
given the recent record.

Tsunamis are large, rapidly moving ocean waves triggered by a major disturbance of the
ocean floor. They are usually caused by an earthquake, sometimes can be produced by a
submarine landslide or a volcanic eruption. About 50 tsunamis have been reported in the
Hawaiian Islands since the early 1800s, two of which were generated locally. Seven of these
tsunamis caused major damage.

Volcanic hazards in the Maui are considered minimal due to the dormant status of the
island’s volcanoes.

In Hawai‘i, most earthquakes are linked to volcanic activity rather than the movement of
tectonic plates. Each year, thousands of earthquakes occur in Hawai‘i, but the vast majority
of them are only detectable with highly sensitive instruments. However, moderate and
disastrous earthquakes have occurred in Hawai‘i. The 1938 Maui Earthquake, with a
magnitude of between 6.7 and 6.9 on the Richter Scale and an epicenter six miles north of
Maui, created landslides and forced the closure of Hana Highway. Damaged water pipes and
ground fractures were reported in Lahaina. On October 15, 2006, a series of earthquakes,
with magnitudes of 6.7 and 6.0, occurred west of the Big Island at Kiholo Bay. Accerding to
Maui Electric Company (MECO), this was the strongest earthquake felt throughout the islands
in the past 23 years, and has been recorded as the largest seismic event to occur inthe U.S. in
2006 according to U.S. Geological Survey data.

Fiood hazards are primarily identified by the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) prepared by
the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), National Flood Insurance Program.
According to the FIRM, most of the Wai‘ale project site is designated Zone C, which are areas
of minimal flooding (See Figure 7). Waikapi Stream is situated south of the site. Areas along
Waikapt Stream are designated Zone A, which are areas inundated by one percent annual
chance flooding. '

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

The Wai‘ale community will not exacerbate any hazard conditions. Potential damage caused
by earthquakes and hurricanes will be mitigated, as all structures will be constructed in
compliance with the Maui County Building Code. An exiensive greenway will be located
within the area near Waikapt Stream designated as Zone A.

3.5 FLORA

A Botanical and Fauna Survey of the Wai‘ale site has been conducted by Robert Hobdy. The
vegetation observed throughout the property was dominated by a variety of non-native plants,
including buffelgrass, kiawe, koa haole, and guinea grass. Four native plant species (ilima,
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‘uhaloa, kou, and popolo} and three Polynesian introduced plant species (kukui, niu, and ko),
were found on the property, however all are common species found throughout the state of
Hawai’i.

There were no federally-listed endangered or threatened native species found on the property.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Due to the dominance of non-native plants and the absence of any rare or protected native .

plant species, the Wai‘ale community is not anticipated to have a significant negative impact
on botanical resources. The Botanical and Fauna Survey will be included in the Draft EIS.

3.6 FAUNA

As noted in Section 3.5, a Botanical and Fauna Survey of the Wai‘ale site has been conducted
by Robert Hobdy. Mammals observed on the property include: cattle, horses, axis deer, and
mongoose. Other mammals likely to be found on the property include rats, mice, and feral
cats. 17 bird species were observed, including 15 non native species, one indigenous water
bird (black-crowned night heron) and one migrant bird (Pacific golden plover). No federally-
listed endangered or threatened mammal, bird, or insect species were found on the property.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Due to the dominance of non-native species and the absence of any federally-listed
endangered or threatened mammal, bird, or insect species, the Wai‘ale community is not
anticipated to have a significant negative impact on fauna resources. The Botanical and
Fauna Survey will be included in the Draft EIS.

17

o ﬁ

L

g

i SR N

o

Fm i



WAI'ALE

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT PREPARATION NOTICE

(This page intentionally left blank.)

18



4.0 ASSESSMENT OF THE HUMAN ENVIRONMENT, ¢
POTENTIAL IMPACTS, AND MITIGATION MEASURES *




WAI‘ALE

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT PREPARATION NOTICE

4.0 ASSESSMENT OF THE HUMAN ENVIRONMENT,
POTENTIAL IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES

This chapter describes the existing conditions of the human environment, potential impacts of
Wai‘ale, and mitigation measures to minimize any impacts.

4.1 ARCHAEOLOGICAL AND HISTORIC RESOURCES

The Wai‘ale site was previously used for sugar cane cultivation, ranching, sod farm and sand
mining. Burials have been identified on portions of the site and measures to preserve these
sites are being undertaken in consultation with the State Department of Land and Natural
Resources, Historic Preservation Division (SHPD) and the Maui/l.anai Islands Burial Council.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

An archaeological inventory survey of the site has been conducted and will be included in
the Draft EIS. This includes archaeological work undertaken in conjunetion with Hawaiian
Cement’s sand mining activities within the northwestern portion of the property. Mitigation
measures, including a plan for long term preservation are being formulated. Several cultural
preserves are planned within the project site to safeguard these burial sites.

The landowner, Alexander & Baldwin, Inc., and its contractors will comply with all State and
County laws and rules regarding the preservation of archaeological and historic sites.

Should any historic remains be encountered during construction of Wai‘ale, work in the
vicinity of the find will cease immediately and the find will be protected from damage. The
SHPD will be contacted immediately to assess the significance of the find and recommend
appropriate mitigation measures, if necessary.

4.2 CULTURAL RESOURCES

A cultural impact assessment is being conducted to identify cultural resources associated with
the Wai‘ale site.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

The cultural impact assessment will identify existing cultural resources associated with the
Wai‘ale site and the Wai‘ale’s potential impact to such resources. The assessment will
include research of historical records and documents and interviews with people

knowledgeable about the area. The cultural impact assessment will be included in the Draft
EIS.
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4.3 NOISE

Noise generators in the vicinity of Wai‘ale are associated with nearby agricultural, industrial,
and construction activities. Another noise source in the area can be attributed to vehicular
traffic along Kuihelani Highway and Waiko Road. A noise study is being conducted to
determine existing noise levels.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Ambient noise conditions will be temporarily impacted by construction activities. Heavy
construction equipment will likely be the dominant source of noise during project
construction. The overall long term impact of Wai‘ale on ambient noise levels is not
anticipated to be significant. A noise study will project future noise levels with the Wai‘ale
community and will be included in the Draft EiS.

4.4 AIR QUALITY

Air quality in the vicinity of Wai‘ale is relatively good with existing airborne emissions
attributed primarily to nearby agricultural and industrial activities. Other potential sources of
airborne emissions include construction activities at Maui Lani, vehicular traffic emissions,
and volcanic emissions (vog). However, these sources are typically intermittent, with
prevailing trade winds quickly dispersing any particulates which are generated. Air quality
data available for the area from the DOH indicates that ambient air concentrations are wel|
within State and national air quality standards. An air quality study is being conducted to
identify existing conditions at the site.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Anticipated air quality impacts attributed to the project include dust generated by short term
construction-related activities. Dust control measures, such as regular watering and
sprinkling, will be implemented to minimize wind-blow emissions. Grade and grubbed areas
will be vegetated to mitigate dust-generated impacts. In the long term, Wai‘ale is not
expected to adversely impact local and regional ambient air quality. An air quality study will
assess the impact of the project on air quality and will be included in the Draft EIS.

4.5 VISUAL RESOURCES

The Wai'ale site is situated within the central valley of Maui. The slopes of Haleakala,
Waikapt Valley, and the West Maui Mountains are visible from the site. However, the site
itself is not considered a scenic or unique scenic corridor or area.
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Potential Impacts and Mitigation Meastres

Wai‘ale will change the visual character of the site from primarily fallowed sugar cane fields
and kiawe tree thickets to a master-planned community with residential, commercial,
recreational and educational uses. Wai‘ale will be extensively landscaped as part of the
development improvements, to ensure visua! buffering and softening of the built landscape.
The master plan includes regional and neighborhood parks, greenways and open space.

4.6 SOCIO-ECONOMIC CHARACTERISTICS

The Wai’ale site is located in Central Maui, south of Wailuku and Waikapt. The Wailuku-
Kahului area is the economic and population center of Maui. Maui’s major harbor and
airport are both located in Kahului, as are large residential communities.

4.6.1 Population

According to the Maui County Community Plan Update Program: Socio-Economic Forecast
(SMS, 2002), the population of Maui increased from 91,361 persons in 1990 to 117,644
persons in 2000. The population of the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan area was 41,503

persons in 2000 and was projected to be 48,397 persons in 2010 and 55,424 persons in
2020.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Wai‘ale is expected to provide Maui residents with new opportunities for home ownership.
Wai‘ale will add approximately 2,550 residential units, including affordable units, to the
supply of housing on the island of Maui. According to the U.S. Census Bureau, the number of
persons per household in Maui County in 2000 was 2.91. In comparison, the number of
persons per household statewide in 2000 was 2.92.

Although the population of Maui is not expected to be significantly impacted by Wai‘ale, the
population of the Wailuku-Kahului area may increase as residents decide to move from their
existing residences elsewhere on Maui to Wai‘ale. A market study and fiscal impact analysis
is being prepared for the project and will be included in the Draft EIS.

4.6.2 Housing

Wailuku and Kahului are primarily composed of older residential areas, mixed with business
uses. Lot sizes in Wailuku vary and street patterns are reflective of older subdivisions.
Residential areas in Kahului are newer, with wide curvilinear streets.
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According to the Maui County Community Plan Update Program: Socio-Economic Forecast
(SMS, 2002), there were 12,852 households in the Wailuku-Kahului area in 2000. SMS
projected the number of households in the Wailuku-Kahului area to be 15,985 and 19,051 in
2010 and 2020, respectively. However, the demand for housing is projected to be greater in
each of those years. The projected housing demand is 16,826 homes for 2010; and 20,054
homes for 2020.

Over the past 10 to 15 years, the cost of residential housing in the region and on the island of
Maui has increased dramatically. According to the U.S. Census Bureau, the median value of
owner-occupied housing units in Maui County in 2000 was $249,900 and the
homeownership rate was 57.6 percent (this is slightly higher than the statewide average of

56.5 percent). According to data released by the Realtors Association of Maui, Maui island's

median home price in December 2008 was $567,500, down 2.5 percent from $582,002 a
year earlier.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Wai‘ale would add approximately 2,550 residential units, including affordable units, to the
supply of housing on the island of Maui. Wai‘ale would assist in providing relief to the
current overall shortage of housing, and the sites central location suggests that its impact will
be very beneficial to Maui’s residential and commercial sectors. As such, no significant
adverse impacts on housing are anticipated. .

A market study and fiscal impact analysis is being prepared and will be included in the Draft
EIS. The study will assess the impact of the project on housing in Maui.

4.6.3 Economic Impact

Wailuku is the civic-financial-cultural center of Maui, and Kahului is the business and
industrial center of Maui. The Wai‘ale site is located south of Wailuku and Kahului.

Tourism is the primary economic engine of Maui, with many residents working in the service
industry. In December 2008, the State Department of Business, Economic Development and
Tourism (DBEDT) reported that compared to 2007, the number of visitors to Maui had
dropped 14.8 percent for the first 11 months of the year, resulting in 1,921,407 visitors. Total
visitors days on Maui also experienced a decline of 8.8 percent. Total visitor expenditures on
Maui dropped by 10.9 percent to $2.7 billion.

According 1o the U.S. Census Bureau, the median household income in Maui County was
$49,065 (in 2004) and per capita income $22,033 {in 1999) in Maui County. In comparison,
the statewide figures during the same time periods were (§51,359 and $21,525 respectively).
In 2004, approximately 8.3 percent of families in Maui County fell below the poverty level,
this compares to 9.0 percent statewide.
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Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Wai‘ale will provide housing and employment opportunities in close proximity to the existing
urban core and employment center at Wailuku-Kahului. During the development of Wai‘ale,
direct and indirect construction-related jobs will be offered. Construction industries, and
industries supporting construction, will benefit from the project, as will other businesses that

construction workers patronize. Longer term employment opportunities will also arise from
commercial components of Wai‘ale.

Development of Wai‘ale will provide the State with revenue from personal income taxes and
excise taxes {through the purchase of construction materials and payment of services) and the

County with revenue from an increase in real property taxes from more intensive use of the
project lands.

4.6.4 Employment

In December 2008, the State Department of Labor and Industrial Relations reported that the
island of Maui’s unemployment rate in November 2008 was 5.8 percent. This was an
increase over October 2008 (5.1 percent) and November 2007 (3.3 percent). -

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Wai‘ale will provide numerous employment opportunities during construction and after
development. Wai‘ale will include schools, social services, and commercial, office, retail

and civic uses that will offer employment to residents of the project and others on the island
of Maui.

4.7 INFRASTRUCTURE

A preliminary engineering report was prepared for Wai‘ale to provide information on existing
infrastructure that would serve the project. The report also evaluated the adequacy of existing

infrastructure and anticipated improvements that may be required for the project. This report
will be updated and included in the Draft EIS.

4.7.1 Roadways and Traffic

Major roadways in the vicinity of the site include: Kuihelani Highway (adjacent to and east
of the site), Waiko Road (bisects the site), Honoapi‘ilani Highway and Wai‘ale Road (west of
the site), and Kamehameha Avenue {north of the site).

Kuihelani Highway is a four-lane, two-way State arterial highway running in a north-south
direction between Kahului and Ma‘alaea. Kuihelani Highway has traffic signals and turning
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lanes at major intersections, including Waiko Road. The posted speed limit varies between
30 and 55 miles per hour {mph).

Waiko Road, which intersects the Kuihelani Highway and divides the Wai‘ale site into two
section, is a two-lane, County and privately-owned collector roadway connecting
Honoapi‘ilani Highway and Kuihelani Highway. The posted speed limit is 20 mph.
Immediately east of Honoapi‘ilani Highway, Waiko Road provides access to a residential
community, and is owned by the County. Further east, Waiko Road provides access to
industrial and livestock land uses and is privately-owned. '

Honoapi‘ilani Highway is a two-fane, undivided State highway running in a north-south
direction between Wailuku Ma‘alaea. The posted speed limit ranges between 30 and 55 mph
near Waikap. Honoapi‘ilani Highway has a left-turn pocket into Waiko Road.

Wai‘ale Road is a two-lane road running north from Waiko Road. Wai‘ale Road becomes
Lower Main Street near Ka’ahumanu Avenue. Wai‘ale Road has been extended and
improved as part of the Waikapu affordable housing subdivision (adjacent to and west of the
Wai‘ale site). The County’s roadway master plan proposes an extension of Wai‘ale Road from
Waiko Road south to Honoapi‘ilani Highway.

Kamehameha Avenue is a two-lane, County collector roadway within the adjacent Maui Lani
project that currently terminates just north of the Wai‘ale site.

Portions of the Wai’‘ale site are currently leased to companies for various uses. These
businesses generate traffic, including deliveries of goods and services and employees
commuting to/from work.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

A Traffic Impact Assessment Report (TIAR) is being prepared to assess the project’s impacton
traffic and identify measures required to mitigate the impacts. The TIAR will be included in
the Draft EIS.

4.7.2 Drainage Facilities

The property is generally flat along the eastern boundary along Kuihelani Highway, with a
gentle slope rising from the northeastern to the northwestern corner. At its lowest point (at
the northeastern corner), the property is approximately 150 feet above mean sea level (msl).
Higher elevations occur along the western edge of Waiko Road at approximately 310 above
msl. Slopes generally increase from the north to the south, and the topography of the
property at the southern tip is approximately 200 feet above msl. Waikapa Stream borders
the southern edge of the property. With a gentle overall terrain, the average slope is about 3
percent or less.
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According to the Flood Insurance Rate Map, most of the Wai‘ale site is designated Zone C,
which are areas of minimal flooding (See Figure 7). Waikapt Stream is situated south of the

project site. Areas along Waikap( Stream are designated Zone A, which are areas inundated
by one percent annual chance flooding.

On-site surface runoff currently sheet flows across the Wai‘ale site from the southwest to the
northeast. The existing 100-year runoff from the Wai‘ale site is estimated to be 1,592 cubic
feet per second (cfs). Runoff eventually sheet flows onto Kuihelani Highway, where the
highway’s drainage facilities intercept the runoff and divert it to designated outlets. There are
three major drainage crossings near the southeastern boundary of the site at Kuihelani
Highway. A 42-inch culvert near the intersection of Waiko Road and Kuihelani Highway,
intercepts runoff from a swale parallel to Kuihelani Highway.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

WaikapQ Stream is situated to the south of the Wai'ale Site. While the stream is not included

within the project, a park/open space greenway will be provided along the northern border of
Waikapi Stream, within the Wai‘ale site. The natural drainage characteristics of the stream
will not be altered.

The Draft EIS will include a preliminary drainage report covering the drainage characteristics

of the Wai‘ale site, potential impacts resulting from Wai‘ale, and proposed mitigation
measures.

4.7.3 Water Facilities

Water. service for the region is provided by the County Department of Water Supply.
Domestic water and fire flow for the Waikapa area is provided by the Mokuhau Wells in
Happy Valley, from the 300,000-gallon Waikapt Tank. A series of 8- and 12-inch waterlines
traverse Waiko Road providing service to existing users. An existing 12-inch main is also
situated within Kamehameha Avenue in Maui Lani.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

To address the potable water needs of the project, the applicant is pursuing several
alternatives. In cooperation with the County of Maui, the applicant is planning the
development of a new water treatment facility on lands adjacent to the Wai‘ale Reservoir, just
north of the project site. The Wai‘ale WTF (“WTF”) is planned as a joint effort with the

County of Maui to address a portion of the future potable water needs of both the County and
the applicant.

The development of new potable well sources in Central Maui is another potable water
alternative. The applicant has previously drilled two wells in the Kahului aquifer. These
wells are situated within the northeastern portion of the Wai‘ale site near Kuihelani Highway.
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Each of these wells has a sustainable capacity of approximately 0.648 MGD and
demonstrates the potential for potable well sources to serve Wai‘ale.

The Draft EIS will include a preliminary engineering report that will analyze the existing and
proposed water system for Wai‘ale based upon calculated water demands.

4.7.4 Wastewater Facilities
The County’s existing Wailuku-Kahului Wastewater Reclamation Facility serving the greater

Wailuku-Kahului region has a plant capacity of 7.9 mgd and currently treats an average of
approximately 5.5 mgd. The facility is located on Amala Place in Kahului. According to the

County Wastewater Reclamation Division, the facility’s total allocation (including projects

already permitted) is 6.9 mgd. Within Maui Lani, an existing 12-inch sewer line is situated
within Kamehameha Avenue, just north of the Wai‘ale site.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

The Draft EIS will include a preliminary engineering report that will estimate demand
generated by Wai‘ale and analyze wastewater collection and treatment requirements, as well
as alternatives to accommodate the needs of Wai‘ale.

4.7.5 Solid Waste

Single family residential solid waste collection service is provided by the County of Maui.
Residential solid waste collected by the County is disposed of at the County’s Central Maui
Landfill, located to the southeast of Kahului airport. The County of Department of
Environmental Management, Solid Waste Division operates the Central Maui Landfill. in
addition to County-collected refuse, the Central Maui Landfill also accepts commercial solid
waste from private collection companies. A new expansion to the Central Maui Landfill was
recently opened. Accordingly to the County’s Draft Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan
(February 2008), there is adequate capacity at the Central Maui Landfill with planned
improvements to 2026. A County green waste recycling facility is also located at the Central
Maui Landfill. ) ' '

Privately owned facilities, such as the Maui Demolition and Construction Landfill and
Pohakulepo Concrete Recycling Facility, accept solid waste and concrete from demolition
and construction activities. These facilities are located in Ma‘alaea.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Construction waste consisting of waste lumber, concrete, and other building materials will be
generated during the development of Wai‘ale. Whenever practical, solid wastes will be
minimized and recycled. As required by the County of Maui, a solid waste management plan
will be prepared to reduce solid waste disposal.
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Solid waste will also be generated by the proposed uses in Wai‘ale; however, recycling will
be encouraged. According to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, in 2006, individuals
recycled 1.5 pounds of our individual waste generation rate of 4.6 pounds per day, for a net
waste generation amount of 3.1 pounds per day. Assuming an average household size of
2.91 persons, and depending whether the project will ultimately yield 1,705 to 3,015 units,

the solid waste generated by the project is estimated to average approximately 15,381 to
27,198 pounds per day.

The planned single family residential units within Wai‘ale are anticipated to be served by the
County’s solid waste disposal facilities. Other project components, including commercial
and multi-family residential units will likely be served by private waste collection companies.

4.7.6 Electrical and Communication Systems

Electrical power, telephone, and CATV services to the region are provided by Maui Electric
Company, Hawaiian Telcom, and Oceanic Time Warner Cable of Hawaii, respectively.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

It is anticipated that electrical, telephone, and CATV service capacity will be available for
Wai‘ale, and the project will not have an adverse impact on the aforementioned service

providers. However, the respective providers will be consulted regarding potential impacts o
their facilities, as well as to identify mitigation measures.

4.8 PUBLIC SERVICES
4.8.1 Schools

The State Department of Education (DOE) operates two high schools, two intermediate
schools, and four elementary schools in the Wailuku-Kahului region, these include:

e Henry P. Baldwin High School;
Maui High Schoof;

Tao Intermediate School;

Maui Waena Intermediate School;
Kahului Elementary School;
Lihikai Elementary School;
Wailuku Elementary School; and
Pomaika’i Elementary School.
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Pomaika‘i Elementary School recently opened in 2007 and is situated just north of the
Wai'‘ale site along Kamehameha Avenue in Maui Lani. Maui Community College, a branch
of the University of Hawai‘i system, is the primary higher education institution serving the
island of Maui.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

To accommodate the educational needs of children living in Wai‘ale and the surrounding
neighborhoods, it is estimated that a middle school will be needed within the community
(See Figure 3).

4.8.2 Police Protection

The Maui County Police Department (MPD) Wailuku Patrol District provides police
protection services to the Wai‘ale site. There are approximately 115 uniformed patrol officers
and other personnel that serve this division.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Residents and visitors of Wai‘ale are likely to require police protective services at some time.

The potential impact of Wai‘ale on such services, and mitigation measures required, will be
discussed further in the Draft EIS.

4.8.3 Fire Protection

The Maui County Department of Fire Control (MFD) provides fire protective services to the
Wai‘ale site. The Kahului Fire Station is located on Dairy Road. In 2009, there were
approximately 48 fire fighters and other personnel in the Kahului District.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Residents and visitors of Wai‘ale are likely to require fire protective services at some time.

The potential impact of Wai‘ale on such services, and mitigation measures required, will be
discussed further in the Draft EIS.

4.8.4 Health Care Services
The Maui Memorial Hospital, located in Kahului, is the only major medical facility on the
island of Maui. Acute, general, and emergency care services are provided by the 194-bed

facility.

Non-emergency health care is provided by clinics and offices throughout Wailuku-Kahului,
such as Kaiser Permanente, which operates facilities in Wailuku and Maui Lani.
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Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Residents and visitors of Wai‘ale are likely to require health care services at some time. The

potential impact of Wai‘ale on such services, and mitigation measures required, will be
discussed further in the Draft EIS.

4.8.5 Recreational Facilities

Diverse recreational opportunities are available in the Wailuku-Kahului region. Numerous

recreational parks and facilities are located in close proximity to the Wai‘ale site. These
include:

Honoli’i Park;

Kahului Community Center & Pool;

Lihikai Park;

Mokuhau Park;

Pomaika’i Park;

* Wai‘ale Neighborhood Park;

»  War Memorial Complex & Keopuolani Regional Park; and
¢  Wells Community Complex.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Wai‘ale’s community conceptual master plan includes lands reserved for active regional and
neighborhood parks, greenways and open space. The provision of lands for park purposes
will be undertaken in consultation with the County Department of Parks and Recreation
(DPR) to ensure that park and playground assessment requirements are appropriately
addressed. The potential impact of Wai‘ale on such recreational facilities, and mitigation
measures required, will be discussed further in the Draft EIS.
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5.0 LAND USE CONFORMANCE

State of Hawai‘i and County of Maui land use plans and polices relevant to Wai‘ale, and
required permits and approvals are described below.

5.1  STATE OF HAWAF'I

5.1.1 Chapter 343, Hawaii Revised Statutes

Compliance with Chapter 343, HRS is required as described in Section 1.7.
5.1.2 State Land Use Law Chapter 205, Hawaii Revised Statutes

The State Land Use Law (Chapter 205, HRS), establishes the State Land Use Commission
(LUC) and gives this body the authority to designate all lands in the State into one of the four
districts: Urban, Rural, Agricultural, or Conservation.

The Wai‘ale site is within the State Agricultural District (See Figure 8). A State Land Use
District Boundary Amendment will be sought to reclassify the site from the Agricultural
District to the Urban district.

5.1.3 Hawaii State Plan, Chapter 226, Hawaii Revised Statutes

The Hawaii State Plan (Chapter 226, HRS), establishes a set of goals, objectives, and policies
that serve as long-range guidelines for the growth and development of the State. The Draft
EtS will include a discussion of how Wai‘ale complies with appropriate goals, objectives, and
poticies of the plan.

State Functional Plans. The Hawaii State Plan directs State agencies to prepare functional
plans for their respective program areas. There are 13 State Functional Plans, and those
applicable to the proposed Wai‘ale project will be discussed in the Draft EIS.

5.1.4 Coastal Zone Management Act, Chapter 205A, Hawaii Revised Statutes

The Coastal Zone Management (CZM) Program (Chapter 205A, HRS) was -established fo
provide public recreational opportunities, protect coastal resources and ecosystems, reduce
hazards, and manage development. Although Wai‘ale will not be located near the shoreline
nor within the Special Management Area (SMA), the Draft EIS will include a discussion of
how Wai‘ale complies with the objectives of the CZM Program.

31

f\‘-‘.

G_.,,,H,,. ,.,,ma N t'f:lv:ﬁ

ey

ey

gy

ey

o



WAVALE

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT PREPARATION NOTICE

5.2 COUNTY OF MAUI

County land use plans and ordinances that pertain to Wai‘ale include the Countywide Policy

Plan, Draft Maui Island Plan, the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan, and the Maui County
Code.

5.2.1 Countywide Policy Plan

The Countywide Policy Plan was adopted in March 2010 and is a comprehensive policy
document for the County of Mauito the year 2030. The plan replaces the General Plan of the
County of Maui 1990 Update and provides the policy framework for the development of the
forthcoming Maui Island Plan as well as for updating the nine detailed Community Plans.

While the final Maui Island Plan has not yet been adopted by the Maui County Council (See
Section 5.2.2); a major element of the Maui Island Plan will be the Directed Growth Strategy,
which will include Directed Growth Maps specifying “urban growth boundaries” for the
island of Maui. As of July 2010, all of the subject lands north of Waikapi Stream are within
the “urban growth boundary” of the Directed Growth Maps of put forth by: 1) the Planning

Department; and 2) the General Plan Advisory Committee; and 3) the Maui Planning
Commission.

The Countywide Policy Plan provides broad goals, objectives, .p0|lCIES and implementing
actions that portray the desired direction of the County’s future. The Draft EIS will discuss
how Wai‘ale complies with the Countywide Policy Plan.

5.2.2 Drait Maui Island Plan (December 2009)

The Draft Maui Island Plan is part of the County’s on-going effort to prepare a comprehensive
policy document for the County of Maui to the year 2030. The plan is intended to provide a
long-term comprehensive strategic planning document for the physical, economic,
environmental development and cultural identity of the County. The Draft Maui Island Plan
encompasses goals, policies, programs, and actions that are recommended based on an
assessment of current and future needs and available resources. The Draft EIS will discuss
how Wai‘ale complies with the Draft Maui Isfand Plan.

5.2.3 Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan

The Wailuku-Kahului Community Planis one of nine community plans developed to address
both the general policies of the General Plan and the unique aspects of each region. It was
last updated in 2002. The Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan Land Use Map designates the
Wai'ale site as Agriculture (See Figure 9), although the Maui Department of Planning, Long

Range Planning Division shows Wai‘ale as a proposed project on its Central Maui
Deveiopment Projects map.

32



R
el
1

T

Hi ¢
et
T

\
it
T

1)

)
1

‘1 20 £

L,.’ﬁ(o.«. ;
=‘l‘l=-%""9“\ N

it
7

L
pm———

g1

i

LEGEND Figure 8 :
[)pProject Area State Land Use Districts 3

Agricultural W A l f A L E

v .
//// Urban A&DR PROPERTIES, IMNC. KAHULLH, MaUI
Narih Lineal Scale tieet) g

Pt ¢ o oo 2000 4000
Source: Stale Land Use Gommission, 20408 {GIS) w !’BR,H;\ ll
Disclalmes: This grephks has bear: prepared for genecal planning purposes onfy. - B ASSOCIATIR, TG, -




l;aa_;a:r- Jgg!

Hd s

. % F iy F . el
Limit of Wailuku-Kahului Communily Plan

LEGEND Figure 9
[AG] Agricutture ‘Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan
Project Area W A I / A L E
S5 PROFERTIES, NG, 7 KAHULL, MAGH
Nonh lt;l'nt&il Scale-(lii’:;:; s oo
Sourcs: Gounty of Mat Wallulu-Katui ity Plan {1980}, Ordfirarce No. 3601 (WatiukueHabAul Gomimusly Pian 2008), m‘\

efiedtive June, b, 2002,
Diz This graph baer

PER HAWAH
only.

S RERHIATIS IR

i for ganers] pl



WAI‘ALE

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT PREPARATION NOTICE

A Community Plan Amendment will be sought to change the land use designation from
Agricultural to Project District. The Draft EIS will discuss how Wai‘ale complies with the
relevant objectives and policies of the current Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan.

5.2.4 County Zoning

Wai‘ale is within the County’s Agricultural (AG) zoning district. A Change in Zoning from
Agricultural to Project District will be sought from the County of Maui. According to Maui
County Code Section 19.45.010, project districts are intended to provide for a flexible and
creative planning approach, rather than specific land use designations, for quality
developments. Development of a project district is subject to three phases of approval
described as follows: :

e Phase 1: Preparation and adoption of a project district zoning ordinance by the
County Council.

e Phase 2: Preparation of a project district preliminary site plan and adoption of
this plan by the County Planning Commission.

e Phase 3: Preparation and submittal of the project district final site plan to the
planning director for final review and approval.

Maui County Code Section 19.30A.020 provides an agricultural district criteria and states that
agricultural lands that meet at least two of the criteria should be given the highest priority for
retention in the agricultural district. The agricultural district criteria are provided below.

A. Agricultural Lands of Importance to the State of Hawai‘i (ALISH);

B. Lands not classified by the ALISH system whose agricultural land suitability, based
on soil, topographic, and climatic conditions, supports the production of
agricultural commadities, including but not limited to coffee, taro, watercress,
ginger, orchard and flower crops and non-irrigated pineapple. In addition, these
lands shall include lands used for intensive animal husbandry, and lands in
agricultural cultivation in five of the ten years immediately preceding the date of
approval of this chapter; and

C. Lands which have seventy-five percent or more of their boundaries contiguous to
lands within the agriculftural district.

The Draft EIS will discuss why agricultural lands within the Wai‘ale site should be rezoned to
Project District. :

5.2.5 Special Management Area

The Wai‘ale site is not within the Special Management Area (SMA) defined by the County of
Maui (See Figure 10).

33

g ﬂ ; . oy

i

—

ml:._ =y

A

E'... -

3



WAI‘ALE

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT PREPARATION NOTICE

5.3 PERMITS AND APPROVALS

An approximate list of anticipated permits and approvals required for the Wai‘ale community
is presented below.

Table 1 — Anticipated Permits/Approvals

Chapter 343, HRS compliance State Land Use Commission
State Land Use District Boundary State Land Use Commission
Amendment

County of Maui Planning Depariment
Community Plan Amendment Maui Planning Commission

Maui County Council
Project District Phases I, 1I, and II! CO”’.‘“’lOf Maui Planning Department
Apbroval Maui Planning Commission

pp Maui County Council

Chapter 6E, HRS Compliance State Historic Preservation Division
National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) Permit State Department of Health
Grading/Building/Infrastructure/Site County of Maui Department of Public
Development Permits Works and Waste Management

34



l.l,' o\
I &
lllle,”I"

e
B

e
-

&3

3

T

[t
| S——

»
VLA

NOT IN SMA

i

i

Py
.

3

Honoapiilani Hwy

oy
E

i

L

LEGEND Figure 10
Erroject Area Special Management Area

Special Management Area (SMA) W A I / A I_ E

A&B PROPERTIES, INC. KAHULUL, mAUl
North Lineal Scale {feet) Ed

Vo N o 506 1,000 2000 4,000 .
Source: Gounly of Mmi PBRH_&. WA ] ]
Discleimer: This giaphic has been for goners! ing purp only. BASRORCEATIL NG, 5




6.0 ALTERNATIVES TO THE PrROPOSED ACTION




WAI‘ALE

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT PREPARATION NOTICE

6.0 ALTERNATIVES TO THE PROPOSED ACTION

In compliance with the provisions of Title 11, Department of Health (DOH), Chapter 200,
Environmental Impact Statement Rules, Section 11-200-10(6), the alternatives considered are
limited to those that would satisfy the objectives of the proposed mixed-use development,
while minimizing the potential for adverse environmental impacts. The feasible alternatives
must realistically address the project’s economic characteristics while also responding to the
surrounding land uses that will be impacted by the project. in conformance with applicable
regulations, other possible alternatives have been investigated to identify alternative sites, the
appropriate uses for the property, and how they would best be accomplished.

6.1 “NO-ACTION” ALTERNATIVE

Under this alternative, the site would remain as fallow agricultural land, underutilized in
terms of meeting the County’s need for a regional park and the demand for residential homes
(including affordable homes) and accompanying land uses. The potential benefit of this
alternative is that the site would provide open space. mplementation of this alternative will
avoid: infrastructure impacts (solid waste, wastewater and additional stormwater runoff

generated on site); visual impacts (appearance of the site changing from agricultural fieldsto a
* master-planned village development); traffic impacts; and construction-related impacts (such
as construction noise, construction equipment exhaust emissions, temporary traffic disruption,
fugitive dust and soil erosion).

If the site were to return to agricultural use, cultivation, harvesting and plowing of the site will
expose soils to the erosional forces of wind and rainfall. The demand for housing could result
in the following scenarios or combinations thereof: there would be more pressure to develop
in the other districts, including the rural areas and other areas currently used for cultivation;
there could be a demand for higher density housing in undeveloped areas of Kihei at a
density not experienced to date; there would be more “doubling up” (larger number of
persons per household, with more than one family under roof); those that are not willing to
put up with the previously described scenarios may decide to relocate to the U.S. mainland
where housing prices have dropped.

The “no-action” alternative was rejected because it is not consistent with the objectives of the
proposed Wai’ale community.

6.2 ADDITIONAL ALTERNATIVES

A&B Properties, Inc. considered other site development and infrastructure alternatives prior to
arriving at the current conceptual community master plan. The alternatives considered
included the following:
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» Alternative sites on the island of Maui;
s Alternatives related to different designs/details of the proposed actions which
would present different environmental impacts;

» Actions of a significantly different nature which would provide similar benefits
with different environmental impacts; and/or

» The alternative of postponing action pending further study.

The Draft EIS will contain a discussion of the alternatives considered during the planning of.
the Wai‘ale community.
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7.0 FINDINGS AND DETERMINATION

Several technical studies are being conducted to provide a detailed assessment of the existing

natural and socio-economic environment and how it may be impacted by Wai‘ale. Based on

a preliminary assessment of impacts and the significance criteria established by Section 11-
200-12, HAR, Wai‘ale:

1)
2)

3)

4)

10)

11)

12)

13)

May involve an irrevocable commitment to natural or cultural resources;
Will increase the range of beneficial uses of the environment;

Will not conflict with the State and County’s long-term environmental policies,
goals and guidelines;

Will substantially and positively affect the economic or social welfare, and
cultural practices of the community or State;

Will not substantially affect public health;

May involve substantial secondary impacts such as population changes or effects
on public facilities;

Will not involve a substantial degradation of environmental quality;

May cumulatively have a positive effect upon the environment from a land use
point of view;

Will not substantially affect a rare, threatened, or endangered species or its
habitat;

Will not detrimentally affect air or water quality or ambient noise levels;

Will not affect environmentally-sensitive areas such as a flood plain, tsunami

zone, erosion prone areas and geologically hazardous land, estuary, fresh water,
or coastal waters;

Will not substantially affect scenic vistas and view planes identified in County or
State plans or studies; and

Will require additional energy consumption.
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8.0
8.1

CONSULTATION

AGENICIES AND COMMUNITY GROUPS CONSULTED

This project has undergone an extensive community ptanning process, including consultation
with community leaders, the County of Maui administration, and Maui residents. Over 100
people provided input at community meetings held in August 2005. The following agencies

and community groups were represented at the community meetings.

Since 2005,

consultation concerning the project has been ongoing with governmental agencies and
community interests.

Ah Fook’s Super Market

Bank of Hawaii

CB Richard Ellis

Central Pacific Bank

Century 21

Clinical Laboratories of Hawaii
County of Maui Council

County of Maui Department of
Housing and Human Concerns
County of Maui Department of Public
Works & Environmental Management
County of Maui Fire Department
County of Maui Planning Commission
County of Maui Planning Department
County of Maui Police Department
Division 15 Mechanical

First Horizon Home Loans

Hale Mahaolu

Hale Makua

Hawaiian Commercial & Sugar
Company

International Longshore and
Warehouse Union

Kahului Union Church

Kapalua Land Company

Keller Williams Realty

Kula Community Association

Lantern Comp. Consulting

Lokahi Pacific

M&E Pacific, Inc.

Maalaea Properties, LLC

Maui Economic Development Board
Maui Economic Opportunity
Maui Electric Company, Ltd.
Maui Migh School

Maui Hotel Association

Maui Lani Development

Maui Memorial Medical Center
Maui Tomorrow

Morgan Stanley

Paia Learning Center

Pukalani Dental Corporation
Rogers Rentals

Ronald Fukumoto Engineering

St. Theresa Church

State Department of Education
State Department of Taxation
State Department of Transportation
State Office of Hawaiian Affairs
Sunshine Helicopters

The Maui News

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Valley Isle Marine Center
Waikapu Community Association
WEB Insurance
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8.2 AGENCIES, COMMUNITY GROUPS, AND INDIVIDUALS TO BE

CONSULTED

This EISPN will be distributed to the following agencies and individuals.

State of Hawai‘i

-

L]
*
L

Department of Agriculture

Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism

Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism — Office of Planning
Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism — Strategic Industries
Division

Depariment of Education

Department of Health — Environmental Planning Office

Department of Health — Office of Environmental Quality Control

Department of Land and Natural Resources

Department of Land and Natural Resources — Historic Preservation Division
Department of Transportation

Office of Hawaiian Affairs

Representative Gilbert Keith-Agaran (9" Representative District)

Representative Joe Bertram |l} (1 1th Representative District)

Representative Joseph Souki (8" Representative District)

Senator Shan Tsutsui (4" Senatorial District)

University of Hawai’i — Environmental Center

Kahului Public Library

Wailuku Public Library

County of Maui

Department of Fire and Public Safety
Department of Housing and Human Concerns
Department of Parks and Recreation
Depariment of Planning

Department of Public Works and Environmental Management — Development Services
Administration

Department of Water Supply

Office of the Mayor

Office of Economic Development

Police Department

County Council Chair G. Danny Mateo
County Council Vice Chair Michael Malina
County Councilmember Gladys Coelho Baisa
County Councilmember Jo Anne Johnson
County Councilmember Sol Kaho’ohalahala
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« County Councilmember Bill Kauakea Medeiros
County Councilmember Wayne Nishiki

= County Councilmember Joseph Pontanilla

e County Councilmember Michael Victorino

Federal
s U.S. Department of the Army - Corps of Engineers
s U.S. Department of the Interior — Fish and Wildlife Services

Private
» Maui Electric Company
» Maui Tomorrow
*» The Maui News

Community Organizations/Individuals
e Maui Lani Developmerit
*  Waikapu Community Association
¢ Maui/lLanai Islands Burial Council
» Maui Electric Company
e Hawaiian Telcom
e Oceanic Time Warner Cable of Hawaii
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BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF HAWAI'L

In the Matter of the Petition of DOCKET NO. A10-789

)
)
A&B PROPERTIES, INC. ) A&B PROPERTIES, INC.
_ )

To Amend the Agricultural Land )
Use District Boundary into the )
Urban District for approximately )
545.229 acres at Wailuku and )
Waikapu, County of Maui, State of )
Hawai'i, TMK: 3-8-05: portion of )
23 and 37, 3-8-07: 71, portion of )
101 and 104 )
)

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OF PETITION
FOR LAND USE DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT

BENJAMIN M. MATSUBARA, #993-0
CURTIS T. TABATA, #5607-0
Matsubara — Kotake
888 Mililani Street, 8t Floor

- Honolulu, Hawai'i 96813

Attorneys for Petitioner
A&B PROPERTIES, INC,



BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF HAWATT

In the Matter of the Petition of DOCKET NO. A10-789

)
)
A&B PROPERTIES, INC. ) A&B PROPERTIES, INC.
)
To Amend the Agricultural Land )
Use District Boundary into the )
Urban District for approximately b
545.229 acres at Wailuku and }
Waikapu, County of Maui, State of )
Hawai'i, TMK: 3-8-05: portion of )
23 and 37, 3-8-07: 71, portion of )
101 and 104 )
)

_ AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OF PETITION
FOR LLAND USE DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT

STATE OF HAWAIL )
) 8S.:
CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU )

Benjamin M. Matsubara, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says:

A.  Affiantis the attorney for Petitioner A&B Properties, Inc. and agent of the
Petitioner for a State of Hawaii Land Use District Boundary Amendment from
Agricultural Land Use District to Urban District, identified as Docket No. A10-789, for
land situated at Wailuku and Waikapu, County of Maui, Hawai'i and identified as Tax
Map Key Nos. (2) 3-8-05: portion of 023 and 037 (2) 3-8-07: 071, portion of 101 and 104.

B. In compliance with §15-15-48(a) of the Hawai'i Administrative Rules

("HAR"), Affiant did on August 25, 2010, deposit in the United States Mail, postage



prepaid, by certified mail, a copy of the Petition for District Boundary Amendment, to
the following:

Mr. Abbey 5. Mayer, Director
Office of Planning, State of Hawai'i
P.O Box 2359

Honolulu, Hawai'i 96804

Bryan C. Yee, Esq.

Deputy Attorney General
Department of the Attorney General
425 Queen Street

Honolulu, Hawai'i 96813

Ms. Kathleen Ross Aoki, Director
Maui County Planning Department
County of Maui, State of Hawai'i
250 South High Street

Wailuku, Maui, Hawai'i 96793

Mr. Jonathan Starr, Chairperson
Maui County Planning Commission
County of Maui, State of Hawai'i
250 South High Street

Wailuku, Maui, Hawai'i 96793

Brian Moto, Esq., Corporation Counsel
. Department of the Corporation Counsel
County of Maui, State of Hawai'i
200 South High Street
Wailuku, Maui, Hawai'i 96793

Mr. Greg Schenk
290 Halenani Drive
Wailuku, Maui, Hawai'i 96793



C. This Affidavit is provided in compliance with §15-15-50{c}(5), (C), HAR.

That further Affiant sayeth naught.

Lol

BEN] MI M. MATSUBARA

Attorney for Petitioner
A&B PROPERTIES, INC.
Subscribed and sworn to me o _\x}\\\“ ”HH/, 2
this #4% day of _Auéusr 2010 S My "" "
742:- 27\;/ 7?% ) < -loéf“"i AR *r
SRR 4
Name: sparon M. NAGAI A gn-r-f%.;‘"
Notary Public, State of Hawai'i D, B
My Commission expires: _¢ ofe 32203 ':’//,f? £ oY ‘*5"\\;{*‘\

T, mn\“

| NOTARY CERTIFICATE (Hawai'i Administrative Rules §5-11-8)

Document Identification or Description: Affidavit Of Service Of Petition For Land Use District
Boundary Amendment

Doc. Date:  ZecGus? 24 Jars No. of Pages: 5%
Jurisdiction: #5+4 -Circuit o s\\“-;‘” ! {Hf;,,//
(in which notarial act is performed) §%{} ............ (;z
: S S o
SF athiy T E
:w,’:sgj\_"__' Al g =
%/ ;}‘7/ 77 2¢ > 2 ay U GTE
2 d, oy % ot p S I
% Ao Gt 57 . - ‘e = @1‘_5"’&:;:4‘%5* & g\r— =
Sﬁgnature of Nota;ry Date of Certificate '*’S{J )%’h E{;’ﬁ &
.{,«}. !E C": e {Q‘
% RS
SHAROM M.F. NAGA! 7Tt
Printed Name of Notary (Official Stamp or Seal)




BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION
QOF THE STATE OF HAWAT'I

In the Matter of fhe Petition of DOCKET NO. A10-789

)
)
A&B PROPERTIES, INC. ) A&B PROPERTIES, INC.
)
To Amend the Agricultural Land )
Use District Boundary into the )
Urban District for approximately )
545.229 acres at Wailuku and )
Waikapu, County of Maud, State of )
Hawai'i, TMK: 3-8-05: portion of )
23 and 37, 3-8-07: 71, portion of )
101 and 104 )
)

AFFIDAVIT OF SENDING-OF NOTIFICATION OF PETTTION FILING

EXHIBITS “17 AND “2”

BENJAMIN M. MATSUBARA, #993-0
CURTIS T. TABATA, #5607-0
Matsubara - Kotake

888 Mililani Street, 8% Floor
Honolulu, Hawai'i 96813

Attorneys for Petitioner
A&B PROPERTIES, INC.



BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF HAWAI']

In the Matter of the Petition of DOCKET NQ. A10-789

)
)
A&B PROPERTIES, INC. ) A&B PROPERTIES, INC.
- )

To Amend the Agricultural Land )
Use District Boundary into the )
Urban District for approximately )
545.229 acres at Wailuku and )
Waikapu, County of Maui, State of )
Hawai'i, TMK: 3-8-05: portion of )
23 and 37, 3-8-07: 71, portion of )
101 and 104 )
)

AFFIDAVIT OF SENDING OF NOTIFICATION OF PETTTION FILING

STATE OF HAWAT'T ' )
) s8.:
CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU )

Benjamin M. Matsubara, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says:

A.  Affiantis the attorney for ‘Petit’ionerr A&B PROPERTIES, INC. and agent of
the Petitioner for a State of Hawaii Land Use District Boundary Amendment from the
Agricultural Land Use District to the Urban Land Use District, identified as Docket No.
A10-789, for land situated at Wailuku and Waikapu, County of Maui, Hawai'i and
identified as Tax Map Key Nos. (2) 3-8-05: portion of 023 and 037 (2) 3-8-07: 71, portion

of 101 and 104.



B. In compliance with §15-15-50(d) of the Hawail Administrative Rules

(“HAR”), Affiant did on August 25, 2010, deposit in the United States Mail, postage
prepaid, by regular mail, a copy of the Notification of Petition Filing, attached hereto as
Exhibit “1”, to the persons identified in the required mailing list, attached hereto as
Exhibit “2.”

C. This Affidavitis provided in compliance with §15-15-50(d), HAR.

That further Affiant sayeth naught.

4t

‘BENJARMIN M. MATSUBARA

Subscribed and sworn to me
this )ﬁ_—_ﬁ day of A2« &us7 2010 m\ml.mwxg

Hhror, drf P e

- ¥ 7
Name: g0 t.F. NAGAI
Notary Public, State of Hawai'i

My Commission expires: 842/ -2¢/3

!f};f}'

ity

\\\\ '

e?“. L
/ /£ ’xJ“ ‘T',’ Yat
Dty

NOTARY CERTIFICATE (Hawaii Administrative Rules §5-11-8)

Document Identification or Description: Affidavit of Sending of Notification of Petition Filing;
Exhibits “1” and “2”

Doc. Date: _ Fe&#S7 D4 Jare No. of Pages: 59
Jurisdiction: f7r¢# Circuit \\\\“!‘”“ iy,
(in which notarial act is performed) & o BLF, 4/ ”//
3 SO -1:?@_ %’;
S A ))‘74 ?7% Bieusr 24 30/0 - f" =
Slgnature of Notary Date of Certificate : N‘f\»"
% pos f’: AP
(H‘ ¥ \\“‘
SHARON M.F. NAGA} Kt
Printed Name of Notary (Official Stamp or Seal)
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“JH Director of Capital Improvements
1951 East West Road
~onolulu, -Hawaii 96822

Earth Justice Legal Defense Fund
Austin Building, Suite 400

123 South King Strest

Jonolulu HI 86813

Associated Press
500 Ala Moana Boulevard, Suite 7-580
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

viichael.J. Belles, Esq.

3elles Graham Proudfoot & Wilson
-4334°Rice Street, Suite 202

Lihue Hl 96768

VIr. James Garrigan
2 O'Box3143
-Kailua-Kona, Hawaii . 86745

Patrick Borge, Sr.
536-Haawina Street
Paia, Hawaii 95779-9609

“Building Trades Council

Gentry Pacific Design Ctr. Ste. 215A
560°N. Nimitz Hwy. #50

Jonolulu  Hi 86817

wir. Charles Trembath
4152 Palaumahu
‘ihue HI 96766

Vis. Meredith J. Ching
Alexander & Baldwin, Inc.
P. O.'Box 3440

Honoluiu  HI 96801

Zity Desk Clerk-Public Hearings
Honolulu Star Bulletin

5300 Ala Moana Boulevard, Unit'210
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813-4914

Anthany.J.H. Ching
State of Hawaii

Hawaii Community Development -Authority

677 Ala Moana Boulevard, Suite 1001
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Mr.-Perry Artates

‘Hawaii Operating Engineers

a5 Lono Avenue, Suite 104

‘Kahulul H! 267321810

Rose Marie H. Duey

Alu Like, Inc.,’Maui Island Center
1977 -Kaohu Streei

Waituku -Hi 96733

Gene Zarro
22 Ulunuij Place
Pukalani, Hi 96768

‘Mr. Kenneth Okamura

641 Polipoli Road
Kula, Hawaii 96790

P. Roy Catalani

Young Brothers, Lid,
Pier 40— P. O. Box 3288
Honolulu, Hl 98801

Roy A, Vitousek 1ll

Cades Schuffe LLP

75-170 Hualatai-Road, Suite B-303
Kaulua-Kona Hl 96740

‘Surety Kohala Corporation

P. 0. Box 249
Hawi HI 967198

Council Services Administration
Kauai Couniy Councit

3371-A Wiicox Road

Lihue, Hl 96766

Ms. Eleanor Mirikitani

cfo Waikoloa Land Co.
150 Waikoloa Beach Drive
Waikoloa HI 96738

EXHIBIT "2"

STATEWIDE MAILING LIST
Last Updated: 07/12/2010

Ashford & Wriston Library

P. 0. Box131

Honoluiu  Hi 96810

Mr. [kufo Taketa

cfo Hawali irrigation & Supply
803 Mapunapuna Straet
Honolulu -HI '96818

Gary L. Blaich, M.D.
P. O.'‘Box 1434
Kilauea HI 96754

James S. Greenwell

Lanihau Partners L:P.

3465 Walalae Avenue, Suite 260
Honelulu H! 86816

Buiiding Industry Assaciation of Hawaii
P.Q. Box 570867
Waipahu, HI 86797

Ms. Phyllis Cayan
99-060 Kauhale St, Apt. 607
Alea HI 28701

Mr. Bruce Tsuchida
Townscape

800 Fort Street Mall, #1160
Honoluiu -Hi 28813

Ms. K. Chun
P. 0. Box 3705
Hanoluiu  Hi 96811

Mr. David Penn
P. . Box 62072
Honolulu HI 96838



Castle & Cooke Hawaii
100 Kahelu Avenue, 2™ Floor
Mililani, Hawaii 96789

‘Karen Piltz

Chun Kerr Dodd Beaman.& Wong
745 Fort Street, 8% Floor
Honolulu, HI 96813

Representative Cindy Evans
7" District o
State Capitcl, Room 311
Honolulu, Hawaii ‘96813

Mr. Abart K. Fukushima
1841 Palamoi Street
Pearl City HI 96782

Lynn Kaho'chalahala
124 A Fleming Road
‘Lahaina, Hl 96761

Ms. Esther Ueda
88-1784-B Kaahumanu Street
Pearl Ciiy HI 96782

Hawaii's Thousand Friends
25 Malunui Ave., Suite 102, PMB.282
Kailua Hl 96734

Mr. Norman Hayashi
563 West Kawailani Street
Hilo HI 96720

I).5. Pacific Command

Commander in Chief

Box 64028

Camp H.M. Smith, Hawail 96861-4028

ivirs. Dora Horikawa .
‘899-645-Kaulainahee Place
Ajea HI 96701-3542

‘Mr. Lunakanawai Hauanio

P. O. Box 871
Capt. Cook HI 96704

Mr. David Rae

The Estate of James Campbell
1001 Kamokila Boulevard
Kapolei Hl 96707

1.8, Fish and Wildlife Service

300 Ala Moana Blvd., Rm. 3-122
Honolulu H! 96813

Mr.lan Costa, Director
Planning Depariment - Kauai
4444 Rice Street, Suite 473
Lthue HI 96766

Isaac Hall, Esq,

2087 Wells Street

Wailuku  HI 88783

Real Property Division
County of Kauai

4444 Rice Street
Lihue HI 98766

Jacqui-Hoover, President

Hawaii Leeward Planning Conference
P.O. Box.2159
Kamuela Hi 96743

Mrs. Jan Higa & Company
3171 Waialae Avenue
Honolulu HI 96818

Commander

Navy Region Hawaii

850 Ticonderoga Street, Suite 110
Pearl Harbor HI 96860-5101

Ms. Sara Colling

DLNR - Historical Preservation Division
501 Kamokila Bivd., Room 5856
Kapolei HI 96707

Alan Kaufman, DVM
P O Box 297
Kula, HI 967980

United States Marine Corps
Commander, Marine Forces Pacific
Attn: G4, Box 64118

Camp H.M. Smith, Hawaii 96861-4118

Department of the Army

Directoraie of Public Works

Attn: Planning Division

Schofield Barracks -Hawaii -96857-5013

J.Gillmar
P. O. Box 2802
Honolulu HI 96802

The Hallstrom Group, inc.
Suite 1350

1003 Bishop Street
Honolulu HIL 96813

Mr. Randy Hara
C&C Department of Planning & Permitting
650 South King Street
‘Honolulu H! 86813

Mir. Gordon Pang
Honolulu Advertiser
605 Kapiolani Boulevard
Honclulu, Hf 96813

Department of the Navy

Commander in Chief, U.S. Pacific Flest
Commander in Chiaf

250 Makatapa Drive

Peari Harbor, HI 96860-3131

Lawrence ing, Esq.

Ing, Horikawa & Jorgensen
2145 Welis Street, Suite 204
Wailuku, Hawaii 96793-2222

Walter Mensching

RS5S Lid.

1658 Lihcliho Street, Suite 306
Honolulu, Hawaii 26822



Mr. Alexander C. Kinzier
1100 Alakea Street Ste. 2900
Honoluiu, H! 96813-2833

Isaac Fiesta

ILWU Logal 142 - Hawaii Division
100 W. Lanikaula Street

Hilo, HI 96720

Dwight Kauahikaua
-Kawaiahao Plaza, Suite 108
567 South King Strest
Honolulu -HI 96813

ILynn Peters
P.O. Box 11960
Honolulu, HI 96828-0960

West Hawaii Today

Atin: Reed Flickinger

'P. Q. Box 788

Kailua-Kona ‘Hi 96745-0789

Mr. Kenneth Kupchak

Damon Key Bocken Leong & Kupchak

1003 Bishop Street, #1600
‘Honolulu HI 96813

Dain P. Kane

Maui County Council
‘200 South High Strest
Wailuku HI 96793

Dickson C, H. Lee, Esq.
Takushi Weng Lee & Yee

841 Bishop Sireet, Suite 1540
‘Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Steven S.C. Lim, Esq.
Carlsmith Ball

121 Waianuenue Avenue
Hilo HI 96720

Benjamin M. Matsubara, Esq.
C.R. Kendall Building, 8th Floor
‘888 Militani Street

Honolulu HI 96813

Roy A. Vitousek, 11l
Cades Schutte
75-170 Hualalai Rd., Sts 303

-Kailua-Kona, Hi 96740

Libbie Kamisugi
2500 Ahza Aina Place
Honolulu  H 96821

PBR Hawail

1719 Haleloki Street
Hilo, HI 98720

Cheryl zuka, Senlor Title Officer
Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc.

235 Queen Street
:Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Mr. Chester Koga
‘R.M. Towill Corporation

2024 North King Street, Suite 200

Honoluiu, Hawaii 96818

Burt Lau, Esq.
999 Bishop St., Ste. 2600
‘Honolulu HI 98813

Pat Les & Associates, Inc.

| .A5-24BA Pahikaua Place

Kaneohe HI 96744

Michael Y. M. Loo
Princevilie Corporation

P, O. Box 223040
Princeville HI 96722-3040

Crockett & Nakamura
38 8. Market Strest
Wailuku, Hawaii 96793

Sue White
1118 Maunawili Road
Kailua HI 95734

Jill K. Veles, Legal Assistant
Oshima, Chun, Fong & Chung
841 Bishop Street,-#400
Honglulu Hi 86813

Collette M.Sakoda
Environmental Planning Solutions LLC
945 Makaiwa Strest

Honelulu, HI 96816

Verizon Hawaii, Inc.

Attn: Real Property Section
PO Box 2200

Honolulu, HI 96841

Aftn.: Ms. Wanda Wehr

-KITV News 4

801 S. King Street
Honolulu HI 96813

Benjamin A.-Kudo, Esq.
Imanaka Kudo & Fujimoto
745 Fort Street, 17" Floor
Hoenolulu HI 96813

Land Use Research Foundation of Hawaii
700 Bishop Street, Suite 1928
Honolulu Hi 96813

League of Women Voters
-49 South Hotel Street, Rm. 314
Honolulu Hi 26813

Life of the Land
76 North King Street, Suite 203
Honolulu Hi 96817

Me. Greg Apa, President
Leeward Land LLC

P, O. Box 2862
Waianae, Hawaii 96792

Metro Calendar
605 Kapiolani Blvd,
Honolulu HI 96802



William W.L. Yuen, Esqg.
1001 Bishop Street, Suite 2700
Honolulu HI 96813-7984

Pat Tummons
72 Kapiolani Street
Hilo, Hawali, 96720

Frances Mossman
P. O. Box 31069
Honoluiu HI ©6820-1069

IMs. Heide Meeker

Dept. of Education/Facilities & Support Sves
Kalani High School

4680 Kalanianaole Hwy #TB1A

Honolulu, Hawaii 26821

Natural Resources Conservation Svo.
300 Ala Moana Blvd., Room 4-118
Honolulun Hi 26850

Mr. John M. White
‘Hawaii Land Company
P. O. Box 10

‘Honolulu HE 96810

Mr.Kent Matsuo

James Campbell Co., LLC

1001 Kamokilz Boulevard, Ste 200
Kapolei HI 96707

'Ms. Rhoda Libre
P. O. Box.248
Kaumakani Hi 96747

Mr. Jeff Hunt, Dirsctor

Planning Department - County of Maui
250 South High Sireet

Wailuku HI 96793

Real Property Tax Division

Department of Finance - County of Hawaii
101 Pauahi Street, Suite No. 4

Hilo HI 96720

Aftn; Bonnie Stifel

McCorriston Miller Mukai MacKinnon
P. O. Box 2800

Honolulu HI 96803-2800

Jasse K. Souki, Esqg.

Department of the Corporation Counsel

City and County of Honolulu
530 §. King Street, Rm.-110
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Franklin Mukai, Est.

McCorriston Miller Mukai MacKinnon
P. O. Box 2800

Honolulu -Hi 96803-2800

Native Hawaiian Legal Corporation
1164 Bishop Strest, #1205
Honolulu HI 96813

Wilson Okamoto & Associates
Attn: Earl Matsukawa

1907 S. Berstania Straet
Honolulu, H! 96826

Ms. Donna Ann Kamehaiku Cno
He e'ia Historical Society
46-522 Haiku Plantations Drive
Kaneohe HI 96744

Mr. Kyle Chock, Executive Director
Pacific Resource Parinership

1001 Bishop Street, Suite 1501
Honolulu Hl 96813

PBR Hawaii

‘Pacific Tower, Suite 650

1001 Bishop Street
Honolulu HI 96813

Mr. Mark Murakami

Damen Key Leong Kupchak Hastert

1003 Bishop Street, #1600
Honolulu, HI 96813

Mr, Richard Poirier
95-584 Naholoholo
Mililani HI 96789

Bobby Jean Leithed-Todd Director
County of Hawalii, Planning Department
101 Pauahi Street, Suite 3

Hilo, Hawaii 96720

Real Property Tax Division, Dept of Finance
County of Hawaii

101 Aupuni Street, Suite 4

Hilo, HI 867204224

National Resources Conservation Sve.
Attn: Chris Smith
P. O. Box 50004

Honoluiu HI 96850

Nathan Natori, Esq.
1003 Bishop Street

Suite##1360

Honoluiu HI 96813

Julian Ng, Inc.
P. O. Box B16
Kaneohe HI 96744-0816

Peter Yukimura
P. 0. Box 1031
Lihue, Hl 96766

DOT Highways / Oahu District Office

‘Engineer Program Manager
727 Kakoi Street

Honolulu, HI 98819

The Pele Defense Fund
P. 0. Box 404 .
Volcano HI 96785

Julie Ann Miyashiro

‘3247 Catherine St.

Honolulu, HI 96815

Prosser Realty, Inc.

4379 Rice Street

Lihue HI 96766



Sierra Club, Kauai Group
P. Q. Box 3412
Lihue HI 96766

Mr. Abbey Seth Mayer, Director
Office of Planning

P. 0. Box 2359

Honolulu Hl 96804-2359

Maurice Morita
Hawaii LECET -
1617 Palama Straet
Honolulu, Hl. 96817

Weéley R. Segawa & Associates
736 South St. #206
Honolulu, HI 96813

‘Steven Lee Montgomery, Ph.D.
'94-610 Palai Street
‘Waipahu, Hawall 96797-4535

Brenda Luana Machado Lee
P. 0. Box 133
Captain Cook, Kona, Hawaii 26704

Irene Anzai

Rush Moore LLP

‘737 Bishop Street, Suite.2400
Honolulu, HI 86813

IDOT Highways / Hawait District Office
Engineer Program Manager

50 Makaala Street

Hilo, HI 96720

Depariment of Transportation
Highways Division

Kaual District Office

1720 Haleukana Street
Lihue, Hawaii 96766

Chairman - Planning Commissicn
County of Kauai

4444 Rice Street, Suite 473
Lihue HI 926766

Mr. Dan Yasui

A & B Properties, inc.

P. Q. Box 3440

Honolulu HI 96801-3440

Ms. Brenda Salgado

KGMB

420 Waiakamilo-Road, Suite 205
Honolulu, Bl 97817

‘Mr. Robert J. Smolenski

841 .Bishop Street, Ste. 1717
Honolulu HI 96813-3970

M. Bruce A. Coppa
Communications Pacific

600 Queen St., Unit 2808

Honolulu, HI 96813

Frank Carios
398 Puiwa Road
Honolulu,-Hl 95817

Laura Kodama

Castle and Cooke

100 Kahelu Avenue, 2nd Floor
Niilitani, H1 96789

Stanford S. Carr, President
Stanford Carr Development LLC
1100 Alakea Street, 27th Floor
Honolulu, H! 28813

Kyong-Su im

Paul Johnson Park & Niles
ASB Tower, Suite 1300
1001 Bishop Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Michael Levine
2754 Kuilei Street, Apt 606
Honolulu, 96826

Christopher J. Bennett, Esq.
Watanabe Ing LLP

989 Bishop Street, 23rd Floor
Henoluly, H1 96813

Ms. Holly Hackstt
P.O. Box 755

‘Honoluiu, Hawati 96808

Sierra Club, Hawai'i Chapter

‘P. O. Box 2577

Honolulu Hi 96803

Mr. Steven Strauss

P. 0. Box 11817

Hilo HI 96720

Claudia Rohr
369 Nene St
Hilo, HI 96720

Randall Sakumoto, Esq.

MeCorriston Miller Mukai MacKinnen LLP
P. 0. Box 2800

Honolulu, Hawaii 96803-2800

C. Mike Kido

Exiernal Affairs

“The Pacific Resource Parinership
1001 Bishop Street, ASE Tower #1501

‘Honolulu, HE'B6813 .

Bill Mills, Chairman

The Milis Group

1100 Alakea Strest, Suite. 2200
Hotoluiu, HI- 96813

DOT Highways / Maui District Cffice
Engineer Program Manager

650 Palapala Drive

Kahului, Hl 96732

Curtis T, Tabata

Matsubara - Kotake

A Law Corporation

888 Mililani Street, Eighth Floar
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

DOT — Airports Administrator
inter-island Terminal, Suite 700
Honolulu International Airport
400 Rodgers Blvd.

Honolulu, HI 96819



Mr. Abe Mitsuda

Office of Planning

P. 0. Box 2359

Honolulu  H| 96804-2359

Department of Transportation
Harbors Division

79 South Nimitz Highway
Henolulu  HE 86813

Mr. Ronald F. Tsuzuki

Highways Division, Planning Branch
869 Punchbowl Street

Honolulu, H1 96813

HIARNG Environmental Office
3849 Diamond Head Road
Honoluiu, HI 96816-4495

Department of Land and Natural Resources
Land Division, Coastal Lands Program

P O Box 621

Honoluly, Hi 96809-0621

Chairman of the Board
Dept of Agriculture -
1428 South King Street
Honolulu HE 96814

Michael D. Formby, Deputy Director
DOT Harbors Division

79 S. Nimitz Highway

Honolulu, Hl 96813-4898

Commission on Water Resource Management
Dept. of Land & Natural Resources
1151 Punchbowi Street, Room 227
Honolulu HI 96813 .

Deputy Director

Department of Land and Natural Resources
P.0. Box 621

Honolulu, Hawaii 96809

Jennifer Benck

Carlsmith Ball LLP

1001 Bishop St., Ste 2200
Honoluiu, Hawaii 86813

Mary Lou Kobayashi
Office of Planning

P. O. Box 2358

Honolulu HI 96804-2359

Director - OEQC
235 South Beretania St.,, Rm. 702
HMonolulu HI 96813

Deputy Director
Department of Transpartation
869 Punchbowl! Streat

Honolulu  Ht 96813

Scot Urada

DOT Design Branch, Highways Division
601 Kamokila Blvd., Room &688-A
Kapolel HI 96707

Executive Director

HHFDC

677 Queen Street, Suite 300
Honolulu HI 968813

HHFDC

Planning & Evaluation Office
677 Queen Street, Suite 300
Honoiulu HI 96813

Major General Edward.L. Correa, Jr.
Department of Defense

3949 Diamond Head Road
Honolulu HI 88816

Land Management Division

Pept. of Land & Natural Resources
1151 Punchbowl Sfreet, Room 131
Honolulu, H 96813

Dept. of Hawaiian Home Lands
P. Q. Box 1879
Honolulu HI 96805

Iris Nakagawa

Carlsmith Ball LLP

1001 Bishop St., Ste 2200
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Lance Tauoa

DORH-Environmental Planning, Rm. 312
919 Ala Moana Boulevard

Honolulu HI 96814

Mr. Theodore Liu, Director
DBEDT

P. 0. Box 2359

Honeolulu HI 86804-2359

Bryan Yee, Deputy Atiorney General .
Commerce & Economic Davelopment Div
Depariment of Attorney General

425 Queen Street

Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Glenn Soma

DOT Transportation Planning Office
889 Punchbowl Street

Honolulu, HI 96813

Mr. Gordon Matsuoka

DAGS - Public Works Division
P. 0. Box 119

Honolulu HE 96810

Dwight Vicente

2608 Ainaloa Dr.

Hilo, HI 96720

Diane E. Erickson, Esq,
Deputy Aftorney General
425 Queen Street
Honolulu HI 96813

Dept. of Land & Natural Resources
Chairperson's Office
1151 Punchbowl Street, Room 130
Honolulu H! 26813

The Honorable Linda Lingle
Governor, State of Hawaii
State Capitol

Honolulu HI 96813

lkaika Hussey, Publisher
The Hawaii Independent
32 Merchant St. #204

Honolulu, Hawaii 96813



Daryn Arai

~ounty of Hawaii, Planning Department
101 Pauahi Street, Suite 3
Hilo, Hawaii 96720



Bettye Adams
167 S. Franklin Street
Juneau, AK 99801

‘Lucienne de Naie
P, 0. Box 610
Haiku, Hawaii 96708-0610

Kingdom of Hawail Natlon
P. O. Box 2845
Wailuku, Hawaii 96793

‘Paul R. Mancini, Esq.
Mancini Rowland & Welch
33 Lono Avenue, Suite 470
Kahului, Hawaii 96732 .

Chairman

Maui County Planning Commission
250 South High Streat

Wailuku, Hawaii 96783

Mr. Brian McCafferty
P. Q.-Box 792048
Paia, Hawaii 96779-2048

Molokai Legal Aid Society
P. Q. Box 427
Kaunakakai, Hawaii .06748

Mr. David Nobriga, Chairman

West Maui Soil & Water Conservation
District

P.:0. Box'1170

Wailuku, Hawaii .96793
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BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF HAWATI'I

In the Matter of the Petition of DOCKET NO. A10-789

)
| )
A&B PROPERTIES, INC. ) A&B PROPERTIES, INC.
)
To Amend the Agricuttural Land )
Use District Boundary into the )
Urban District for approximately )
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Waikapu, County of Maui, State of )
Hawai'i, TMK: 3-8-05: portion of )
23 and 37, 3-8-07: 71, portion of )
101 and 104 )
)
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